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Evotec transitions into a clinical stage drug development 
company with promising products in human testing
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Condensed key figures Evotec AG (IFRS)

Page 2004 2005 Δ 05/04 in %

Results:

Revenue 32 T€ 72,730 79,785 9.7

R&D expenses 33 T€ 13,490 14,088 4.4

Operating result1) 34 T€ (11,697) (8,105) 30.7

Net income 35 T€ (77,812) (33,583) 56.8

EBITDA 35 T€ (2,932) (1,699) 42.1

Cash flow 36 T€ (3,624) 37,141 –

Balance sheet data:  

Stockholders’ equity 38 T€ 110,508 148,669 34.5

Capital expenditure2) 36 T€ 1,942 7,553 288.9

Cash 37 T€ 15,277 53,520 250.3

Balance sheet total 37 T€ 146,544 186,111 27.0

Personnel data:

Employees as of 31.12. 39 646 604 (6.5)

Per share:

Result 35 € (2.12) (0.65) 69.3

1)  Before amortisation and impairment
2)  Cash relevant purchase of fixed and intangible assets, 

excluding finance leases

Revenues 2005

+10 %
Evotec has exceeded revenue guidance of 
“nil to 5%” growth for the year driven by a 12 % 
revenue increase in the Services Division. 
Growth was reported in each quarter with Q4 
again being particularly strong.  

R&D expenses 2005

+4 %
R&D expenses increased only slightly over 2004 with 
increased internal drug development costs being offset 
by a reduction in platform R&D expenditures in both 
Services (–52 %) and ET (–16 %). In 2006, clinical trial 
expenses are expected to increase.

Operating result 2005 1) 

+31%
This signifi cant improvement is in-line with 
increased gross profi t which comes as a result of cost 
and effi ciency improvements in all divisions, 
strong performance in chemical and pharmaceutical 
development services and a milestone payment 
from Takeda.
1)  Before amortisation and impairment



Evotec is an emerging drug discovery and 
development company. We have an 
evolving CNS pipeline with three clinical 
candidates focused on Alzheimer’s 
disease and insomnia, underpinned by 
an established, profitable services business 
which supplies over 120 customers 
including many of the world’s leading 
global pharmaceuticals companies.
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Three products 
in the clinic

Evotec has promising products in clinical development 
with great potential for the treatment of Alzheimer’s 
disease and sleep disorders. > page 06

Growth through 
powerful 
partnerships

Evotec’s Services Division advanced three compounds 
into commercial manufacture and expanded partner-
ships with Boehringer Ingelheim and Roche. > page 16
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Proof-of-principle demonstrated 
in insomnia

Evotec has completed a fi rst Phase I/II proof-
of-principle study demonstrating the potential of 
EVT 201 as a novel sleep agent. > page 13

Boehringer Ingelheim collaboration 
successfully progressing

The companies achieved their fi rst project 
milestone in June 2005 and doubled their already 
sizeable programme in January 2006. > page 22

Our performance 2005

2005 was a strong year with group revenue 
increasing 10 % to € 80 m and with profi table 
growth in the Services Division. > page 31



To Our Shareholders
2005 was a very successful year for our company, both strategically 
and operationally. Measured against all relevant performance indicators, 
we exceeded expectations. 

In 2004, we embarked on a major strategic expansion of our 
business model by increasing our focus on building a product 
pipeline in the Central Nervous System (CNS) therapeutic 
area. We began our implementation of this strategy by acquir-
ing full ownership of Evotec Neurosciences, and now have 
three compounds in clinical trials – with two already having 
completed several Phase I studies. In addition, we have weath-
ered the challenging economic environment in which our 
Services Division operates, and have grown this business by 
12 %. We have implemented significant productivity and effi-
ciency measures which have led to substantial improvements 
in our performance. The dedication and passion of our people, 
a clear strategic focus, and determined management, continue 
to be the key drivers of our success.

Last year’s highlights include:

>  Initiation of clinical development in our Alzheimer’s disease 
and insomnia programmes within the Pharmaceuticals Divi-
sion. We initiated a Phase I study for our Alzheimer’s com-
pound, EVT 101, as promised, and successfully completed a 
Phase I/II proof-of-principle sleep study for EVT 201, the 
compound we in-licensed from Roche earlier in the year for 
the treatment of insomnia. In addition, we successfully con-
cluded in-licensing negotiations for EVT 301, a compound 
close to entering Phase II development and which has the 
potential to reduce the progression of Alzheimer’s disease.

>  10 % revenue growth for the Group in 2005 against guid-
ance of “nil to 5 %”.
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>  12 % revenue growth in our Services Division and opera-
tional profitability before amortisation of intangible assets. 

>  Increase in cash by approximately € 47 m from € 15 m at the 
end of 2004 through the acquisition of Evotec Neurosciences 
and a PIPE transaction (Private Investment in a Public Entity); 
at year end 2005 the cash position was € 53 m.

We enter 2006 with confidence and expect strong perform-
ance both in Pharmaceuticals and Services.

Rapidly progressing CNS pipeline

In March 2005, we signed the acquisition of the remaining  equity 
of Evotec Neurosciences (ENS) through a share-for-share trans-
action. ENS has brought a promising portfolio of drug candi-
dates to treat CNS disorders into the Group, which we have the 
capabilities to develop. At the same time, we attracted a leading 
group of investors who committed, in a PIPE transaction, to fuel 
the expansion of our newly acquired pipeline and to support the 
development of these programmes through Phase II develop-
ment. We closed the deal in June 2005 securing Evotec € 28.4 m. 
Our development strategy is to create critical mass in our pipe-
line through organic growth from internal projects, in-licensing 
and possibly acquisitions. We intend to license or partner for co-
development so that, based on revenues and current cash, we 
have a number of options to fund the Company. 

Our goal for 2005 in this division was to progress our most ad-
vanced compound, EVT 101, into clinical development. EVT 101, 
in-licensed from Roche at the end of 2003, is a NR2B selective 
NMDA receptor antagonist with a proven biological mecha-
nism of action in development for the symptomatic treatment 
of Alzheimer’s disease. It has made great progress during 
the year and entered clinical trials in November as planned. 
Phase I studies are now almost complete. In line with our 
 strategy, we in-licensed, in March 2005, another compound 
from Roche, EVT 201, a GABA A receptor partial positive allos-
teric modulator, for the treatment of insomnia. A Phase I/II 
proof-of-principle clinical trial showed a strong profile for ac-
celerated sleep onset, improved sleep maintenance and lack 
of next day hangover effects. Finally, in December of 2005, 
we completed negotiations to in-license two MAO-B inhibitors 
from Roche. In global, one-year Phase III trials, a compound 
acting on the same target (MAO-B) demonstrated encouraging 
signs of slowing sympton progression in Alzheimer’s disease.

All in all, we exceeded expectations on the development of our 
pipeline, moving faster and further down the value chain than 
we had planned. We aim to have two compounds in Phase II 
clinical trials by the end of 2006.

Services Division returned to growth 
and profitability

From the beginning of 2005 the services business started to 
build momentum. We have had four quarters of consecutive 
sales growth in what continues to be a challenging market 
environment. Taking advantage of the current market need for 
the manufacture of drug candidates for clinical trials, our 
chemical development activities in Abingdon and our formula-
tion business in Glasgow showed strong growth. 
Operating in an environment with a continued weak dollar, slow 
market and competition from the Asian suppliers, we have focused 
on high value and high quality contract research. Together with 
significant improvements in productivity and efficiency, we have 
significantly reduced the Services Division P&L cost base. Our 
multi-year collaborations with Roche,  Boehringer Ingelheim and 
others are a strong validation for our ability to deliver high value 
contract research. We will continue to look for ways to improve our 
efficiency through technology, innovation and productivity.

In summary, we have executed on all our major goals for 2005: 
we have returned our Services Division to growth and profit-
ability, our order book for 2006 is stronger than at the same 
time last year and we are excited about the rapid progress 
in building our pipeline in the Pharmaceuticals Division. With 
Phase II clinical trials expected to start this year, 2006 will be 
another exciting year in our development and we look forward 
to our programmes maturing. 
We thank our shareholders, stakeholders, customers and ded-
icated employees for their continued support. We look forward 
to updating you throughout the year on the progress we have 
made delivering on our exciting strategic direction.

Joern Aldag
President & Chief Executive Officer

Dr Dirk H Ehlers
Chief Financial Officer



Alzheimer’s disease (AD) and sleep disorders are rapidly growing markets. 
Current medications provide only limited benefits, in particular in AD. 
Evotec has very promising products in clinical development with differentiated 
modes of action. They have great potential for the improvement of treatment 
in both conditions. Read more to learn about Evotec’s novel approaches.

 Three candidates
in the clinic 

Pharmaceuticals Division
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Alzheimer affected brain
Imaging techniques are used to evaluate the severity of Alzheimer’s disease. 
Tomography reveals the 3D-image of the brain and shows the shrinkage 
of certain areas that occurs in Alzheimer’s disease. 
The reduction of the hippocampus, a brain area essential for the memory, 
is typical for Alzheimer’s disease. Other techniques measure brain activity, 
such as the amount of blood flow in or the metabolism of glucose and 
oxygen in specific brain areas.



Our product pipeline: 
Focus on diseases of the central 
nervous system

Preclinical
Regulatory studies 
required prior 
to clinical trials

Discovery
Phase of drug discovery from target identification to 
the search for and optimisation of chemical compounds 
with desired properties

Clinical Phase I
Clinical trial condu-
cted in a small 
number of healthy 
volunteers, used to 
determine pharma-
cokinetics, preferred 
route of administra-
tion, and safe dosage 
range of a drug

Clinical Phase II
Phase II trials are 
performed on patients 
and are designed to 
assess the clinical 
efficacy of the therapy. 
In addition, the 
assessment of safety 
continues in a larger 
group

Clinical Phase III
Clinical trial involving 
a larger number of patients, 
designed to assess safety, 
effectiveness and optimum 
dosage of a drug as 
administered in a treatment 
setting

PreclinicalDiscovery Phase I Phase II Phase III

EVT 201 
GABAA modulator
Insomnia

EVT 301 
MAO-B inhibitor
Alzheimer’s disease

EVT 102 
Postoperative pain

EVT 103 
Follow-up to 
EVT 101

Other
Projects

AD
Takeda
collaboration

EVT 101 
NMDA subtype-specific antagonist
Alzheimer’s disease
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Clinical progress over delivered:
Three products in the clinic
>  Novel Phase I compound 

with disease modifying potential 
in Alzheimer’s disease

>  Subtype-selective cognitive and 
functional enhancer entered Phase I 
in AD

>  First clinical Phase I/II study 
successfully completed in insomnia

In its Pharmaceuticals Division, Evotec specialises in finding 
new treatments for diseases of the central nervous system 
(CNS), one of the largest therapeutic areas with a large unmet 
medical need. In 2005, the Company made rapid progress 
in building an attractive early CNS pipeline. Evotec has ad-
vanced three programmes into clinical development: EVT 201, 
a GABAA receptor modulator for the treatment of insomnia; 
EVT 101, a subtype-selective NMDA receptor antagonist; and 
EVT 301, a selective and reversible inhibitor of MAO-B, both 
for the treatment of Alzheimer’s disease.

The Alzheimer’s disease (AD) market is one of the fastest 
growing CNS markets. Aided by a growing elderly popula-
tion, the introduction of the first drug approved for moder-
ate-to-severe AD, ‘memantine’, has seen a compound annual 
growth rate in global revenues increase at over 35% between 
2001 and 2004, to $ 2.5 billion. AD patients are growing in 
number, but treatment options remain limited in both quan-
tity and quality. Today only four drugs are marketed for the 
treatment of AD and there is still no treatment available that 
can actively slow the progression or cure AD. Cholinesterase 
inhibitors and the recently launched NMDA receptor antago-
nist ‘memantine’ (not subtype-selective) provide only mod-
erate and temporary symptomatic benefit and the drugs are 
typically only effective for up to three years before losing their 
therapeutic benefit. In addition, around 60% of AD patients do 
not respond to first-line therapy and all current treatments are 
associated with side effects. In summary, current treatments 
are far from perfect and clear opportunities exist for novel 
alternatives. 

Dr Alois Alzheimer
The term ‘Alzheimer‘s disease’ 
dates back to the case record of 
a 51-year old female patient 
(Auguste D.) who had been 
admitted to a Frankfurt hospital 
in 1901 with signs of dementia. 
In 1906, Dr Alois Alzheimer, 
medical doctor, reported on this 
patient: ‘On a peculiar disorder 
of the cerebral cortex’. Later on, 
presenile dementia was desi g-
nated ‘Alzheimer‘s disease’.

Alzheimer’s disease—
tragically normal

Alzheimer’s disease (AD) is a progressive, degenerative, ir-
reversible disease of the brain that affects both cognition 
and behaviour. It is the most common form of dementia in 
older people and dementia is not a normal part of aging. 
AD is characterised by a loss of short-term memory and 
deterioration in behaviour and intellectual performance. 
The exact pathophysiology of the disease is still debated.
Prevalence rates increase sharply with age, roughly dou-
bling every five years at least until the age of 85. As a result, 
around 5% of individuals over 65 years of age are affected 
with AD, loosely split into mild, moderate and severe stages, 
depending on the patient’s level of functioning. The number 
of individuals with AD across the seven major global markets 
today amount to roughly five million, excluding individuals 
with questionable AD. As a result of the aging population, 
this number is expected to increase three-fold by 2050. 
 

Prevalence of Alzheimer’s disease in the US 
(female)1)

95+90–9485–8980–8475–7970–7465–69

3.51.70.8

7.1

13.8

25.2

41.5

Source for AD market data: Datamonitor, Pipeline and Commercial Insight: 
Alzheimer‘s Disease, 10/2005

% 

Age
1) There is some tendency for prevalence to be greater for women than for men. 



Candidate 1:
Alzheimer’s foe?

EVT 301: MAO-B inhibition is to date the only 
clinically validated approach for slowing Alzheimer’s 
disease progression.

Death of nerve cells
The exact pathophysiology of AD is still unknown. 
The brain of an effected patient typically shows 
atrophy or shrinkage of brain tissue and localised 
loss of neurons as the disease advances.
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Promising drug candidates for 
Alzheimer’s disease

Evotec has today two class leading AD compounds in clinical 
development which are complementary to each other: EVT 301, 
with potential to slow disease progression, and EVT 101 for 
symptomatic treatment. 
Importantly, the potential mechanism of action for both com-
pounds has clinical validation. This is critical to balance the 
development risk in a complex research area like AD. Regard-
ing EVT 101, the subtype-selective NMDA receptor antagonist, 
a non-selective compound targeting the same receptor is 
successfully marketed for the treatment of AD, validating the 
fundamental mechanism of action. With regard to EVT 301, 
an earlier compound in this class provided some encouraging 
findings in multinational late stage clinical trials of a major 
pharmaceutical company, as discussed below. 

EVT 301—Novel potentially disease
modifying Alzheimer’s treatment 

EVT 301 is an orally active, potent, selective and reversible in-
hibitor of monoamine oxidase B (MAO-B). Evotec in-licensed 
the compound from Roche  in January 2006. Earlier unpub-
lished data from a one year multinational Phase III trial of a 
first generation MAO-B inhibitor demonstrated encouraging 
signs of slowing symptom progression. Development was, 
however, subsequently stopped due to isolated reports of safe-
ty issues. EVT 301 is from a chemically distinct series and was 
developed as a follow-up based on the positive clinical find-
ings above. It has a desirable preclinical and clinical profile, 
was well tolerated and showed good pharmacokinetic proper-
ties in Phase I studies. If in further Phase I studies no issues on 
tolerability and safety arise, Evotec plans to begin a Phase II 
trial for EVT 301 in the second half of 2006.

Increased MAO-B activity in Alzheimer
brain leads to nerve cell damage

The activity of the enzyme monoamine oxidase B (MAO-B) 
generates hydrogen peroxide, a reactive oxygen species 
which crosses membranes and produces the highly reactive, 
and toxic, hydroxyl radical (HO•). This toxic radical is able to 
cause nerve cell damage. Comparative studies show a clear-
ly increased activity of MAO-B in Alzheimer affected brains. 
Increased MAO-B activity is therefore thought to contribute 
to the progression of AD and hence blocking MAO-B activity 
may reduce disease progression.

MAO-B is highly overexpressed around amyloid plaques in AD 

Permanent over-excitation kills
brain cells 

The function of the brain is largely dependent upon the 
communication between individual nerve cells. Nerve cell 
communication takes place through certain messenger 
substances, known as neurotransmitters. They are released 
from the transmitting cell at the junction of two nerve cells, 
called the synapse, into the synaptic gap and bind to spe-
cific receptors, on the receiving cell, like a key to a lock. The 
neurotransmitter glutamate plays an integral role in nerve 
cell communication associated with learning and memory. 
When glutamate binds to a cell surface docking site called 
the NMDA receptor, calcium may flow freely into the cell. It 
is believed that glutamate is released in excess amounts by 
cells damaged by AD. Sustained elevation of glutamate 
leads to chronic overexposure to calcium which in turn 
leads to cell degeneration. NMDA receptor antagonists may 
prevent this destructive sequence by limiting glutamate 
docking. Furthermore, NMDA antagonists, and particularly 
NR2B subtype-specific antagonists, appear to facilitate 
glutamate synaptic transmission mediated through other 
types of receptors (AMPA) in brain areas important for cog-
nitive function through a mild disinhibitory effect mediated 
by a reduced excitation of inhibitory neurones. This proba-
bly underlies the symptomatic benefit produced by NMDA 
antagonists in Alzheimer’s disease.

Amyloid plaque

AD Control



Slice through a rat brain
The NR2B subtype of the NMDA receptor has a 
distribution in brain restricted to areas important in 
Alzheimer’s disease, Parkinson’s disease and 
neuropathic pain (green fluorescence). EVT 101 
inhibits the NR2B subunit selectively.

EVT 101 — Selectivity may offer clinical 
advantages over current AD therapies

Extensive studies over the past 15 years have proven that 
NMDA (N-methyl-D-aspartate) receptors are important play-
ers in Alzheimer’s disease, Parkinson’s disease and neuro-
pathic pain. The NMDA receptor antagonist ‘memantine’ is 
currently marketed for the treatment of moderate to severe AD 
and is on its way to becoming a blockbuster drug. This is true 
despite ‘memantine’ having some unfavourable side effects at 
high dosage and a limited effect on AD symptoms relief in 
some patients. 
In the early 1990’s it was found that multiple NMDA subtypes 
exist which contain different NR2(A-D) subunits. Compounds 
selectively targeting the NR2B subunit-containing receptors 
are thought to retain many of the beneficial effects of non-se-
lective compounds such as ‘memantine’ but with much im-
proved side effect profiles.
EVT 101 is a highly potent and selective antagonist of the 
NR2B subunit-containing NMDA receptors. Evotec plans to 
initially develop EVT 101 for the symptomatic treatment of 
AD. The compound shows strong efficacy and a favourable 
side effect profile in preclinical studies compared to non-se-
lective NMDA receptor antagonists. It also has good oral bioa-
vailability and in vivo pharmacokinetics and was well tolerated 
in Phase I single ascending dose clinical trials, showing no 
adverse effects and good exposure and pharmacokinetic pro-
file. EVT 101 is expected to be ready to enter Phase II in H2 
2006. As Roche holds a buy-back option after Phase I, there 
are two possible development scenarios: either Roche takes 

the compound back or Evotec might continue with Phase II 
studies later in 2006/early 2007. 

Takeda chooses first Alzheimer target

Evotec has achieved the first milestone in its four-year drug 
discovery collaboration with Takeda. The collaboration is 
aimed at jointly identifying and validating novel targets relat-
ing to different aspects of the causes and progression of Alzhe-
imer’s disease, with the goal of developing innovative small 
molecule therapeutics. Over the past two years the companies 
have made excellent progress in building substantial expertise 
and IP around novel Alzheimer’s disease targets. Evotec has 
now granted Takeda exclusive rights in a novel Alzheimer’s 
target, triggering a milestone payment of more than a mil-
lion Euro. Importantly, Evotec is eligible for further substantial 
milestone payments on the successful clinical development of 
compounds acting on the selected target. Further work within 
the collaboration is rapidly and productively progressing.

Candidate 2:
The cognitive and 
functional enhancer
EVT 101 is one of the few orally active and selective NMDA 
antagonists in clinical development. A non-selective drug 
of this compound class is one of the four drugs marketed for 
AD and is on its way to becoming a blockbuster. Due 
to its non-selectivity, however, treatment benefi t is limited 
offering clear opportunities for novel alternatives. 
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A clear market need for better 
sleep drugs

Evotec is also actively pursuing the treatment of insomnia. The 
sleep market is large, growing and, most importantly, poorly 
served. According to the National Sleep Foundation’s 2005 
Sleep in America Poll 73% of adults reported symptoms of in-
somnia at least a few times a month. However, only 14% of 
respondents reported using a prescription or OTC sleep aid. 
This may be due to the limitations of current treatment options 
or the negative reputation of older generations of sleep medi-
cations. There is clearly a market need for better sleep drugs. 
Clinical drivers in their development will be lack of next-day 
hang-over while improving sleep quality. In addition, the dem-
onstration of reduced tolerance and addiction liabilities in 
long-term use would be useful.

EVT 201 — Proof-of-principle
demonstrated in insomnia

EVT 201 is a partial positive modulator of the GABAA receptor 
complex. Compared to many currently marketed sleep drugs it 
appears to have a differentiated preclinical profile and mecha-
nism of action. Preclinically, it showed no tolerance/depend-
ence liabilities in the studies performed and showed no inter-
actions with alcohol. The compound was well tolerated in a 
Phase I study with 65 subjects, undertaken by Roche when 

originally targetting a different indication. In 2005, Evotec con-
ducted a small Phase I/II proof-of-principle study in subjects 
with induced insomnia to prove its potential as a novel sleep 
agent. The study was completed with encouraging results. EVT 
201 was well tolerated, showed significant efficacy in duration 
and quality of sleep and only minimal residual effects the fol-
lowing morning. Subjects fell asleep quickly, didn’t wake up 
during the night and felt they had a good night sleep. Encour-
agingly, they woke up feeling more alert than subjects taking 
placebo and were in a better mood. An additional Phase I/II 
study is underway to determine the optimum dose for a Phase 
II study in patients which is expected to start in the second half 
of 2006.

Report of symtoms for a sleep problem 
(a few nights per week or more) is on a rise

62
69

74 75

62

Source: 2005 Sleep in America Poll, National Sleep Foundation

Candidate 3:
Sleeping peacefully, 
awaking refreshed
EVT 201: This GABA modulator has shown proof-of-
principle in a Phase I/II clinical study in 2005. 
Compared to current sleep aids, it has the potential to 
have a superior profi le in terms of quality of sleep, 
ease of awaking and next day alertness and mood.

in % 

     1999 2000 2001 2002 2005



Pharmaceutical Scientific Advisory Board 

Pharmaceutical Management Team 
Evotec’s team consists of industry experts with distinguished track records of 
successful drug discovery and development

(from left to right)

Dr John Kemp, EVP Research & Development
> 22 years pharmaceutical industry experience in CNS 
 drug discovery at Roche and Merck
> Head of CNS Preclinical Research and Therapy Area Head  
 for Neurodegenerative Diseases at Roche
> Member of CNS Therapy Area Strategic Team and Global  
 Research Portfolio Committee 

Dr Tim Tasker, MD, EVP Clinical Development
> Over 20 years pharmaceutical industry experience in drug  
 development, including significant CNS experience, at GSK
>  VP, Global Clinical Pharmacology Units, 

Clinical Pharmacology and Discovery Medicine
>  VP, European Clinical Pharmacology & Member of 

Neuroscience Therapy Area Team

Jesper Wiklund, SVP Business Development
> 12 years industry experience at Wyeth, Elan and 
 DeveloGen

Dr Andrea Cesura, Director of Neuropharmacology
> Pharmacologist with 17 years pharmaceutical industry 
 experience in CNS drug discovery at Roche and Serono
> Project leader for MAO-B projects at Roche 

Dr John Pohlner, VP Project & Alliance Management
> Co-founder of Evotec Neurosciences
> Over 10 years industry experience
> Project leader of Alzheimer collaboration with Takeda

Dr David Hallet, Head of Medicinal Chemistry
>  Medicinal chemist with over 8 years experience of CNS 

drug discovery at Merck, including leadership of Alzheimer 
projects

Prof Dr Ian Hunneyball, Director, Corporate Projects
(not on photograph) 
>  Executive Director of R & D at BASF Pharma U.K.
> Brought Sibutramine from research to market

Prof Dr Roger Nitsch, MD, Chairman
Chair of Psychiatry Research, University of Zurich

Dr Karsten Henco, Vice-Chairman
Co-founder of Evotec, Co-founder of Qiagen

Prof Dr Christoph Hock, MD
Professor of Biological Psychiatry, University of Zurich

Dr William Jenkins, MD
Former Head of Medicine and Clinical Development 
worldwide at Novartis

Prof Dr Hanns Moehler, MD
Chair of Institute of Pharmacology, ETH Zurich

Dr Ian Ragan
Former European Head of Neuroscience at Eli Lilly
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Financial discussion
Milestone with Takeda drives revenue 
growth

Despite revenues not being the division’s short-term value 
driver and focus, revenues in Evotec’s Pharmaceuticals Divi-
sion increased markedly to € 3.2 m. Revenues were driven by 
achievement of the first milestone from the four-year collabo-
ration with Takeda for a novel Alzheimer’s disease target. In ad-
dition, in 2005, revenues from Takeda were consolidated from 
26 May onwards and, in 2004, for the first quarter only. This is 
a consequence of the initial reduction of Evotec’s shareholding 
in Evotec Neurosciences (ENS) and the subsequent acquisi-
tion of full ownership interest. Excluding this consolidation ef-
fect, revenues generated with Takeda amounted to € 5.0 m in 
2005 and € 4.0 m in 2004. 

Start of clinical development 
programmes increases R&D expenses 

R&D expenses in the Pharmaceuticals Division increased as 
planned, from € 0.9 m to € 6.0 m in 2005 due to initiation of the 
first clinical studies for EVT 201 and EVT 101. As in the past, they 
do not include the research expenses dedicated to the Metabolic 
disease programme with DeveloGen (€ 1.8 m booked as net loss 
from equity investments under non-operating expenses). Follow-
ing the full acquisition of ENS, division SG&A costs increased by 

R&D expenses 

0.9

6.0

Revenues

0.9

3.2

144% to € 4.0 m. Operating loss including amortisation charges 
amounted to € 28.1 m. Evotec amortised goodwill associated 
with the acquisition of ENS through a one time write-off charge 
amounting to € 18.5 m. The accounting treatment of goodwill 
from the ENS acquisition adequately reflects the risks and un-
certainties inherent in early drug development. Excluding any 
amortisation of intangible assets, operating loss increased to 
€ 7.7 m, in line with increased R&D for clinical development.

Advancing two candidates into Phase II 
in 2006

In the Pharmaceuticals Division Evotec is committed to build-
ing a portfolio of drug compounds that provide potential for 
higher-value return from out-licensing or other partnering. The 
Company is excited about the rapid progress in building its 
pipeline in 2005. During 2006, Evotec expects to start Phase II 
clinical trials for two of its compounds and enter Phase I stud-
ies with EVT 102, its parenteral NMDA receptor antagonist. The 
CNS portfolio may be further supplemented by in-licensing se-
lected compounds or M&A  activities. In line with increased 
clinical development and in- licensing fees (including EVT 301) 
R&D costs in the division are expected to increase significantly. 
In summary, 2006 will be another exciting year in Evotec’s de-
velopment and the Company is looking forward to its pro-
grammes progressing. 

Condensed key figures Pharmaceuticals Division

  2004 2005

Revenues T€ 944 3,231

– Thereof 3rd party T€ 925 3,231

Gross margin % 38.8 68.1

R&D expenses T€ 867 5,957

SG&A expenses T€ 1,628 3,974

Operating result before non-cash

amortisation and impairment T€ (2,129) (7,732)

Operating result T€ (2,220) (28,086)

– Thereof depreciation 

 and allowances T€ 249 328

Employees (31|12, without overhead)  5 35

in € m 

  2004 2005
Δ in %   +587

in € m 

  2004 2005
Δ in %   +242



Unrivalled research engine
Evotec has developed one of the most productive and 
efficient platforms for the discovery and development of 
small molecule drugs. It covers the entire process from 
assay development and screening through lead compound 
optimisation and finally development and scale-up 
of processes for the production of the large volumes of 
compound needed for clinical trials and to support 
commercialisation. 

The market for drug discovery and development outsourcing showed signs of 
recovery in 2005. This is particularly being driven by pharmaceutical and 
biotech customers collaborating with companies like Evotec to support them 
in advancing their compounds through clinical development and, ultimately 
to the market. Partnerships built on performance and trust are critical in this 
business and have proven to be Evotec’s key to success. 

Growth through 
powerful 
partnerships

Services Division
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Financial discussion
Recovering growth

The market for contract research and development remained 
challenging in 2005; however, it did show signs of recovery 
over 2004. Evotec is proud that continued high quality delivery 
and close relationships with its customers translated into a 
strong performance for 2005. Revenues in the Services Divi-
sion grew by 12% over 2004 to € 61.0 m, significantly outper-
forming our original guidance of approximately € 54 m. 
Growth has been seen across all product lines, and was pre-
dominantly driven by chemical and pharmaceutical develop-
ment. In particular, Evotec’s drug formulation business almost 
doubled sales over 2004.

Operating result 
before amortisation and 
impairment

Revenues 

Improved cost structure

After a challenging 2004, in which worldwide outsourcing mar-
kets declined, Evotec implemented a significant productivity and 
efficiency plan to improve its performance. As a result, gross 
margins improved from 29.3% to 31.1%, and SG&A decreased 
in 2005 by 19% to € 11.4 m. In addition, Evotec has focused its 
efforts on platform R&D resulting in a reduction of 52% to 
€ 3.9 m, whilst still being able to deliver its core R&D needs. In 
2005, research activities mainly focused on building the corpo-
rate library, optimising and exemplifying the proprietary frag-
ment based screening platform and enhancing the Company’s 
high-content screening expertise. In summary, Evotec’s Services 
Division has reduced its operating expenses by € 8.4 m in 2005. 

Segment operating result before 
amortisation positive

Based on strong revenue growth, enhanced capacity utilisa-
tion in chemical development and streamlining processes, 
 operating result improved strongly in this division. Excluding 
charges for the regular amortisation of intangible assets, which 
will no longer occur in 2006, and excluding a partial unimpair-
ment of pilot plant assets, the Services Division reached € 1.5 m 
for the full year 2005. Evotec thereby exceeded its original 
break-even target. With focused capital expenditure, the 
 Services Division was cash generative in 2005, as planned.

1.554.5

61.0

–9.9

  2004 2005

Condensed key figures Services Division

  2004 2005

Revenues T€ 54,508 60,961

– Thereof 3rd party T€ 54,123 60,884

Gross margin % 29.3 31.1

R&D expenses T€ 8,117 3,864

SG&A expenses T€ 14,125 11,434

Operating result before non-cash

amortisation and impairment T€ (9,851) 1,506

Operating result T€ (83,616) (5,226)

– Thereof depreciation 

 and allowances T€ 9,441 6,893

Employees (31|12, without overhead)  450 387

Services Division revenues 2005

+12 %

Evotec signifi cantly outperformed its original 
guidance of unchanged service revenues over 2004 
driven by a strong performance in chemical 
development and, in particular, an outstanding 
contribution from the formulations business. 
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  2004 2005
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in € m

Δ in %   +115
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Excellent customer network
Selection 2005



Evotec selected 
for Roche partner 
programme
“Roche has found a reliable cost-effective partner in 
Evotec. In our fi ve years of experience with Evotec they 
have proven to be a partner who meets deadlines on 
time, usually delivering more than they have committed 
to. We therefore continually look to develop the 
relationship further.”
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Excellent customer relations
Contracts continued and expanded

Evotec has further built on its ongoing customer relations dur-
ing the year. In discovery services, its contract with Merck Inc. 
has continued to deliver high-quality compound libraries and 
the large chemistry collaboration with Roche continues to add 
value. Assay development and screening projects were per-
formed for a large number of companies, including Boehring-
er Ingelheim, Congenia and a large US biotech company. In 
development, Evotec carried out a range of different projects 
with Serono and Celgene, which include lab-scale production 
as well as pilot plant manufacturing and extended its contract 
with Novartis. The Company was also involved in the valida-
tion and/or manufacturing of three APIs from AnorMED, Point 
Therapeutics and an undisclosed large US biotech compa-
ny—products for which it has developed processes over many 
years.
In discovery, it extended contracts with Solvay, Panacos, 
Chroma Therapeutics and Elixir. Importantly in April the Com-
pany announced a 12 months extension of its large, global 
chemistry contract with Roche. Evotec is also proud to have 
secured substantial new business during 2005. New contracts 
were signed with Procter & Gamble Pharmaceuticals, Almirall 
and two Japanese companies, among others. In development, 
Evotec  signed new agreements with Allergan, Astex, OxiGene 
and for process research with UCB.

Unmatched research and development 
engine

Over recent years Evotec has built an innovative, efficient 
and powerful, world class platform for the identification and 
development of novel small molecule drugs, serving a great 
many pharmaceutical and biotech companies. The key serv-
ices carried out with the Company’s collaborators are com-
pound library design and synthesis, biological screening and 
hit generation, lead compound identification and optimisation 
including secondary screening and pharmacokinetic evalua-
tion, followed by all preclinical and clinical scale-up capabili-
ties through to commercial production of active pharmaceuti-
cal ingredients (APIs) and parenteral drug formulation.
Evotec has a proven track record of delivering high quality so-
lutions for individual aspects of drug discovery and develop-
ment. In addition, the critical mass and scope of its operation 
gives another clear competitive advantage: it makes Evotec an 
attractive partner to pharmaceutical companies to engage into 
longer term collaborative research collaborations.

Operating segment income before amortisation

Positive!

Strong sales performance and improved effi ciency 
has led to a signifi cant improvement in operating 
result, exceeding guidance and market expectations.



2007 was extended to the end of 2008. In addition, Boehringer 
Ingelheim placed further fee-for-service contracts with us. In 
November, Boehringer Ingelheim’s research sites at Biberach 
(Germany) and at Laval (Canada) have chosen Evotec as a 
partner for assay development and screening services.

Moving up the value chain with 
Boehringer Ingelheim: Providing a 
service and sharing in success

Cooperating with prestigious pharmaceutical companies such 
as Boehringer Ingelheim is central to Evotec’s success. Evotec 
and Boehringer Ingelheim started working together in Sep-
tember 2004. Bringing together complementary strengths 
and expertise in one single team, the companies have estab-
lished a powerful partnership for the discovery of promising 
new medicines. In June 2005, less than one year after the start 
of the research collaboration, the companies entered into lead 
optimisation for a priority target of this collaboration trigger-
ing the first financial milestone. Achieving preclinical project 
milestones is essential in result-based contracts like this one, 
as this allows for a good average gross margin during the con-
tract period. Short-term margins are expected to be low, but 
in return for sharing in the initial risk the long-term margins 
and revenue streams are expected to be strong through pre-
agreed project milestones. In addition, the contract provides 
substantial long-term upside through potential payments for 
successful milestone achievements during clinical develop-
ment and royalties when new drugs reach the market. Further 
projects within the multi-target collaboration are progressing 
on schedule.
Following this extremely successful start of the collaboration 
Evotec and Boehringer Ingelheim significantly expanded their 
drug discovery collaboration at the start of 2006, effectively 
doubling the already sizeable programme. At the same time, 
the collaboration that was originally projected to end in August 

Boehringer Ingelheim collaboration

Doubled!

In January 2006, Evotec and Boehringer Ingelheim 
doubled their already sizeable drug discovery programme. 
At the same time, it was extended to the end of 2008.
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diseases (CNS) alongside its services business this positive re-
lationship has clearly helped Evotec to in-license three prom-
ising development programmes from Roche (see Pharmaceu-
ticals Division, pages 6–15). This is just one example of the 
synergies between both sides of Evotec’s business. 

The Roche-Evotec partnership: 
Built on trust

In 2001, Roche began its collaboration with Evotec. In the early 
days of the relationship, activities were focused on a chemistry 
collaboration centred on the synthesis of chemical libraries. 
This deal has been extended a number of times. Roche has, 
to date, entered into a total of nine different programmes with 
Evotec, including medicinal chemistry optimisation to support 
Roche’s oncology therapeutic area, electrophysiological side 
effect testing of specific compounds on cardiac ion channels 
and a large global agreement providing Roche with medicinal 
chemistry support. Scientists across all of Roche’s research 
facilities in Switzerland, Germany, the United States and Ja-
pan are gaining direct access to the innovation, creativity and 
productivity of Evotec’s scientists. An excellent working rela-
tionship has been forged between the two partners and this 
has led to the inclusion of Evotec within Roche’s Ambassador 
Partner Programme, publicly acknowledging the expertise and 
support of Evotec.
As Evotec’s business has evolved to incorporate expertise in 
developing drugs for the treatment of central nervous system 
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Roche—Evotec contract record (illustrative)

Large compound libraries

Focused compound libraries

Global lead generation 
Basel (CH) 
Penzberg (D)
Palo Alto (CA/USA) 
Nutley (NJ/USA)

MAO-B
inhibitors

GABAA modulator

Subtype-specific NMDA receptor antagonists

Oncology research collaboration

 Successfully completed library collaborations    Ongoing strategic medicinal chemistry collaboration    In-licensing of drug candidates from Roche

  2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 today

Roche

Rapidly expanding 
deal volume

Evotec’s track record in providing Roche with high 
quality research support has paved the way for 
them to out-licence three promising CNS programmes 
to Evotec’s Pharmaceuticals Division (see pages 6–15). 



Full-range service contracts with 
Procter & Gamble Pharmaceuticals

In June 2005, Evotec entered into a broad integrated new rela-
tionship with Procter & Gamble Pharmaceuticals, Inc. (P&GP) 
involving many disciplines of pharmaceutical drug discovery. On 
the basis of several signed contracts P&GP has accessed a wide 
range of discovery and preclinical expertise offered by Evotec, 
ranging from biological assay development and screening to 
medicinal, computational and scale-up chemistry services. 

Three compounds 
in development for 
commercial 
manufacture
Extending key contracts through the development 
process has led to a strong year and outlook for Evotec’s 
chemical development services.   
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Markets expected to remain challenging

In 2005, Evotec’s Services Division returned to growth and op-
erating profitability in a continued challenging market. Operat-
ing in an environment with a continued weak dollar, slow mar-
ket recovery and competition from low cost suppliers, Evotec 
has focused on high value and high quality contract research 
in close customer collaborations. Multi-year partnerships such 
as those with Roche and Boehringer Ingelheim are a strong 
validation of the Company’s ability to deliver. The develop-
ment service business continues to be promising, starting the 
year, as in 2005 with a good order book which is the result of 
long-term projects having moved all the way through to com-
mercial manufacture. Also the formulations business continues 
to look strong. 

Commercial manufacture for AnorMED, 
Point Therapeutics and another 
US biotech company leads to steady 
production business

Sales performance in chemical and pharmaceutical develop-
ment has been particularly strong through 2005. Evotec’s bio-
technology and pharmaceutical customers continue to make 
extended use of its full range of development capabilities from 
preclinical synthesis to commercial API manufacture. In 2005, 
Evotec was the commercial supplier of a number of APIs. The 
Company completed the validation of the process for com-
mercial manufacture of AnorMED’s Phase III compound 
AMD3100 and supplied significant quantities for a second of 
their compounds, AMD070, for use in clinical trials. In addi-
tion, Evotec worked closely with Point Therapeutics, supplied 
significant quantities of their anti-cancer drug talabostat for 
use in mid to late stage clinical trials and started validating the 
talabostat process for commercial manufacture. For the com-
mercial manufacture of a recently approved compound from a 
long-term US biotech partner a supply agreement was signed 
and several batches produced during the year. In summary, 
this has the effect of giving steady production business for 
Evotec’s pilot plants improving capacity utilisation, typically 
an issue in any manufacturing environment.

Synergies drive integration of rapidly 
growing formulation business

Evotec’s formulation business, based in Glasgow, Scotland, 
nearly doubled sales and showed impressive margin growth in 
2005. As of September 2005, on purchase of the final out-
standing equity from Strathclyde University, it has been fully 
integrated into the Evotec brand. In line with this, the name 
changed from ProPharma Ltd to Evotec (Scotland) Ltd. This 
business is now a wholly owned subsidiary of Evotec. 
By adding its expertise in pharmaceutical formulation devel-
opment and the small-scale sterile manufacture of pharma-
ceuticals for use in clinical trials, Evotec now offers a more 
comprehensive range of integrated services to its clients along 
the late preclinical and clinical value chain. 
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How do nerves regenerate? 
This is a central question in the search for novel drugs for the treatment of 
fatal central nervous system disorders such as paraplegia or stroke. This 
neuron from a nerve tissue culture shows the way. “High-Content Screening” 
methods can monitor the formation of neurites—extensions of the nerve 
cell axon via which nerve cells communicate.

The area of Cell Biology is having a major impact on the discovery of novel 
drugs. There is tremendous value in technologies which enable scientists to get 
a deeper understanding of the interactions of molecules within their real 
physiological environment. Evotec Technologies is developing cutting edge cell 
handling and cell imaging systems and software for this growing market.

Growth market 
Cell Biology

Tools & Technologies (Evotec Technologies|ET)
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>  Ramp up of Opera™ sales supported 
by attractive extended features

>  Pick-up in customer support sales 
following Zeiss uHTS acquisition

>  Academic market increasingly 
important

Bottlenecks in Cell Biology drive the 
need for innovative technologies

Scientists increasingly study the complete biological system in 
which natural processes occur. The object they are looking at 
is the whole cell. This field of research is referred to as Cell 
Biology. The instruments and technologies applied in Cell 
 Biology are becoming more sophisticated. They enable the re-
searcher to handle and manipulate cells, detect mechanisms 
within whole cells, both primary cells and cell lines, and auto-
mate the process around the analysis and handling of cells. 
Increasing use of primary cells to gain functional data, to-
gether with the growth of stem cell research, requires novel 
solutions for isolation, purification and sorting of these cells. In 
addition, there are enormous and increasing amounts of data 
to be handled and analysed. 
Cell Biology is already a multi billion dollar tools market today, 
growing by over 10 % annually. With its high-performance so-
lutions (see section “Focused product development”) Evotec 
Technologies (ET) has evolved as a leading provider of tools for 
high-content analysis and handling of cells. 

Focused product development

ET has a growing network of long-term collaborations with 
customers such as Pfizer and GlaxoSmithKline. Based on 
discussions with such prominent partners, ET identified the 
increasing trend towards whole Cell Biology early on and de-
cided to leverage its technologies and expertise in detection, 
automation, software and biology to satisfy unmet needs. 
ET has become a world leading provider of high-end confocal 
detection devices and ultra-high-throughput screening (uHTS) 

30th Opera™ sold

The growth trend for ET’s Opera™ business remains 
intact. Following the launch of the new release of 
this cell imager, Q4 sales increased signifi cantly. 
The 30th instrument was sold before year end 2005.

systems. The Company’s outstanding expertise in detection 
coupled with sophisticated automation skills makes ET a clear 
leader for automated cell analysis. Already today, ET’s market 
share in uHTS imaging exceeds 50 %.
The Company has taken over the leading position in high-
end instrumentation for high-content cellular assays with the 
Opera™ . The Opera™ is a flexible imaging platform that is sig-
nificantly faster than any other system on the market, without 
compromising high resolution. A new release of the product 
provides more colours and detectors as well as environmental 
control for live cell investigation. The integration of Opera™ 
and other detection systems into ET’s automation platforms 
EVOscreen® or plate::explorer™ enables the convenient analy-
sis of biological systems in high-throughput mode. 
Generating huge amounts of imaging data, novel software 
solutions for data processing are therefore required to trans-
late this into meaningful results. ET’s answer: Acapella™. The 
Acapella™ data analysis framework is a highly flexible and 
powerful data processing engine adaptable to a broad spec-
trum of bio-pharmaceutical applications and data formats. It 
is able to quickly extract a broad spectrum of information out 
of a high-content data set. 
In addition to performing high-content cell analysis, ET is ex-
panding into emerging markets, which require cell manipula-
tion and single cell analysis such as mammalian cell cloning, 
gene expression analysis and stem cell research. It therefore 
has developed Elektra™, a device for Image Activated Cell Se-
lection (IACS) and single cell recovery. First sales of this device 
as well as the Cytocon™, the semi-automated version of this 
technology, already demonstrate the enormous potential of 
the underlying “CellProcessor” technology.



Evotec Technologies’ product installations
A global market presence

Seamless solutions through networking

ET continuously expands its network of partnerships through 
development cooperations, co-marketing and license agree-
ments. With the growing importance of Cell Biology, industry 
wide strategies to build seamless automated processes for fast 
cellular analysis increasingly replace large stand-alone efforts 
of individual tools suppliers.
Early 2006 (after period end), ET announced the extension of 
the application portfolio of its Opera™ system through a license 
agreement with Cellomics, to include specific classes of high-
content screening assays such as cytoplasm-nuclear translo-
cation, characterisation of cellular toxicity, and receptor inter-
nalisation. In an agreement with BioImage A/S, ET extended the 
portfolio towards redistribution assay technologies. The Com-
pany also signed a license agreement with CSIRO to integrate 
their software solution for automated imaging of neurons and 
quantification of neurite formation into ET’s Acapella™ software 
platform. In September 2005, ET and Genedata announced that 
they would jointly promote ET’s automated screening instru-
mentation (EVOscreen® and plate::explorer™) and data analysis 
software (Acapella™) with Genedata‘s software system Genedata 
Screener®, to provide a complete solution for generation and in-
terpretation of high-precision imaging and kinetic experiments. 
One joint application will be the prediction of pharmacological 
properties in early phases of the drug discovery process. 

Two years ago, ET was heavily dependent on a few large phar-
maceutical customers, in particular Pfizer, Novartis and GSK 
who together represented 80% of ET’s 2003 revenues. ET’s 
strategy has been to reduce this dependence by developing 

 21 screening platforms installed at 14 sites
 More than 60 bench-top systems (Opera™, Elektra™, Cytocon™, Clarina™ II)

In addition more than 50 Insight readers.

EVOscreen®

Integrated ultra-high-throughput 
screening platform

Opera™
High-speed confocal cell imaging 
detector

Elektra™
Bench-top device for automated 
single cell selection and recovery

Insight Cell
Combined methods of single 
molecule detection and cell imaging

plate::explorer™
A modular and scalable solution 
for high-performance automation

Automation platforms to allow analysis in 
high-throughput mode

Handling and detection devices for cellular analysis

ET portfolio: Generating high-content 
data in high-throughput mode

plate::vision™
Ultra-fast multi mode reader
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high-content analysis and Cell Biology-based products for new 
customer segments, and to grow service and support contracts 
by also maintaining the installed base of systems at existing 
customers. The three-year instrumentation supply, technology 
development and product enhancement contract with Pfizer 
has been successfully completed and all milestones achieved. 
Pfizer and ET have signed a global service and maintenance 
agreement covering the entire ET instrumentation range across 
all Pfizer sites. In 2005, ET’s revenues from outside the Pfizer, 
Novartis and GSK partnerships (EVOscreen® consortium) have 
grown by 27% over 2004 and now make up 74% of ET’s rev-
enues. The following events have been particularly significant:

Building on synergies after Zeiss uHTS 
acquisition

In May 2005, ET announced the acquisition of the uHTS busi-
ness from Carl Zeiss Jena, with ET receiving exclusive rights to 
build and commercialise Zeiss’ uHTS product portfolio includ-
ing the plate::vision™ reader and the plate::explorer™ uHTS sys-
tem. In addition, ET assumed the service responsibility for the 
installed base of these Zeiss instruments, including ten uHTS 
systems that are in operation at leading pharmaceutical com-
panies. This acquisition helped ET to gain long-term service re-
lationships with additional top-ten pharmaceutical companies.

Growing number of academic partners

ET’s customer base in pharma and biotech now covers a siz-
able portion of the industry. In addition, academic institutes 
are moving towards drug discovery and have become an in-
creasingly important customer. There are four promising char-
acteristics of this highly innovative academic market: 
>  the academic community operates in networks, hence sup-

porting the spread of a chosen technology, 
>  there is a strong scientific focus on cell-based applications, 
>  in comparison to the pharmaceutical industry, the spectrum 

of cell-based applications is much wider, and 
>  in addition to searching drug candidates, researchers in 

academia also have a strong interest in identifying molecu-
lar probes that can be used to modulate the systems they 
are investigating. 

The common need is automation and intelligent data analysis, 
both areas where ET has an unparalleled expertise.

Customer mix;
Strong growth of new customer base
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Financial discussion
Strong underlying bench-top business 
for Cell Biology

Evotec Technologies (ET) achieved revenues of € 17.0 m. As ex-
pected, the launch of the new generation of the Opera™ has 
led to a significant increase in orders during the course of the 
year. Orders were received from pharmaceutical, biotech and 
academic institutions worldwide. Sales were concentrated in 
the second half of the year, in particular in Q4 2005, where 
they amounted to € 7.3 m. As expected, they could, however, 
not match the above average performance in Q4 2004, which 
included a significant revenue contribution from the sale of an 
EVOscreen® system. 

Streamlining operations

As planned, ET’s R&D expenses declined in 2005 compared 
with 2004. They were reduced by 16 % to € 5.2 m. This is a re-
flection of the advanced development stage of the Opera™ and 
Elektra™ platforms, which resulted in capitalisation of some 
software upgrade developments according to IFRS (€ 0.7 m). 
R&D efforts in 2005 focused on the continued enhancement 
and expansion of applications for both of ET’s core Cell Biol-
ogy devices. For the Opera™, ET has added further excitation 
sources and detection devices, developed new software to in-
tegrate the bench-top instrument into proprietary as well as 

third-party automation devices, and developed an integrated 
environmental control chamber to keep cells under natural 
conditions. For Elektra™, novel applications were developed 
to meet the particular requirements of modern stem cell re-
search. In addition, ET completed its performance enhance-
ment programme for EVOscreen® with Pfizer. 
SG&A expenses increased by 28% to € 4.8 m primarily due to 
further investments in building a stronger international pres-
ence. Operating result before amortisation fell to € (2.4) m, 
largely due to an extraordinary restructuring charge. The 
Company decided to close its Duesseldorf operations and 
transfer most of the corresponding activities to Hamburg. This 
will streamline operations and enhance its offering by more 
closely integrating the development of assay applications, 
technologies and software.

Academic research to drive future growth

In 2005, ET has experienced growing interest and orders from 
academic research institutes around the world, a trend which 
it expects to continue in 2006. At the beginning of 2006, ET 
received a substantial order from the University of Cincinnati 
Genome Research Institute. With the integration of the Zeiss 
instrument portfolio ET has further tailored its offering to re-
spond to the automation needs in the academic market. The 
modular architecture of those devices allows adequate solu-
tions for fully automated analysis of cellular assays. In addi-
tion, the stem cell initiative in the US is also expected to fur-
ther boost demand for ET’s devices. 

Condensed key figures Tools & Technologies

  2004 2005

Revenues T€ 19,315 17,003

– Thereof 3rd party T€ 17,683 15,670

Gross margin % 51.0 50.4

R&D expenses T€ 6,164 5,175

SG&A expenses T€ 3,788 4,832

Restructuring expenses T€ 0 917

Operating result before non-cash

amortisation and impairment T€ (98) (2,362)

Operating result T€ (961) (3,638)

– Thereof depreciation 

 and allowances T€ 843 1,819

Employees (31|12, without overhead)  91 92

Revenues 

19.3

17.0
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Business and operating environment (1)
Continued challenging markets 

Evotec continues to operate in a challenging contract research 
environment where the market for outsourced drug discovery 
continues to be restricted by the lack of discovery funding in 
the biotech industry. Driven by continued pressure from in-
vestors to focus on more advanced product opportunities 
and to realise quicker gains, the funding available has been 
largely channelled into clinical development. This has bene-
fited Evotec‘s chemical and pharmaceutical development 
services which grew substantially during the year. Also phar-
maceutical customers have continued to focus their R&D 
 priorities on advancing clinical candidates that are closer to 
market to maintain growth through new product launches. At 
the same time, to increase the number of new pipeline drugs 
these companies accelerate their in-licensing activities of their 
pre-clinical and clinical candidates.  
In 2005, Evotec began to build its pipeline of clinical devel-
opment compounds in the CNS field which the Company in-
tends to partner with pharmaceutical companies before or in 
Phase III clinical trials. Evotec’s close relationship with Roche 
has enabled it to in-license three promising clinical products, 
two for Alzheimer’s disease and one for insomnia. Evotec’s 
increasing R&D expenditure in the Pharmaceuticals Division 
reflects the expense associated with running clinical trials.

Results of operations (2)

Detailed business segment performance, including description 
of its respective products and services, market and competitive 
advantages as well as activities in research and development, is 
discussed on pages 6 to 30. It should be noted that the defini-
tion of the segments has been modified in 2005, following the 
acquisition of Evotec Neurosciences (ENS) and the higher em-
phasis on proprietary drug development. The new segment 
structure impacts the Services Division (formerly: Discovery 
and Development Services) and the Pharmaceuticals Division 
(formerly: Discovery Programs Division). The Tools and Tech-
nologies segment (Evotec Technologies) is unchanged. In par-
ticular, work for proprietary development programmes is no 
longer shown as Services revenues. The detailed P&L shown in 
the respective separate segment reports reflects this change. 
2004 numbers have been restated accordingly.

Financial Report 
(figures according to IFRS)

Revenues:
Solid revenue growth

Total group revenues increased by 10 % to € 79.8 m (2004: 
€ 72.7 m). Organic growth, i.e. not including additional contri-
bution from full consolidation of ENS, was 7%. Also, year on 
year growth was recorded in each quarter of the year. Revenue 
continued to exhibit its historical pattern of seasonality with 
Q4 being particularly strong (33 % of annual revenues; 2004: 
35 %). Currency effects continued to be evident in 2005 with 
the US Dollar being especially volatile. However, across the 
year as a whole, the average rate of exchange of the Euro 
against the US Dollar remained the same as in 2004 at € 1.00 
to $ 1.24. Due to volatility, currency effects contributed 0.4%-
points to the growth reported.
Services Division revenues have shown consistent recovery 
throughout 2005 after the decline seen in 2004, and are now 
12% ahead of 2004. This is particularly pleasing given the con-
tinued market pressures in contract research services and the 
continued relative weakness of the US Dollar against Evotec‘s 
operating currencies of the Euro and UK Pound. Chemical and 
pharmaceutical development services were particularly in de-
mand from customers in 2005. 
Tools and Technologies Division (Evotec Technologies) revenues 
ended the year with a strong Q4 but this was not sufficient to 
compensate for the 2004 sale of an EVOscreen® system which 
had produced above average performance in Q4 2004. The 
Division ended 2005 with third party revenues 11% below 
2004. What is notable, however, is that the Division has success-
fully made the transition from being a supplier of predominant-

Revenues 2005

+10 %

Growth was reported in each quarter with Q4 again being 
particularly strong. Overall growth was mainly driven by 
a 12 % revenue increase in the Services Division where 
chemical and pharmaceutical development services were 
particularly in demand from customers.
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ly larger screening machines (EVOscreen®) to a limited custom-
er group to the broader supply of high-end bench-top analysis 
and cell handling equipment such as Opera™ and Elektra™.
The Pharmaceuticals Division is focused on mid to longer term 
added value through the partnering of internal programmes; 
however, the division also recorded growing revenues in 2005 
through the collaboration with Takeda amounting to € 3.2 m 
(2004: € 0.9 m). This collaboration has been shown in Evo-
tec’s group accounts since consolidation of ENS in May of 
2005, while in 2004 it was shown for the first quarter only, i.e. 
until Evotec temporarily lost majority ownership to venture 
capitalists.
The geographical spread of revenues for the Group continues 
to be diverse. Europe continues to be the largest market with 
51% of total revenues (2004: 46 %), and the US market being 
second at 37 % (2004: 42 %).

Gross margin:
Improvement through cost control 
and increased efficiency

The Group‘s overall gross margin for 2005 was 36.3 % (2004: 
34.1 %) with cost of revenues amounting to € 50.8 m (2004: 
€ 47.9 m). This improvement comes as a result of a pro-
gramme of cost and efficiency improvements across all divi-
sions together with changing market demands which have 
improved the revenue mix. In the Services Division, the much 
improved utilisation of the Pilot Plant and the continued strong 
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performance of the formulations business have benefited the 
margins. In the Pharmaceuticals Division, the milestone pay-
ment from Takeda significantly contributed.
Efficiency programmes saw a managed headcount reduction 
in the services operations to align skill sets with demand and 
focus increased effort on customer-facing activities. In the 
same vein, Evotec Technologies announced the closure of the 
Duesseldorf site. Whilst the US Dollar continues to be weak 
and therefore affects the Company‘s pricing and gross margin 
versus competitors with US based operations, the average US 
Dollar exchange rate was the same in 2005 as in 2004, and 
therefore currency effects have had less of an impact on the 
year on year comparisons. In total, currency contributed 0.6%-
points to the margin improvement. 

Research & Development costs:
Focus on proprietary programmes

Research & Development (R&D) costs for 2005 amounted to 
€ 14.1 m, increased only slightly over the 2004 figure (2004: 
€ 13.5 m). This is due to increase in costs in internal pro-
grammes in the Pharmaceuticals Division offset by a reduc-
tion in platform R&D expenditure in both Services (52 % re-
duction) and  Evotec Technologies (16 % reduction). For the 
Group, there was considerable year on year cost reduction in 
Q1 and Q2 2005. However, following the acquisition of Evotec 
Neurosciences in May 2005 and the subsequent acceleration 
of internal research programmes with a proprietary drug dis-

Revenues

72.7
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Percentage of total 
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Δ in %   +10

Revenues by regions

37 % USA

12 % Rest of world

51 % Europe
  



covery and development focus, there was a planned increase 
in R&D expenditure such that R&D in Q4 2005 was € 5.1 m 
versus € 3.8 m in Q4 2004.

Selling, general and administration costs: 
Efficiency gains offset by ENS 
acquisition

Selling, general and administration (SG&A) costs of € 19.9 m 
for 2005 increased only slightly compared to last year (2004: 
€ 19.4 m), despite higher sales, an additional four months of 
full consolidation of SG&A cost of ENS in 2005, higher com-
pensation expenses from stock options and extraordinary con-
sultancy costs. These effects over-compensated the underlying 
rationalisation of the cost of the businesses support services. 

Operating result:
Significant improvement; Services 
Division positive before amortisation

The operating loss for the Group decreased significantly to 
€ 35.7 m (2004: € 85.6 m). Both 2005 and 2004 included im-
pairment charges and amortisation of € 27.6 m and € 73.9 m 
respectively (for a more detailed explanation see page 38). 
Excluding these items, the comparable position would be a 
decrease in operating loss to € 8.1 m (2004: € 11.7 m), in line 
with the improved gross profit.
Other operating costs from planned unused capacity in the 
Services Division decreased to € 2.2 m (2004: € 3.6 m). 
Through the revenue increase and cost and efficiency savings 
seen, Services shows a positive operating position of € 1.5 m 
before the inclusion of the non-cash amortisation.
Evotec Technologies ended the year with an operating loss be-
fore the inclusion of amortisation charges of € 2.4 m, after a 
restructuring charge of € 0.9 m in context with the closure of 
the Duesseldorf site. The majority of the Group operating loss 
both before and after amortisation arises from the Pharma-
ceuticals Division due to the Company‘s focused investments 
in its proprietary research programmes.

Gross margin

34.1
36.3

R&D expenses

13.5 14.1

in %

  2004 2005

in € m 

  2004 2005
Δ in %   +4
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Net loss:
Improved operating result, lower 
amortisation charges

The net loss for the year of € 33.6 m is significantly lower than 
the previous year (2004: € 77.8 m). This is mainly a result of 
the substantial goodwill and asset impairment seen in 2004. 
In 2005, there was a smaller impairment, resulting largely 
from the acquisition of Evotec Neurosciences (ENS). The 
change to reporting under IFRS has resulted in distinct chang-
es to the methodology of determining the impairment which 
have also resulted in the 2004 impairment under IFRS being 
lower than under previously reported US-GAAP figures (see 
also page 38 and the Notes to the Financial Statements 
No. (2)). Factors that have impacted the net loss position be-
low the operating line include a foreign exchange loss for the 
year of € 0.7 m (2004: gain of € 0.9 m) resulting from transac-
tions that protected our US Dollar budget rate but were at ad-
verse value to the volatile, but more favourable currency mar-
kets at certain points in the year. R&D investments in Evotec‘s 
Metabolic disease joint research programme with DeveloGen 
and in ENS prior to re-acquisition were reported as a non-op-
erating cost and classified as “net loss from equity invest-
ments”, totalling € 2.6 m (2004: € 3.5 m). Neither investments 
will be shown under non-operating cost from January 2006 
onwards, as the joint venture structure has now been dissolved 
(see page 43). 2005 deferred tax credits decreased to € 4.7 m 
(2004: € 9.7 m) due to reduced regular amortisation and low-
er capital tax allowances in the year. Excluding the impairment 
and amortisation charges, net loss amounted to € 6.0 m 
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(2004: € 3.9 m). Adjusted for the deferred tax effect, net result 
improved by 21% despite the increasing emphasis on internal 
drug discovery and development programmes following the 
integration of ENS into the Pharmaceuticals Division.
The total net loss per share of Evotec was € 0.65 (2004: 
€ 2.12). The weighted average number of shares used in cal-
culating basic earnings per share (EPS) increased by 
15.357.573 shares to 51.987.921 following the issue of addi-
tional shares for the ENS acquisition in May and for the capital 
increase in June 2005.

EBITDA 

Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation 
(EBITDA) for the Group ended the year at € (1.7 m) (2004: 
€ (2.9 m)). This improvement is a direct result of the cost 
 reductions achieved and the improved performance of the 
Services Division.

Net income

–77.8

–33.6

Operating result1)

–11.7

–8.1

1) before amortisation and impairment

Δ in %   +31
   2004 2005

in € m

Δ in %   +57
   2004 2005

in € m

EBITDA calculation

T€  2004 2005

 Net income  (77,812) (33,583)

– Interest income  451 856

+ Interest expense  847 729

– Tax benefits  9,777 4,513

+ Amortisation  10,074 9,733

+ Impairment  63,851 17,835

+ Depreciation and allowances  10,336 8,956

= EBITDA  (2,932) (1,699)



Financing and financial position (3)
Cash flow:
Positive cash flow from operations

Cash flow from operating activities was € 1.9 m (2004: € (3.9 m)). 
A number of factors have contributed to this improved perform-
ance including the improved operating result and a reduction in 
receivables of € 2.1 m compared to the previous year. 
Cash flow from investing activities was positive in 2005 (€ 9.0 m) 
as a result of a net inflow of cash from the acquisition of Evotec 
Neurosciences of € 19.2 m, more than offsetting the cash in-
vesting activities of € 10.3 m. Purchase of capital equipment 
amounted to € 3.8 m, the main item of which being the capacity 
expansion with new clean rooms for the formulation business 
Evotec (Scotland) Ltd in Glasgow. In September 2005, further 
investment was made in acquiring the remaining minority stake 
in this business, held by the University of Strathclyde, for Evotec 
(UK) Ltd to achieve 100% ownership of this subsidiary. Other 
investments included that into our Joint Venture with DeveloGen 
and other capitalised R&D cost, as well as various intangibles 
acquired by Evotec Technologies, in particular the Zeiss uHTS-
business and a license from Cellomics.
Net cash flow from financing activities increased to € 26.3 m 
(2004: € 5.2 m). This was predominantly the result of the Com-
pany‘s secondary offering in June 2005 providing proceeds of 
€ 28.4 m offset by a net repayment of bank loans of € 2.2 m. 
The proceeds are expected to be used predominantly to fi-
nance the clinical development of drug candidates within the 
Pharmaceuticals Division, until partnering or out-licensing will 
pay for their further development.

Condensed cash flow statement

T€  2004 2005

Net cash provided by (used in)

– operating activities  (3,859) 1,910

– investing activities  (4,964) 8,980

– financing activities  5,199 26,251

Net increase | decrease in cash 

and cash equivalents  (3,624) 37,141

Exchange rate difference  138 1,102

Cash and cash equivalents 

– at beginning of year  18,763 15,277

– at end of year  15,277 53,520

Cash development
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Liquidity and hedging:
Low risk strategies used for cash and 
foreign exchange

The Group closed the year with € 53.5 m of cash and cash 
equivalents, and holds 63% as liquid investments with a matu-
rity of less than three months. Our investment policy defines 
that investments are only made in products and with financial 
institutions rated A or better (Standard & Poor ratings). 
€ 7.0 m are held in UK Sterling and the remainder (€ 46.5 m) 
in € currency. Evotec has a high proportion of revenues from 
US clients denominated in US Dollar and a large proportion of 
its total cost base in the UK (denominated in UK Sterling). To 
limit the risk associated with currency movements in the US 
Dollar, particularly against UK Sterling, the Company uses for-
eign exchange financial instruments such as options and fu-
tures. It is Company policy not to speculate on foreign ex-
change movements, but to hedge the risks arising from 
underlying business activities.
The foreign exchange gain or loss shown in the financial state-
ments is derived from the transaction gains and losses on 
transactions denominated in a currency other than the local 
currency, the change in the value of foreign currency assets 
and liabilities retranslated into local currency at the balance 
sheet date, and fair value adjustments relating to financial in-
struments held.
The 2005 exchange loss includes a charge of € 0.3 m relating 
to fair value adjustments (2004: € 0.3 m credit). The notional 
amounts of currency related financial instruments held at 31 
December 2005 were $ 10.0 m (2004: $ 10.5 m).

Evotec makes use of long term bank loans and asset finance, 
primarily for the Services Division, with only small new asset 
finance for Evotec Technologies, and the sum of these debt ele-
ments – including their current portions – remained relatively 
stable at € 13.3 m (2004: € 13.7 m) with some repayment fi-
nance offset by new asset finance agreements. Currency split 
of debt was € 3.2 m in UK Sterling and € 10.1 m in €.

Balance sheet (4)
Capital structure:
Capital increases in May and June 2005

Evotec increased its share capital during 2005 with the issue 
of a total of 24.7 million new shares through both a capital in-
crease against contribution in kind (14.3 million new shares 
for acquisition of all ENS shares not already owned) and a 
secondary offering at a price of € 2.72 per share. The offering 
provided net cash proceeds of € 28.4 m. As a result, share 
capital in the Company increased to € 62.8 m (2004: 
€ 38.0 m), and total equity to € 148.7 m. Only a very small 
number of employee share options were exercised and this 
did not significantly affect the amount of share capital in issue. 
Evotec ended the year with an equity ratio of 80% (2004: 75%) 
due to the generally low amount of debt held by the Group.

Cash 2005

€ 53.5 m

Evotec closed the year with a strong liquidity position. 
The cash increase over 2004 resulted from the 
acquisition of ENS in May and Evotec’s secondary 
offering in June 2005. Operating cash fl ow was 
also positive.

Equity ratio 2005

 80 %

Due to the generally low amount of debt the equity 
ratio of Evotec continued to be strong.



regularly amortised. In 2005, this amortisation amounted to 
€ 1.8 m for ENS, € 0.3 m for uHTS and € 7.3 m for OAI. The 
amortisation associated with OAI ended in September 2005. 
Also, under IFRS a total of € 1.2 m of ET’s R&D expenses were 
capitalised, € 0.7 m thereof in 2005. These will be amortised 
over four years. Total group intangible assets (including good-
will) amounted to € 65.9 m at the end of 2005 (2004: 
€ 60.7 m).
The working capital for the Group decreased significantly dur-
ing 2005 to € (1.2) m (2004: € 8.1 m) as a result of improved 
collection and timing of trade accounts receivable, maintenance 
of inventory at levels in line with revenues, and in particular due 
to the increased proportion of debt with short-term maturity.

Net assets:
Strong asset base

The Company owns fixed assets consisting of property (not 
land) and capitalised leasehold improvements to property, 
predominantly through laboratory fit outs, and scientific and 
technical equipment for use in these laboratories. In addition, 
the Company has offices and information technology to sup-
port both operational and overhead areas. 
Regular group (fixed asset) depreciation exceeded investments 
in new assets slightly. However, a small reversal of impairment 
of pilot plant fixed assets under IFRS resulted in an increase of 
total fixed assets to € 38.2 m (2004: € 37.8 m).
The Company has performed its annual regular review of tan-
gible and intangible assets for impairment under IFRS in the 
same way as has previously been performed under US GAAP. 
Whilst the principles are similar, the exact methodology of valu-
ation is different and has resulted in a smaller impairment in 
2004 and a slight reversal of impairment in 2005 (€ (0.6) m) of 
assets related to the Services Division. The 2005 review has 
resulted in no further impairment of goodwill related to the 
acquisition of Oxford Asymmetry International (OAI) five years 
ago. In 2005, however, intangibles acquired with Evotec Neuro-
sciences (ENS) have been impaired (€ 18.5 m) as is common 
practice for pharmaceutical R&D or related goodwill.
Customer related intangibles in ENS and in the uHTS business 
acquired by Evotec Technologies (ET) from Zeiss, as well as 
customer list and technologies acquired with OAI are being 

Condensed balance sheet

T€  2004 2005

Cash, cash equivalents and securities  15,277 53,520

Inventories  10,099 10,502

Other current assets  19,493 17,951

Property, plant and equipment  37,762 38,163

Intangible assets  60,714 65,921

Other non-current assets  3,199 54

Total assets  146,544 186,111

Provisions  5,994 6,563

Other current liabilities  15,518 23,109

Long-term liabilities   12,598 7,770

Deferred tax liabilities  1,926 0

Total stockholders’ equity  109,934 148,669

Minority interest  574 0

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity 146,544 186,111
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Human resources
A year of change

During 2005, Evotec‘s headcount decreased for the first time 
in the Company‘s history. This was used to reduce headcount 
in overhead areas and to improve productivity in areas of di-
rect labour. The total employee count at 31 December 2005 
stands at 604 compared to 646 at the same time in 2004. 
These numbers also include the integration of the 29 staff ac-
quired when Evotec Neurosciences (ENS) rejoined the Group 
in May and the expansion of the formulation business in Glas-
gow, Scotland.
With the acquisition of ENS we saw the expansion and con-
solidation of the previous Discovery Programs Division into the 
Pharmaceuticals Division, and Evotec has now started to add 
critical clinical development skills to this part of the business. 
During the year the Company also consolidated its operations 
in Evotec Technologies with the announcement of the closure 
of the small Duesseldorf site and the redeployment of some of 
the staff to Hamburg. Nine employees will leave the Company.
Evotec has retained its commitment to employee communi-
cations during the year by holding regular face-to-face meet-
ings and through written communication on a wide variety of 
topics.
The Company has continued to seek ways to improve the value 
and cost effectiveness of its benefit package to employees in 
its largest headcount area, the UK, through the introduction of 

improved pension facilities and the tax effective Salary Pension 
Arrangement. Evotec continued to support staff with the use 
of coaching, training, finance for conference attendance and 
management development initiatives. 

Employees as of 31 December
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Headcount analysis by area and qualification as of 31 December 2005

        Physicians, Engineers 
     Biologists,   Pharma- (R&D),
  Total Male Female Biochemists Chemists Physicists cologists IT experts Others

Services Operations 387 252 135 18 232 2 1 9 125

– Discovery Hamburg 54 25 29 9 6 2 1 9 27

– Discovery Abingdon 192 128 64 9 124 0 0 0 59

–  Chemical & Pharma-

 ceutical Development 

 (Abingdon & Glasgow) 141 99 42 0 102 0 0 0 39

Pharmaceuticals Operations 35 16 19 10 4 0 4 0 17

Evotec Technologies  92 71 21 12 3 19 0 48 10

Overhead 90 45 45 13 15 1 0 18 43

– Sales & Administration 82 42 40 12 15 0 0 18 37

– Corporate 8 3 5 1 0 1 0 0 6

Grand Total 604 384 220 53 254 22 5 75 195



Risk report (6)
Business risks and future development 
chances

Evotec‘s businesses each show different potentials for value 
creation, while also showing different risk profiles.

Evotec‘s Pharmaceuticals Division engages in selected dis-
covery and development activities which promise significant 
returns when such programmes are successful, but also carry 
higher business, scientific and financial risk. The more signifi-
cant returns will materialise with upfront and milestone pay-
ments and/or royalties from future sale of drugs. We expect to 
achieve this when any one of the drug candidates will either 
be out-licensed to pharmaceutical or biotech companies, or 
when Evotec decides to partner while still retaining some mar-
keting rights. The associated risks are those inherent to the 
biotech and drug development industry in general:
>  Even if Evotec identifies promising targets and compounds, 

or in-licenses or otherwise acquires promising drug candi-
dates for development, any such project could fail or it could 
take several years before the Company could sell, partner or 
license any clinical candidates, if at all. To reduce the de-
pendence on the success of individual projects Evotec at-
tempts to build a broader and more balanced portfolio of 
drug candidates, to the degree affordable. 

>  Evotec‘s expenditures on internal development programmes 
or related acquisitions of technologies or intellectual prop-
erty rights are likely to reduce its short- to mid-term operat-
ing income and cash reserves. Evotec intends to reduce part 
of this financial exposure through early partnering agree-
ments, to the degree possible and advisable while trying to 
maximise returns. In addition, the option to improve the fi-
nancing situation through capital increases, be it against 
cash or acquired assets, e. g. as part of an in-licensing agree-
ment, is always being considered. The Company does not 
intend to engage in projects or project phases unless appro-
priate funding is allocated or secured.

>  The dependence on individual larger out-licensing or part-
nering events will increase the dependence from individual 
pharmaceutical or biotech customers. At the same time it 
deepens the relationship with such partners and hence in-
creases the chances for further high value deals.

>  The competitive landscape for licensing and licensed com-
pounds, as well as the regulatory and reimbursement envi-
ronment, in general or for individual treatments, might 

change while engaging in individual projects. The timing 
and commercial values of, or financial proceeds from part-
nering individual projects could hence deviate significantly 
from earlier projections, for better or worse. The Company 
believes, however, that overall the market value of com-
pounds with favourable clinical results will increase rather 
than significantly decrease.

>  Finally, Evotec‘s intellectual property might be challenged 
by, depend on or be restricted by third parties, or, when built 
internally, it might fail to be accepted for patent protection. 
This could result in sizable additional expenses, project 
 delays and absorption of management attention, and in a 
dramatic reduction of project values or even in full project 
cancellation. To reduce such risks Evotec puts high empha-
sis on patent protection and patent monitoring.

Evotec‘s services business is well established within the in-
dustry, and has shown strong growth again in 2005, after a 
very difficult year in 2004. The continuous drive for increasing 
research efficiency, combined with superior service quality, al-
lows Evotec to generate value through positive cash contribu-
tions and building customer networks beneficial to all its busi-
nesses, e. g. the in-licensing of drug candidates in the 
Pharmaceuticals Division. However, in this business specific 
risks also need to be managed:
>  Even when exhibiting growth, fluctuating resource and ca-

pacity utilisation between different parts of the business can 
significantly decrease profitability, unless carefully and flex-
ibly adjusted. In addition, dependence on individual larger 
customer contracts needs to be carefully monitored. In 
2005, the largest revenue contribution from one single cus-
tomer was 9 %.

>  Some of the service contracts contain technical delivery 
risks, which can be mitigated only with high quality project 
work.

>  Pricing pressures originate from funding restrictions of 
some of Evotec‘s customers as well as to some extent from 
evolving competition in low cost countries. Therefore, firm 
cost management, continuous enhancement of capabilities 
and technologies, careful market positioning and high value 
sales are mandatory. 

>  With a high proportion of sales denominated in US Dollar 
currency exposure, in particular relative to the UK Sterling, 
creates a risk to the Evotec‘s profitability. The Company re-
duces this exposure through hedging techniques during 
such contract work (see page 37 and Notes to the Financial 
Statements No. (18)).

Risk Report, Risk Management and 
Environmental Protection
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Evotec Technologies (ET) is dependent upon significant capi-
tal expenditure by its customers. These capital expenditure 
budgets have been generally reduced in the past years, but 
there have recently been signs of recovery in instrument 
spending. Also, ET has shifted its business focus towards high 
interest areas like Cell Biology. Here it has been creative in 
constantly seeking innovative new products and applications 
for its product line, to provide solutions to research bottle-
necks. However, even when identifying growth segments of the 
market, pricing pressures, IP protection and aggressive mar-
keting by competition could threaten ET‘s further develop-
ment. In addition, the life science tools industry has seen in-
creasing consolidation over the past years, resulting in an ever 
stronger peer group. ET tries to reduce such risks through 
product focus, license and co-marketing arrangements and 
emphasis on solid customer relations with long-term product 
support and upgrade schemes.

Overall and across all businesses, the Company‘s success also 
depends on its ability to attract and retain highly skilled staff 
and to adapt to changing technologies and market environ-
ments as well as customer expectations. If Evotec fails to adapt 
to market needs, its ability to create value and grow could seri-
ously suffer. 
In summary, Evotec expects to be able to create long-term 
value through building its own pipeline of drug candidates and 
maintaining a highly competitive services business. With the 
Company‘s efficient infrastructure, its high level and breadth 
of skills and high quality international reputation, Evotec be-
lieves it is well prepared to deliver on its strategy. This is being 
supported by appropriate management systems and risk 
management practices. 

Risk management:
Comprehensive and reliable systems 
in place

To increase the chances of value and business opportunities, 
and at the same time limiting the associated risks, Evotec puts 
important emphasis on risk management as an ongoing man-
agement task within all three business segments. 
Evotec is continuously reviewing its business and R&D portfo-
lios, and performs regular commercial and R&D project re-
views. Management engages in monthly financial reviews with 
a strong emphasis on cash and cash forecasts, and key per-
formance drivers such as revenues, order book status and 
gross margins. Currency exposures are reduced through hedg-
ing vehicles (see page 37). In addition, strict application of 
R&D project and investment approval processes, legal con-
tract review procedures and signing authorities are also stand-
ardised procedures. Moreover, the Company continues to em-
phasise its IT security throughout the Group and reviews its 
insurance coverage regularly. Compliance with the regulatory 
environment, e.g. for environment and health and safety, is 
being emphasised. This principle also applies to Corporate 
Governance, where the Company complies with publicly pro-
moted codes of practice. The scope and procedures of the risk 
management system are being regularly reviewed, in order to 
adjust to changing environments, risk profiles and business 
opportunities. 

In summary, Evotec believes that its current internal controls 
and risk management systems operate at an appropriate level 
for its businesses. The structure and mode of operation of 
 Evotec’s risk management system complies with the require-
ments of the Corporate Sector Supervision and Transparency 
Act (KonTraG).



Occupational safety and 
environmental protection:
Proactive protection

Evotec believes that it has an obligation not just to meet, but to 
exceed, local statutory requirements in protecting its employ-
ees and the environment. This ethos is put into practice by the 
continued commitment of its employees – especially the 
Health and Safety and Environmental Management teams at 
each of its operating sites. At Evotec‘s Hamburg site the Com-
pany continues to take a proactive approach towards meeting 
legal requirements. Regular inspections by the local environ-
mental protection authority and the office for industrial safety 
have confirmed its full compliance.
At Abingdon, work continues with ISO 14001 as this standard 
requires “continual improvement” to be demonstrated. Al-
though the standard only relates to the operation of the two 
Pilot Plants, many practices are implemented throughout the 
site, especially with regard to recycling and energy consump-
tion. In January 2005, the Pilot Plants initiated a scheme for 
the recovery of solvents via a third party distillation company, 
and their re-use within the chemicals sector. By the end of 
2005, the Company had recovered approximately 50 % of sol-
vents used during the year. 
In July, under the UK Government‘s scheme to encourage 
businesses to become more energy efficient, a second Climate 
Change Levy Agreement was signed. The agreements now 
cover the majority of buildings on the Abingdon site. Under 
these agreements, Evotec is entitled to financial rebates on 
utility costs for showing ongoing improvements in energy ef-
ficiency.
At all operating sites Evotec continues to focus on the induc-
tion and ongoing training of its employees in health, safety 
and environmental awareness matters.
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Post-balance sheet events (5)

On 6 January 2006 Evotec in-licensed two MAO-B inhibitors 
from Roche, which triggered a mid single digit million Euro 
up-front payment in cash to Roche. Both compounds are in 
Phase I studies and hence significantly strengthen Evotec’s 
pipeline. 
On 23 January 2006 Evotec terminated its Joint Venture with 
DeveloGen, in which it worked on four discovery projects in 
the field of Metabolic diseases. This termination is effective 
31 December 2005. Evotec will retain all rights on two of the 
four projects.

Outlook (7)

The Evotec Group is expected to increasingly transform into a 
drug discovery and development company with a strong pro-
prietary pipeline of drug candidates. As of February 2006 Evo-
tec has three compounds in Phase I clinical testing, all of 
which are on schedule to be in Phase II trials by 2007. In addi-
tion, dependent on scientific results and availability of funding 
Evotec plans to progress additional products into clinical de-
velopment during 2007 at which time out-licensing deals will 
be contemplated. 
Evotec’s tools and technologies business Evotec Technologies 
(ET) is expected to show significant improvement of its finan-
cial performance due to last year’s restructuring and the suc-
cess of its new products. At the same time it is increasingly 
becoming a non-core activity for the Group as Evotec transi-
tions into a drug discovery and development company. Hence, 
management has initiated a search for strategic or marketing 
partners for ET. In this context, the Company might consider 
further reducing its shareholding in ET. In addition, ET intends 
to sell parts of its patent rights and licenses that are not di-
rectly associated with ET’s business focus.

Services performance may benefit from 
market position and potential market 
upswing

The services business is considered to be instrumental in sup-
porting Evotec’s strategy, through its critical mass, customer 
network and cash flows. The division has shown a significant 
operating improvement in 2005 despite continued challeng-
ing conditions for discovery outsourcing. Its strong brand and 
market position should now allow Evotec to benefit from any 
further recovery of the outsourcing markets, which, however, is 
difficult to predict, as well as from any further consolidation in 
this industry. Its broad product line positions Evotec as an out-
standing “one-stop-shop” in discovery and development con-
tract services. 
For 2006, the contract pipeline for the services business is on 
the same high level as at the same time last year, despite con-
tinued market weakness on the discovery side. As of the end of 
January 2006, the sales and order book for 2006 totalled ap-
proximately € 34 m (2005: € 31 m). Evotec believes that with 
the capacity adjustments made, and in the absence of a re-
newed significant weakening of the US Dollar, this business can 
be managed to operating profitability and cash generation. 

Post-Balance Sheet Events and Outlook



Pipeline investments and success in 
partnering will drive group results

Total Group operating and net results are expected to be pri-
marily driven by increasing investment into internal drug de-
velopment within the Pharmaceuticals Division. If all current 
programmes proceed on schedule, the three lead compounds 
EVT 101, EVT 201 and EVT 301 are expected to be in Phase II 
clinical testing by 2007. As a result, clinical trial expense for 
these three programmes alone could total in excess of € 20 m 
over the two year period 2006/2007. Additional, low single 
digit milestone payments will become due, typically upon 
Phase II initiation. In the absence of partnering or licensing 
revenues this would result in negative, double digit Euro mil-
lion operating result in the Pharmaceuticals Division and in the 
Group in both 2006 and 2007. Although Roche has accepted 
payment of the EVT 301 Phase II milestone in new Evotec 
shares, Evotec’s 2006 cash position is expected to largely re-
flect and mirror its clinical development investments. 
Evotec does not intend to start new projects or project phases 
unless necessary funding is in place (see page 40). Such fund-
ing could originate from cash flows from the Services Division, 
proceeds from the disposal of non-core assets, M&A, new share 
offerings and other capital measures, or from partnering or li-
censing revenues. Partnering is expected to be the preferred 
cash source of choice in the mid-term, as it allows funding of 
new projects while reducing dilution to shareholders and still 
retaining product equity. Evotec anticipates a licensing agree-
ment on at least one of its programmes before the end of 2008, 
which could immediately trigger a multi-million Euro upfront 
payment, on top of substantial milestones and royalties de-
pendent on  future success.  
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Dividends:
Short-term profits will be invested in 
long-term value creation  

The payment of dividends in the future is dependent on Evo-
tec’s financial situation and liquidity requirements, the general 
market conditions, and statutory, tax and regulatory require-
ments. Evotec currently intends to retain any profits generated 
within its divisions, and to re-invest them to increase share-
holder value. Evotec does not expect to report positive net in-
come in 2006.
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Evotec Shares 

For European equities, 2005 proved 
to be a surprisingly bright year with all 
major indices gaining significantly. 
However, most biotechnology stocks 
failed to follow suit. Evotec shares 
closed the year down 5 %, even though 
the Company had exceeded its guid-
ance for 2005 in all important areas: 
It managed to get not one compound 
into clinical trials, but two, and its 
Services Division grew quarter on quar-
ter. It has taken until early 2006 for 
these achievements to translate into 
share price gains. The first two months 
of 2006 saw Evotec shares increase 
by 64 %.

Record highs for European 
stock markets, modest gains in the US

The strong performance of European equities in 2005 sur-
prised many observers. Despite rising interest rates, high oil 
prices and sluggish economic growth the German DAX index 
climbed to 5408 points, an increase of 27 %. Second-line 
stocks also made headway, with the MDAX and TecDAX gain-
ing 36 % and 15 % respectively. The European STOXX50 index 
rose by 21%. The general perception that European compa-
nies are undervalued and the announcement of General Elec-
tions in Germany in May had put investors in buying mood. In 
contrast, Wall Street investors had little to cheer about. The 
Dow Jones (–1%) and the NASDAQ Composite Index (+1%) 
ended the year more or less where they had set off. 

Evotec shares 2005

Xetra High (03.03.) € 3.46

Low (29.04.) € 2.45

Average share price € 2.75

Average daily trading volume1) pcs. 162,581

Price decrease % 5

Closing price as at 31.12. € 2.50

Market capitalisation as at 31.12. € m 156.9

Number of shares as at 31.12. pcs. 62,759,424

Key share data Earnings € (0.65)

Dividend € 0.00

ISIN: DE 000 566 480 9
German securities identification number: 566480
Ticker symbol: EVT

1) Based on the trading volumes of all German stock exchanges
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European biotech stocks not amongst 
the winners

European biotech stocks, especially the small caps, were unable 
to benefit from the positive mood in the market, with 60 %  of 
them losing ground. The European biotech sector as a whole 
shed 2 % of its market capitalisation. Within biotech the big 
companies captured the limelight in 2005, especially in the 
US. Investors shifted funds away from pharma and towards 
large biotech companies, as evidenced by the AMEX biotech 
index’s leap upwards by 25 %, while the NASDAQ biotech in-
dex merely edged forward by 3 %.

Evotec share price initially 
unaffected by the Company’s progress 
and the stock market euphoria

2005 turned out to be a year for Evotec’s management and 
shareholders to be patient. Despite the upbeat mood of Europe’s 
stock markets and the excellent news from Evotec on the Com-
pany’s progress, the share price remained flat for most of the 
year and closed 2005 down 5 %. Although this was largely in line 
with the biotech sector’s overall performance, it did not reflect 
Evotec’s progress with regards to the development of both its 
Services Division and its proprietary pipeline of drug candidates. 
However, in early 2006, Evotec shares have begun to rise dra-
matically, rocketing up 64 % to € 4.09 by the end of February.

Number of shares rose to 63 million
due to capital increases which yielded 
€ 47 m for pursuance of strategies

Evotec increased its share capital in 2005 by issuing a total of 
24.7 million new shares, in part against contribution in kind 
(14.3 million new ordinary shares for the acquisition of the 
outstanding shares in Evotec Neurosciences not already 
owned), and partly through a capital increase against contri-
bution in cash with pre-emption rights for existing share-
holders, at the fixed price of € 2,72 per share. Through these 
capital increases Evotec secured approximately € 47 m in pro-
ceeds, which it intends to use to advance and expand the 
Company’s proprietary pipeline of drug candidates for the 
treatment of diseases of the central nervous system (CNS). 
Concomitantly, the number of shares increased to 62,759,424 
(2004: 38,010,130).

Development of Evotec share price 2005 (indexed)
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Stock option programme

In 2005, Evotec granted its staff a total of 889,400 stock op-
tions. In the first quarter, 120,000 of these were issued at an 
exercise price of € 3.61. A further 25,000 were granted on 11 
July 2005 at an exercise price of € 2.82, 610,000 on 30 August 
2005 at exercise prices of € 2.71 and € 2.80 and 134,400 
more on 16 December 2005 at exercise prices of € 2.59, 
€ 2.60 and € 2.73. During the course of the year, Evotec’s em-
ployees exercised 15,009 share options granted in previous 
years. As of 31 December 2005 a total of 3,126,635 options 
were available for future exercise, equivalent to approximately 
5 % of the Company’s share capital. A list of the stock options 
that have been issued can be found in the Notes on page 69.

Continuity in Evotec’s investor 
relations work, with a stronger focus on 
the US market

Evotec places great emphasis on communicating with profes-
sionals in the financial sector. In 2005, as the Company ex-
panded its pipeline of drug candidates for treatment of dis-
eases of the central nervous system, it was especially important 
to communicate proactively with investors and analysts as a 
means of getting across the Company’s strategy, of pointing 
to progress being made and of explaining the potential of 
 Evotec’s pipeline of drug candidates, with its associated op-
portunities and risks. 

To an even greater degree than before, in 2005 the manage-
ment entered into dialogue with professionals in the finan-
cial sector, giving approximately 130 one-to-one presentations 
at 18 national and international investor conferences, at the 
Company’s offices in Hamburg, Germany, and Oxford, UK as 
well as at 20 roadshows in key financial centres across Europe 
and the US. As the importance of Evotec’s own drug pipeline 
has grown, the Company has, since mid-2005, increased its 
investor relations activities in the US. The expertise of Ameri-
can biotech investors has proved very useful in conveying the 
potential of Evotec’s development programmes to the broad 
spectrum of potential investors. In addition, at Evotec’s Annual 
Shareholder Meeting in June 2005, shareholders showed great 
interest in how the Company was implementing its research 
and development strategy. A total of 270 shareholders were 
present, representing 51 % of the share capital (2004: 38 %). 
In addition to the specific investor relations events for the 
Company’s key followers, Evotec places significant emphasis 
on its internet site, which it updates and expands on a regular 
basis as part of its commitment to “Fair Disclosure of Informa-
tion”. Investors not only have the opportunity to read and 
download financial reports and press releases, but also to tune 
in live to telephone conferences regarding financial reporting, 
analyst conferences and numerous presentations given at in-
ternational investor conferences, as well as to the opening of 
the Annual Shareholder Meeting and the CEO’s address. A re-
play of these events is regularly available. 

Financial institutions which report on Evotec

Bank Vontobel AG 

BHF-Bank 

Cazenove Equities 

Credit Suisse 

DZ Bank AG 

equinet Institutional Services AG

Landesbank Baden-Württemberg

Sal. Oppenheim jr. & Cie. KGaA

SES Research GmbH

Shareholder structure

  1% Supervisory Board|Management Board  

>10 % ROI|Roland Oetker  

<10 % TVM

>80 % Free Float

Source: Evotec 02|2006
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Evotec has always been committed to 
responsible and value-driven corporate 
management. The Company complies 
with all but one (see declaration of 
 compliance) of the Corporate Govern-
ance recommendations as defined 
by the German Corporate Governance 
Code as published in the Federal 
 Gazette as well as with most of the 
suggestions the Code contains.

Declaration of compliance

In December 2005, the Management Board and the Supervi-
sory Board of Evotec stated in accordance with § 161 German 
Stock Corporation Act (AktG):

“Evotec AG intends to comply with the recommendations of 
the Governmental Commission on the German Corporate Gov-
ernance Code as published in the official section of the elec-
tronic Federal Gazette and has complied with such Code in 
2005 with the following exception: 
The stock option programmes in place are based on binding 
resolutions of several Annual General Meetings. While the ex-
ercise of these options requires an increase in the share price, 
the exercise is not related to other comparison parameters as 
recommended in Section 4.2.3 of the Code.”

Remuneration of the Supervisory Board

The members of Evotec’s Supervisory Board are entitled to a 
fixed and a performance-related remuneration. Chair and 
Deputy Chair positions in the Supervisory Board as well as the 
chair and membership in committees are considered in deter-
mining the fixed remuneration of the individual members.  

Besides the fixed remuneration and in accordance with the sug-
gestions of the Code, the members of the Supervisory Board 
receive a remuneration based on the Company’s long-term per-
formance: if the shareholders receive a dividend, every Supervi-
sory Board member will receive an extra € 500 for every cent 
that the dividend per share exceeds 15 cents. The 2005 Annual 
General Meeting has introduced an additional element of the 
remuneration to be made in shares of the Company in order to 
further align the interests of the individual Supervisory Board 
members and the development of Evotec’s share price.

For their contribution in 2005, the individual members of the 
Evotec Supervisory Board received the following compensation:

Corporate Governance
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Detailed report on remuneration of 
Management Board in the Notes

Evotec reports on the remuneration of every member of the 
Management Board separately in note 22 (f) of the Notes to 
consolidated financial statements (see page 75). In accord-
ance with the suggestions of the Code, the remuneration paid 
to Management Board members contains both a portion con-
tingent on the Company attaining set goals, such as revenue 
and profit targets, and a portion contingent on each member’s 
success in achieving his or her individual objectives for the 
year in question. In addition, Management Board members 
receive long-term incentives in the form of share options as a 
further variable portion of their remuneration with inherent 
risks. 

Ownership of shares and options 
by Board members

The share ownership of members of the Management Board and 
of the Supervisory Board on 31 December 2005 was as follows:

Ownership as of 31 December 2005

Management Board No. of shares No. of stock options

Joern Aldag 298,056 312,600

Dr Dirk H Ehlers 4,540 171,500

Supervisory Board No. of shares No. of stock options

Prof Dr Heinz Riesenhuber 132,480 0

Peer Schatz 3,892 0

Dr Hubert Birner 0 0

Dr Peter Fellner 0 0

Dr Alfred Oberholz 0 0

Mary Tanner 46,690 0

Compensation of the Supervisory Board 2005

Remuneration

Names of members
Period of office  

Supervisory Board
Period of office  

committee

Supervisory 
Board 

in Euro 

Remuneration and 
Audit Committee 

in Euro

Equity-based 
compensation 

in Euro 
Total 

in Euro

Prof Dr Heinz Riesenhuber 01.01.-31.12. RC 01.01.-31.12. 30,000.00 7,500.00 15,000.00 52,500.00

Peer Schatz 01.01.-31.12. RC 01.01.-07.06. 22,500.00 9,113.01 11,250.00 42,863.01

AC 01.01.-31.12.

Dr Hubert Birner 07.06.-31.12. RC 07.06.-31.12. 8,547.95 2,455.49 4,273.97 15,277.41

AC 01.12.-31.12.

Dr Peter Fellner 07.06.-31.12. RC 07.06.-31.12. 8,547.95 2,136.99 4,273.97 14,958.91

Dr Alfred Oberholz 07.06.-31.12. AC 07.06.-30.11. 8,547.95 1,818.49 4,273.97 14,640.41

Mary Tanner 19.01.-31.12. AC 07.06.-31.12. 14,260.27 2,136.99 7,130.14 23,527.40

Dr Pol Bamelis 01.01.-07.06. AC 01.01.-07.06. 6,452.05 1,613.01 3,226.03 11,291.09

Dr Karsten Henco 01.01.-07.06. – 6,452.05 0.00 3,226.03 9,678.08

Dr Edwin Moses 01.01.-11.04. AC 01.01.-11.04. 4,150.68 1,037.67 2,075.34 7,263.69

Totals 109,458.90 27,811.65 54,729.45 192,000.00

RC = Remuneration Committee | AC = Audit Committee
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Directors’ Dealings continuously reported

Evotec AG continuously reports the purchase or sale of shares 
in the Company by members of the Management Board, the 
Supervisory Board and other key employees as foreseen in 
Section 6.6 of the Code.
In 2005, in context with Management or Supervisory Board 
members participating in the secondary offering in June with 
pre-emption rights to Evotec shareholders the following Direc-
tors’ Dealings were reported:

Suggested actions also generally 
complied with

In addition to complying with the recommendations of the Cor-
porate Governance Code as described above, the Company also 
conforms to most of the suggestions laid down in the Code.

Best possible support and transparency 
at Annual General Meetings

Evotec offers shareholders who are unable to attend Annual 
General Meetings the opportunity to access key parts of the 
event live on the Internet (Section 2.3.4). The Company also 
encourages non-attendees to exercise their voting rights by 
arranging Company independent proxies. 

Supervisory Board committees set up 
in accordance with the Code

Evotec has set up an Audit Committee with a spectrum of tasks 
comprising financial reports, risk management and guarantee-
ing the auditors’ independence. The Company has also set up a 
Remuneration Committee (Sections 5.1.2 and 5.3.3 of the 
Code), which, among other things, prepares the appointment of 
new members to the Management Board. As suggested in Sec-
tion 5.1.2 of the Code each appointment is effective for a maxi-
mum of three years. Evotec also makes sure that neither the 
Chairman of the Supervisory Board nor a former member of 
the Management Board serve as Chair of the Audit Committee 
(Sections 5.2 and 5.3.2). In addition, the Company complies 
with the suggestion for Supervisory Board members to hold oc-
casional separate preliminary discussions (Section 3.6).

Evotec’s IR publications in both 
English and German

Evotec is committed to “Fair Disclosure of Information”. It is the 
Company’s prime concern in its corporate communication strat-
egy that the same information is made available to all relevant 
target groups at the same time, and this implies communicating 
in both English and German. The Company’s publications are 
readily available on its website for viewing or downloading.

Additional information relevant to Corporate Governance can 
be found in the report of the Supervisory Board (page 78). In-
formation on professional affiliations of Board members, on 
related party transactions as well as on stock-based compen-
sation and on consolidated subsidiaries and equity investees 
are available on pages 80, 73, 69 and 75. 

Directors’ Dealings 2005

Date Person and function
Type of 

transaction
No. of 

shares
Share 
price

23 June Prof Dr Heinz Riesenhuber, 
Chairman of the 
Supervisory Board

Purchase 22,080 2.72 €

23 June Mary C Tanner, 
Member of the 
Supervisory Board

Purchase 46,690 2.72 €

23 June Dr John Kemp, 
Executive Vice President 
Research & Development 
Pharmaceuticals Division

Purchase 45,000 2.72 €

24 June TVM V Life Science 
Ventures GmbH & Co. KG, 
Munich/D, to be published 
according to § 15a 
paragraph 3 sentence 2 
WpHG due to the function 
of Dr Hubert Birner, 
Member of the Supervisory 
Board of Evotec AG

Purchase 2,490,159 2.72 €
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Auditors’ Report
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We have rendered the audit opinion in German, 
which was translated as follows:

We have audited the consolidated financial statements pre-
pared by the Evotec AG (formerly Evotec OAI AG), Hamburg, 
comprising the balance sheet, the income statement, state-
ment of changes in equity, cash flow statement and the notes 
to the consolidated financial statements, together with the 
group management report for the business year from Janu-
ary 1 to December 31, 2005. The preparation of the consoli-
dated financial statements and the group management report 
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the EU, and the addi-
tional requirements of German commercial law pursuant to 
§ 315a par. 1 HGB are the responsibility of the parent compa-
ny’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on the consolidated financial statements and on the group 
management report based on our audit. 
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial state-
ments in accordance with § 317 HGB (Handelsgesetzbuch 
“German Commercial Code”) and German generally accepted 
standards for the audit of financial statements promulgated 
by the Institut der Wirtschaftsprüfer (IDW). Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit such that misstate-
ments materially affecting the presentation of the net assets, 
financial position and results of operations in the consolidated 
financial statements in accordance with the applicable finan-
cial reporting framework and in the group management report 
are detected with reasonable assurance. Knowledge of the 
business activities and the economic and legal environment of 
the Group and expectations as to possible misstatements are 
taken into account in the determination of audit procedures. 
The effectiveness of the accounting-related internal control 
system and the evidence supporting the disclosures in the 
consolidated financial statements and the group management 
report are examined primarily on a test basis within the frame-
work of the audit. The audit includes assessing the annual fi-
nancial statements of those entities included in consolidation, 
the determination of entities to be included in consolidation, 
the accounting and consolidation principles used and signifi-
cant estimates made by management, as well as evaluation 
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial state-
ments and the group management report. We believe that our 
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit has not led to any reservations.
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In our opinion, based on the findings of our audit, the consoli-
dated financial statements comply with IFRSs as adopted by 
the EU, the additional requirements of German commercial 
law pursuant to § 315a par. 1 HGB and give a true and fair view 
of the net assets, financial position and results of operations of 
the Group in accordance with these requirements. The group 
management report is consistent with the consolidated finan-
cial statements and as a whole provides a suitable view of the 
Group’s position and suitably presents the opportunities and 
risks of future development.

Hamburg, February 28, 2006

KPMG Deutsche Treuhand-Gesellschaft
Aktiengesellschaft
Wirtschaftsprüfungsgesellschaft

Schadeck Dr. Haußer
German Public Auditor German Public Auditor
(Wirtschaftsprüfer) (Wirtschaftsprüfer)



1)

1)

1) Ratios unaudited
2) 94,131,629 and 53,210,130 shares, 1€ nominal amount, authorised at 31 December 2005 and 2004, respectively
 62,759,424 and 38,010,130 shares issued and outstanding in 2005 and 2004, respectively

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Evotec AG (formerly: Evotec OAI AG) and Subsidiaries
Consolidated balance sheets according to IFRS

T€ except share data    Footnote reference 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004 Δ 05/04 in%

Assets    

Current assets:       

– Cash and cash equivalents    (4) 53,520 15,277 250.33

– Trade accounts receivable    (5) 12,758 14,689 (13.15)

– Accounts receivable due from related parties    840 1,035 (18.84)

– Inventories    (6) 10,502 10,099 3.99

– Current tax receivables     531 620 (14.35)

– Prepaid expenses and other current assets    3,822 3,149 21.37

Total current assets     81,973 44,869 82.69

Non-current assets:       

Long-term investments    (7) – 3,048 (100.00)

Property, plant and equipment    (8) 38,163 37,762 1.06

Intangible assets, excluding goodwill    (9) 10,927 7,963 37.22

Goodwill    (9) 54,994 52,751 4.25

Deferred tax assets    (13) – 99 (100.00)

Other non-current assets     54 52 3.85

Total non-current assets     104,138 101,675 2.42

Total assets     186,111 146,544 27.00

       Footnote reference 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004 Δ 05/04 in%

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Current liabilities:       

– Current maturities of long-term loans    (10) 6,042 1,240 387.26

– Current portion of fi nance lease obligations   (11) 1,702 786 116.54

– Trade accounts payable     8,105 6,353 27.58

– Accounts payable to related parties     6 117 (94.87)

– Advanced payments received     801 609 31.53

– Provisions    (12) 6,563 5,994 9.49

– Deferred revenues     4,417 4,833 (8.61)

– Current tax payables     125 7 –

– Other current liabilities     1,911 1,573 21.49

Total current liabilities     29,672 21,512 37.93

Non-current liabilities:       

Long-term loans    (10) 3,399 9,591 (64.56)

Long-term fi nance lease obligations    (11) 2,130 2,055 3.65

Deferred tax liabilities    (13) – 1,926 (100.00)

Deferred revenues     726 845 (14.08)

Provisions    (12) 1,515 107 –

Total non-current liabilities:     7,770 14,524 (46.50)

Stockholders’ equity:       

– Share capital 2)    (15) 62,759 38,010 65.11

– Additional paid-in capital     596,525 552,360 8.00

– Reserve     (36,207) (39,611) (8.59)

– Retained defi cit     (474,408) (440,825)  7.62

– Minority interests     – 574 (100.00)

Total stockholders’ equity     148,669 110,508 34.53

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity     186,111 146,544 27.00
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1)

Evotec AG (formerly: Evotec OAI AG) and Subsidiaries
Consolidated statements of operations according to IFRS

T€ except share data and per share data    Footnote reference 2005 2004 Δ 05/04 in%

Revenue:       

– Drug discovery products & development of technologies    15,945 17,808 (10.46)

– Drug discovery services     63,840 54,922 16.24

Total revenue     79,785 72,730 9.70

Costs of revenue:

– Drug discovery products & development of technologies    7,987 8,955 (10.81)

– Drug discovery services     42,833 38,979 9.89

Total costs of revenue     50,820 47,934 6.02

Gross profit     28,965 24,796 16.81

Operating costs and expenses:

– Research and development expenses     14,088 13,490 4.43

– Selling, general and administrative expenses    19,902 19,419 2.49

– Amortisation of intangible assets    (9) 9,733 10,074 (3.38)

– Impairment of goodwill    (9) 18,478 45,328 (59.23)

– Impairment of tangible assets    (8) (643) 18,523 (103.47)

– Restructuring expenses     917 – 100.00

– Other operating expenses     2,163 3,584 (39.65)

Total operating costs and expenses     64,638 110,418 (41.46)

Operating loss     (35,673) (85,622) (58.34)

Other non-operating income (expense) 

– Interest income     856 451 89.80

– Interest expense     (729) (847) (13.93)

– Loss from equity investments    (7) (2,552) (3,452) (26.07)

– Foreign currency exchange gain (loss), net    (731) 915 (179.89)

– Other non-operating income     940 875 7.43

Total non-operating income     (2,216) (2,058) 7.68

Loss before taxes and minority interests     (37,889) (87,680) (56.79)

– Current tax income (expense)    (13) (235) 83 (383.13)

– Deferred tax benefit    (13) 4,748 9,694 (51.02)

– Minority interests     (207) 91 (327.47)

Net loss     (33,583) (77,812) (56.84)

          

Weighted average shares outstanding     51,987,921 36,630,348

Net loss per share     (0.65) (2.12)

1) Ratios unaudited

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Evotec AG (formerly: Evotec OAI AG) and Subsidiaries
Consolidated statements of cash flows according to IFRS

T€       31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004

Cash flows from operating activities:  

Net loss      (33,583) (77,812)

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities: 

– Depreciation of property, plant and equipment    7,187 9,203

– Amortisation of intangible assets     9,733 10,074

– Depreciation of current assets     1,769 1,133

– Impairment of tangible assets     (643) 18,523

– Impairment of goodwill     18,478 45,328

– Impairment of investment in affiliates     324 –

– Net loss from equity investments     2,228 3,452

– Stock compensation expense     749 284

– Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment    12 71

– Deferred tax benefit     (4,753) (9,694)

– Minority interests     207 (91)

Decrease (increase) in:     

– Accounts receivable     2,192 (8,081)

– Inventories     (1,903) (769)

– Other assets     (228) 1,165

Increase (decrease) in:      

– Accounts payable     1,585 2,175

– Advanced payments received     192 (308)

– Deferred revenues     (2,515) 1,113

– Provisions     659 165

– Current taxes payable     246 79

– Other liabilities     1,060 1,021

Cash paid during the year for:      

– Interest     (760) (756)

– Taxes     (326) (134)

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities    1,910 (3,859)

Cash flows from investing activities:

– Acquisition costs     (366) –

– Purchase of long-term investments     (2,369) (3,861)

– Purchase of property, plant and equipment    (3,757) (1,488)

– Purchase of intangible assets     (3,796) (454)

– Cash acquired     19,244 –

– Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment    24 107

– Proceeds from sale of marketable securities    – 732

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities    8,980 (4,964)

Cash flows from financing activities:

– Proceeds from capital increase     28,460 7,500

– Proceeds from increase of loans     6,206 5,459

– Repayment of loans     (8,415) (7,760)

Net cash provided by financing activities    26,251 5,199

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents    37,141 (3,624)

Exchange rate difference     1,102 138

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year    15,277 18,763 

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year     53,520 15,277

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Evotec AG (formerly: Evotec OAI AG) and Subsidiaries
Supplemental disclosures of cash flow information

T€       31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004

Supplemental schedule of non-cash activities: 

– Acquisition of long-term investments     40,802 –

– Additions to finance leases     1,590 1,257

– Share capital in ENS Holdings, Inc.     – 5,475

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Evotec AG (formerly: Evotec OAI AG) and Subsidiaries
Consolidated fixed asset movement schedule according to IFRS

 Acquisition and manufacturing costs 

    Foreign      
T€  01 Jan 2005 exchange Additions Disposals Reclass 31 Dec 2005 

I. Intangible assets

 1. Patents and licences 3,061 – 3,190 – – 6,251 

 2. Goodwill 52,7513) 1,513 19,208 18,478 – 54,994 

 3. Capitalised development expenses 518 – 659 – – 1,177 

 4. Developed technology 29,389 778 577 – – 30,744 

 5. Customer list 19,775 567 8,416 – – 28,758 

   105,494 2,858 32,050 18,478 – 121,924 

II. Tangible fixed assets

 1. Buildings and leasehold 

  improvements 26,884   761   18   –   –   27,663   

 2. Plant, machinery and equipment 53,198   1,247   3,465   1,013   267   57,164   

 3. Furniture and fixtures 10,947   258   943   143   (68)   11,937   

 4. Purchased software 1,264   –   91   –   –   1,355   

 5. Finance leases 3,900   112   648   –   1,093   5,753   

 6. Assets under construction 33   –   1,301   –   (1,292)   42   

   96,226   2,378   6,466   1,156   –   103,914   

III. Financial assets

 1.  Long-term investments 3,484   –   1,780   4,504   –   760   

 2. Other financial assets 52   –   2   –   –   54   

   3,536   –   1,782   4,504   –   814   

   205,256   5,236   40,298   24,138   –   226,652   

 1)  calculated at the yearly average foreign exchange rate results in a decrease of T€ 346
2)  calculated at the yearly average foreign exchange rate results in a decrease of T€ 395
3)  net of accumulated amortisation as of 31 December 2001 of T€ 162,195 and impairment as of 2002 and 2004 of T€ 109,389 and T€ 55,824, respectively

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Evotec AG (formerly: Evotec OAI AG) and Subsidiaries
Consolidated statements of changes in stockholders’ equity according to IFRS

 Share capital Reserve 

       Additional  Unearned Foreign currency Revaluation 

T€ except share data  Shares Amount paid-in capital compensation translation reserve 

Balance at 01 January 2004  35,510,130   35,510   540,035   (150)  (40,046)  744  

Capital increase   2,500,000   2,500   5,000   –   –   –  

Share capital in ENS Holdings, Inc.   –   –   5,475   –   –   –  

Stock option plan   –   –   1,850   (1,566)   –   –  

Foreign currency translation   –   –   –   –   1,041   –  

Revaluation   –   –   –   –   –   366  

Net loss    –   –   –   –   –   –  

Minority interests   –   –   –   –   –   –  

Balance at 31 December 2004   38,010,130   38,010   552,360   (1,716)  (39,005)  1,110  

Acquisition of ENS Holdings, Inc.   14,276,883   14,277   26,266   –   –   –  

Capital increase 24 June   10,457,402   10,457   17,880   –   –   –  

Capital increase (stock options)   15,009   15   19   –   –   –  

Stock option plan   –   –   –   749   –   –  

Stock option plan acquired   –   –   –   (655)  –   –  

Foreign currency translation   –   –   –   –   3,149   –  

Revaluation   –   –   –   –   –   161  

Net loss    –   –   –   –   –   –  

Minority interests   –   –   –   –   –   –  

Balance at 31 December 2005  62,759,424   62,759   596,525   (1,622)  (35,856)  1,271  

 See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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 Depreciation, amortisation and writedowns Net book value

 Foreign 
01 Jan 2005 exchange Additions Disposals Reclass Revaluation 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004

2,611 – 637 – – – 3,248 3,003 450

– – – – – – – 54,994 52,751

44 – 119 – – – 163 1,014 474

25,317 665 4,262 – – – 30,244 500 4,072

16,808 479 5,061 – – – 22,348 6,410 2,967

44,780 1,144 10,0791) – – – 56,003 65,921 60,714

12,397   382   1,418   –   – (213) 13,984   13,679   14,487  

35,387   911   3,865   982   (24) (540)   38,617   18,547   17,811  

8,231   219   1,257   126   – 14 9,595   2,342   2,716  

1,068   –   133   –   – – 1,201   154   196  

1,381   40   909   –   24 –   2,354   3,399   2,519  

–   –   –   –   – – –   42   33  

58,464   1,552   7,5822) 1,108   – (739)   65,751   38,163   37,762 

436   –   324   –   – –   760   –   3,048  

–   –   –   –   – –   –   54   52  

436   –   324   –   – –   760   54   3,100 

103,680   2,696   17,985   1,108   – (739)   122,514   104,138   101,576  

Total
Retained Minority stockholders’

deficit interests equity

 (363,013)  665   173,745 

 –   –   7,500 

 –   –   5,475 

 –   –   284 

 –   –   1,041 

 –   –   366 

 (77,812)  –   (77,812)

 –   (91)  (91)

 (440,825)  574   110,508 

 –   –   40,543 

 –   –   28,337 

 –   –   34 

 –   –   749 

 –   –   (655)

 –   –   3,149 

 –   –   161 

 (33,583)  –   (33,583)

 –   (574)  (574)

 (474,408) 0   148,669 
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(1) Business Description and Basis of Presentation

Evotec AG (formerly Evotec OAI AG) and subsidiaries (“Evotec” 
or the “Company”) is a biotechnology group dedicated to the 
discovery and development of novel small molecule drugs 
through both its own discovery programmes and through con-
tract research partnerships. The Company provides innovative 
and often integrated solutions from target to clinic through an 
unmatched range of capabilities, including early stage assay 
development and screening through to medicinal chemistry 
and drug manufacturing. In proprietary projects, Evotec spe-
cialises in finding new treatments for diseases of the central 
nervous system (CNS). The Company’s instrument business is 
focused on high-end technologies for automated cell biology.

The Company was founded on 8 December 1993 as EVOTEC 
BioSystems GmbH. Evotec completed an initial public offering 
in Germany on 10 November 1999. 

All amounts herein are shown in thousands of Euro (“T€”), un-
less indicated otherwise.

(2) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

According to Section 315a HGB (German Commercial Law) 
the Company’s consolidated financial statements of 31 De-
cember 2005 are prepared in accordance with International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). The following is a sum-
mary of significant accounting policies followed in the prepa-
ration of the accompanying consolidated financial statements 
and in preparing opening consolidated financial statements at 
1 January 2004 for the purpose of transition to IFRS.

Transition to International Financial Reporting Standards
The following is an explanation of how the transition from U.S. 
GAAP to IFRS has affected the Company’s consolidated finan-
cial statements and financial position. The main subjects are 
discussed.

Evotec AG and Subsidiaries
Notes to consolidated financial statements

1.  Property, plant and equipment – under U.S. GAAP the de-
preciation method as well as the useful lives of property, 
plant and equipment are determined at the time of pur-
chase. Under IFRS the useful lives as well as the deprecia-
tion method have to be checked at least once a year. Differ-
ences that arose from the first time application of IFRS shall 
be accounted as revaluation.

2.  Impairment (goodwill) – under U.S. GAAP impairment is de-
termined by comparing the value of the cash generating 
unit (reporting unit) to which goodwill is attributed using 
after tax cash flows discounted at an after tax discount rate, 
to the fair value of the assets of that reporting unit.  Under 
IFRS no fair value adjustments are made and pre-tax cash 
flows and pre-tax discount rates are used.  

3.  Impairment (property, plant and equipment) – under U.S. 
GAAP, where there is an indication of an impairment of a 
fixed asset, the impairment is calculated by determining 
the value of the asset to the business using non-discounted 
cash flows and comparing this to the carrying value.  Under 
IFRS a similar method to that of goodwill impairment is 
used.  Asset impairments under IFRS may be reversed if 
conditions change.

4.  Accrued liabilities – under U.S. GAAP unrecorded liabilities 
are shown under accrued liabilities. Under IFRS unrecorded 
liabilities are part of other liabilities.

5.  Transaction costs – under U.S. GAAP transaction costs for 
equity transactions are expensed. According to IFRS those 
costs that are directly attributable to the equity transaction 
are subtracted from equity.

6.  Stock compensation – under U.S. GAAP the Company has 
elected to apply the provisions of Accounting Principles 
Board Opinion (“APB”) No. 25, in accounting for options 
granted under its stock option plan. Compensation cost is 
measured using the intrinsic value method and is charged 
to expense over the vesting period. Starting 1 July 2005 the 
Company has adopted SFAS 123R. Under IFRS 2 compen-
sation cost is measured using the fair value method at the 
measurement date and is charged to expense over an esti-
mated service period.

7.  Research and development – under U.S. GAAP research 
and development costs are expensed as incurred. Under 
IFRS expenses have to be capitalised if several criteria set 
out in IAS 38 are met.
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The definition of cash flows did not change due to the transi-
tion to IFRS. The changes to the cash flow resulted from the 
above mentioned accounting differences.

Principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 
accordance with IFRS adopted by the International Accounting 
Standards Board, London (IASB) in consideration of interpre-
tations of the Standing Interpretations Committee (SIC) and 
the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Commit-
tee (IFRIC) and include the accounts of Evotec AG and all com-
panies which are under its control. All intercompany transac-
tions and balances have been eliminated in consolidation. The 
basis of consolidation changed as of 26 May 2005. From this 
date ENS Holdings, Inc. (ENS) has been a 100 % owned sub-
sidiary and therefore fully consolidated. As of 31 March 2004 
ENS Holdings, Inc. was accounted for using the equity method. 
Therefore, the consolidated financial statements of 2005 are 
not fully comparable to the ones of 2004. The following unau-
dited pro forma information is based on the assumption that 
the investment in ENS Holdings, Inc. occurred as of 1 January 
2004:

T€ except per share data 2005 2004

Pro forma revenues 81,707 74,135

Pro forma net loss 34,437 78,668

Pro forma net loss per share 0.66 2.15

The total assets of ENS amounted to T€ 22,457 and the total 
liabilities were T€ 2,703 as of the date of acquisition. 
Investments where Evotec does not have a controlling interest, 
but is in a position to influence the operating or capital deci-
sions of the investee are carried at equity.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid short-term invest-
ments with original maturities of three months or less to be 
cash equivalents. 

Derivative financial instruments
In accordance with IAS 39, the Company has classified all of 
its debts and equity securities as available-for-sale and states 
them at fair value as determined by the most recently traded 
price of each security at the balance sheet date. Any resulting 
unrealised gains or losses are included in the revaluation re-
serve, a separate component of stockholders’ equity. 
Realised gains and losses from the sale of available-for-sale 
securities are determined based on specific identification of 
the cost of securities sold and are reported in other non-oper-
ating income and expense.

Inventories
In accordance with IAS 2 inventories are valued at the lower of 
cost or net realisable value, cost being generally determined 
on the basis of an average method. Net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less 
the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses. Cost 
consists of purchased component costs and manufacturing 
costs, which are comprised of direct material and labour costs 
and certain indirect costs. Costs are removed from inventories 
to costs of revenue based on specific identification.

Equity reconciliation in T€
31 Dec 2004

U.S. GAAP
Reconciliation 

prior years
Reconciliation 

2004
31 Dec 2004

IFRS

Inventories 10,080 – 19 10,099

Current deferred tax assets 99 (76) (23) –

Long-term investments 2,796 – 252 3,048

Property, plant and equipment 41,545 744 (4,527) 37,762

Intangible assets, excluding goodwill 7,507 222 234 7,963

Goodwill 41,685 – 11,066 52,751

Non-current deferred tax assets – 76 23 99

Adjustments to total assets 966 7,044

Trade accounts payable 4,679 1,439 235 6,353

Accrued liabilities 7,042 (1,452) 404 5,994

Deferred tax liabilities 2,466 - (540) 1,926

Additional paid-in capital 550,533 1,850 (23) 552,360

Reserve (39,082) (1,106) 577 (39,611)

Retained deficit (447,451) 235 6,391 (440,825)

Total adjustments to liabilities and stockholders’ equity 966 7,044

Reconciliation to IFRS of 2004 results in T€

Net loss according to U.S. GAAP (84,203)

Costs of revenue (125)

Research and development expenses 282

Selling, general and administrative expenses (95)

Amortisation of intangible assets (44)

Impairment of goodwill 10,496

Impairment of tangible assets (4,888)

Interest expense (27)

Net loss from equity investments 252

Deferred tax benefit 540

Net loss according to IFRS (77,812)
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Property, Plant and Equipment
Property, plant and equipment acquisitions, including lease-
hold improvements, are recorded at cost less any vendor re-
bates. Depreciation of leasehold improvements is calculated 
using the straight-line method over the shorter of the related 
lease term or the estimated useful life. Leased property, plant 
and equipment meeting certain criteria are capitalised and 
the present value of the related lease payments is recorded as 
a liability. Depreciation of property, plant and equipment, 
which includes depreciation of assets under finance leases, is 
calculated using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings and leasehold improvements 11–35 years

Plant, machinery and equipment 3–20 years

Furniture and fixtures 3–15 years

Computer equipment and software 3– 5 years

The depreciation period and method is reviewed at each bal-
ance sheet date and potential differences are recognised in the 
revaluation reserve. Differences from previous estimates shall 
be accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate in ac-
cordance with IAS 8. The costs included in property, plant and 
equipment related to assets under construction are not depre-
ciated until the assets are placed into service by the Company. 
Upon sale or retirement, the costs and the related accumulated 
depreciation are removed from the respective accounts, and 
any gain or loss is included in other operating income and ex-
pense. Maintenance and repairs are expensed as incurred.

Intangible Assets, excluding Goodwill
Intangible assets, excluding goodwill, consist of separately 
identified intangible assets such as developed technologies, 
customer lists and patents which were acquired in business 
combinations, purchased licenses and patents, as well as cap-
italised development expenditures according to IAS 38. 
Intangible assets with definite useful lives are recorded at cost 
and are amortised using the straight-line method over the es-
timated useful lives of the assets:

Developed technologies 3–5 years

Customer list 3–5 years

Patents and licenses 15 years or shorter life

Capitalised development expenditures 4–5 years

The amortisation period and method is reviewed at each bal-
ance sheet date. 

Goodwill
Goodwill acquired in a business combination represents the 
exceeding amount of a payment made by the Company in 
anticipation of future economic benefits not capable of being 
individually identified and separately recognised. The Com-
pany recognises separately the acquired identifiable assets, 
liabilities and contingent liabilities at the acquisition date. 
The goodwill results mainly from the acquisition of Oxford 
Asymmetry International plc. in October 2000 and the acquisi-
tion of the remaining shares in ENS Holdings, Inc. in May 
2005.  Additional goodwill has arisen from the acquisition of 
the remaining minority interests in Evotec (Scotland) Limited 

(formerly  ProPharma Limited) from the founding directors in 
May 2004 and the University of Strathclyde in September 
2005. 
The acquisition of the remaining shares in ENS Holdings, Inc. 
was made on a share for share basis. The Company issued 
14,276,883 shares to acquire the outstanding shares in ENS 
Holdings, Inc. Since then ENS Holdings, Inc. is a 100 % owned 
subsidiary and therefore a fully consolidated company. The 
purchase price was allocated to the assets acquired as well as 
to goodwill (T€ 18,478). 
In May 2004 the Company acquired 19,000 shares in Evotec 
(Scotland) Limited from the founding directors for the initial 
sum of T€ 362. In addition to the initial sum, further consid-
eration is payable based on the financial performance of the 
Company between May 2004 and December 2006. The de-
ferred consideration is estimated at T€ 1,193 and T€ 573 in 
2005 and 2004, respectively. In respect of this share purchase, 
goodwill of T€ 117 was recognised on the date of purchase. 
Goodwill was increased to T€ 663 based on the estimate at 
the balance sheet date 2004 of the consideration due to be 
paid at year end 2006. This estimate was revised at the bal-
ance sheet date 2005 increasing goodwill to T€ 1,258. 
In September 2005 the Company purchased the remaining 
18,000 shares in Evotec (Scotland) Limited for the sum of 
T€ 586. This acquisition resulted in additional goodwill 
amounting to T€ 153 in 2005. 

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic 
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Com-
pany based upon the performance requirements of the re-
spective agreements. Advance payments received in excess of 
amounts earned are recorded as deferred revenue. Revenue 
under long-term collaborative agreements includes but is not 
limited to the following:

1.  Database Access Fees – Revenue from database access fees 
is recognised rateably over the related contract period.

2.  Research Payments – Revenue from research payments fi-
nances both direct costs incurred in connection with the 
Company‘s ongoing research and development activities 
and indirect costs incurred as part of an allocation of cer-
tain other administrative expenses. Revenue from research 
payments is recognised rateably over the related forecasted 
research period as services are provided.

3.  Success Payments – Revenue contingent upon the attain-
ment of certain milestones is recognised in the period the 
milestone is successfully achieved. This usually occurs 
when the contract partner agrees that the requirements 
stipulated in the agreement have been met.

Revenues from the sale of systems, equipment and devices 
are recognised when the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits associ-
ated with the transaction will flow to the Company. For the 
recognition of revenue Evotec has transferred to the buyer the 
significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods and 
retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the de-
gree usually associated with ownership nor effective control 
over the goods sold. The costs incurred or to be incurred in 
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respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. Revenues 
from the sale of systems, equipment and devices are recorded 
at the time of delivery, title transfer or upon final acceptance 
by the customer as required by agreement. Advance payments 
received are recorded as prepayments received.
Product and chemical compound sales are recorded as revenue 
upon delivery if the Company has received a customer order, the 
price is determinable and collectibility is reasonably assured. 
The Company assesses collectibility based on a number of fac-
tors, including past transaction history with the customer and 
their credit-worthiness. 
Service revenues generated from contracted services are rec-
ognised as the services are rendered. Revenue from com-
pound access fees is recognised rateably over the related fore-
casted service period. Payments for contracted services are 
generally paid in advance and recorded as deferred revenue 
until earned. Some contracted services are settled in part by 
non-monetary payments. Due to the relatively insignificant 
portion of the contract value which is represented by the non-
monetary portion, revenues derived from these particular con-
tracts are recognised on the same basis as that used in mon-
etary transactions. 
The Company has entered into multiple-element contracts 
and carefully determined whether the different revenue-gen-
erating elements are sufficiently separable and whether there 
exists sufficient evidence of their fair values to separately ac-
count for some or all of the individual elements of the con-
tracts. Only if an element is considered to meet these criteria 
it represents a separate unit of accounting.
Under the terms of various contractual arrangements, Evotec 
receives royalty payments which are incremental to the other 
company’s respective product sales. Royalty income of 
T€ 1,062 and T€ 586 is included in product revenue for 2005 
and 2004, respectively.

Derivative policy
The Company does not engage in derivatives trading, market-
making or other speculative activities. The Company periodi-
cally enters into agreements to obtain foreign currencies at 
specified rates based on expected future cash flows for each 
currency. 

Income Taxes
Under the liability method, deferred tax assets and liabilities 
are recognised for the future tax consequences attributable to 
differences between the financial statement carrying amounts 
of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases 
as well as for tax loss carry forwards. Deferred tax assets and 
liabilities are measured using tax rates expected to apply to 
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differ-
ences are expected to be realised or settled based on enacted 
or substantially enacted tax rates. The effect on deferred tax 
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognised in 
the period that includes the date of enactment or substantially 
enactment. In assessing the recoverability of deferred tax as-
sets, management considers whether it is probable that some 
portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realised. 
Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is not 
probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

Research and Development
Research and development costs that are internally generated 
are capitalised or expensed depending on whether the ex-
penditure incurred falls under the classifications of research 
or development expenditure given by IAS 38. When it is not 
certain that research and development projects will generate 
probable future economic benefits, the costs are expensed as 
incurred. Those projects which are expected to generate prob-
able future economic benefits are capitalised as an intangible 
asset and amortised if several criteria set out in IAS 38 are 
met. This principle is also used for the accounting of devel-
oped software. The software included in property, plant and 
equipment consists only of purchased software.
The Company receives grants from government authorities for 
the support of specific research and development projects. 
The grants are requested when qualifying expenses have been 
incurred and are recognised as a reduction of research and 
development expense when they are received. The amounts 
recognised as a reduction of the Company‘s research and de-
velopment expense were T€ 1,483 and T€ 1,514 in 2005 and 
2004, respectively. Under the terms of the grants, the govern-
mental agencies generally have the right to audit the submit-
ted qualifying expenses of the Company. 

Translation of Foreign Operations and Foreign Currency 
 Denominated Transactions
The assets and liabilities of foreign subsidiaries with functional 
currencies other than the Euro are translated into Euro using 
period-end exchange rates, while the revenues and expenses 
of such subsidiaries are translated using average exchange 
rates during the period. Gains or losses resulting from trans-
lating foreign functional currency financial statements are re-
ported as a separate component of stockholders‘ equity. 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Euro 
 using the foreign exchange rate ruling at the date of the trans-
action. Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign curren-
cies at the balance sheet date are translated into Euro using 
period-end exchange rates. Gains or losses resulting from for-
eign currency denominated transactions are included in other 
non-operating income and expense.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and Goodwill
The Company reviews long-lived assets (tangible and intangi-
ble assets including goodwill) for impairment in accordance 
with IAS 36 and as part of a business combination IFRS 3. An 
impairment review is performed annually for intangible assets 
and goodwill, or whenever events or changes in circumstances 
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset or assets may 
not be recoverable.
An impairment loss is recognised if an asset (or a group of as-
sets when considering a cash generating unit) carrying amount 
in the accounts exceeds the greater of its fair value less costs 
to sell or value in use. The value in use for an asset or cash 
generating unit is calculated by estimating the pre-tax net 
present value of future cash flows arising from that asset or 
cash generating unit. The pre-tax discount rate used to calcu-
late the value in use is determined to reflect the risks inherent 
for each asset or cash generating unit. Considerable manage-
ment judgement is necessary to estimate discounted pre-tax 
future cash flows. 

45|Evotec shares 78|Report of the Supervisory Board48|Corporate Governance 51|Consolidated financial statements



Any impairment is reported as a separate component of oper-
ating costs and expenses in the consolidated statement of 
 operations. An impairment of tangible assets and intangible 
assets excluding goodwill is reversed if there has been a 
change in the estimates used to determine the value in use 
leading to an increase in value for a previously impaired asset. 
It is reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have 
been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no 
impairment loss had been previously recognised. Impairments 
to the carrying amount of goodwill are not reversed. 
In line with our policy in previous years concerning the impair-
ment of long-lived assets and goodwill, the company carried 
out an impairment test in the fourth quarter of 2005 (see 
note (9)). 

Stock Compensation
The Company applies the provisions of IFRS 2 in accounting 
for options granted under its stock option plan. Compensation 
cost from the issuance of employee stock options is measured 
using the fair value method at the measurement date and is 
charged to expense over an estimated period in which the em-
ployee renders the services. 

Use of Estimates
The preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements requires management to make estimates and as-
sumptions that affect both the reported amounts of assets 
and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and lia-
bilities as of the date of the financial statements as well as the 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the re-
porting period. Main estimates and assumptions affect impair-
ment testing, provisions, measurement of compensation ex-
pense and the valuation allowance on deferred taxes. Actual 
results could differ from management’s estimates. In addition, 
changes in the current economic conditions and other events 
could also have a significant effect on reported amounts. 

EBITDA 
EBITDA stands for earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation 
(incl. allowance for accounts receivables and inventories) and 
amortisation. 

(3) Use Restrictions on the Company’s Technology

Evotec was subject to certain restrictions concerning technolo-
gies arising in the course of its cooperations with Glaxo Smith-
Kline (GSK) and Novartis. 
A fourth amendment to the contract with GSK, signed in May 
2001, allows Evotec to sell detection systems and liquid han-
dling devices, which have a restricted throughput of com-
pounds per day. As part of the amendment, GSK grants Evotec 
the right to enter into other collaborative agreements with two 
additional funding partners. In the case such agreements are 
established before May 2005, GSK will receive a specified 
amount of credits against future goods depending on the 
number of additional funding partners. As of May 2005, the 
Company has not entered into any additional funding partner 
collaborative agreements.

Furthermore, the sale of the biochemical Mark III to non-fun-
ding companies is restricted until the third anniversary of the 
Mark III delivery date, which is mid of December 2004. The 
sale of the cell upgrade on the Mark III was restricted until May 
2005. This restriction on the sale of cell upgrades on the Mark 
III was waived by GSK on 17 November 2004. The related fu-
ture commitment was accrued in 2004.
With regards to the “external target collaborations” under an 
agreement with Novartis, Evotec must pay royalties equal to 
5 % of qualifying revenue to Novartis for a period of ten years 
expiring on 16 March 2008. The Company has recorded re-
lated royalty expenses of T€ 29 and T€ 15 in 2005 and 2004, 
respectively.
Evotec was subject to certain restrictions concerning intellec-
tual property arising in the course of its cooperation with Take-
da. During the period of Takeda’s exclusive access to the Tar-
get Database, Evotec will not grant access to the Target 
Database to any third party for purposes of exploration in the 
field of neurodegenerative disease. The period of exclusive ac-
cess ends on 28 August 2007.

(4) Cash and Cash Equivalents

On 31 December 2005 and 2004 an amount of T€ 0 and 
T€ 130, respectively of cash and cash equivalents is pledged 
as security.

(5) Trade Accounts Receivables

The Company has assessed the non-payment risk of all trade 
accounts receivables which resulted in an allowance of T€ 322 
and T€ 246 in 2005 and 2004, respectively. There are no use 
restrictions on trade accounts receivable.

(6) Inventories

Inventories consist of the following:

T€ 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004

Raw materials 5,515 4,395

Work-in-progress 3,158 4,046

Finished goods 1,829 1,658

Total inventories 10,502 10,099

Raw materials consist of biological materials and substances, 
chemicals and components of instruments. Work-in-progress 
in 2005 primarily consists of costs incurred on customer 
projects and laboratory equipment which were not completed 
at year end. Finished goods include finished laboratory equip-
ment and customer projects which are ready for shipment. 
The Company carries an allowance on raw materials of 
T€ 1,596 and T€ 1,010, included in the amounts above, as of 
31 December 2005 and 2004, respectively. Additionally, an 
allowance on work-in-progress and finished goods of T€ 868 
and T€ 90 in 2005, respectively and of T€ 115 and T€ 35 in 
2004 is included in the amounts above. Write-ups of previ-
ously written down inventories did not occur. 
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(7) Long-Term Investments 

Long-term investments (unconsolidated) consist of the following:

T€ 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004

ENS Holdings, Inc. (at equity) – 2,725

KeyNeurotek AG – –

Sirenade Pharmaceuticals AG – 323

Prolysis Ltd. – –

Vmax Ltd. (at equity) – –

DIREVO Biotech AG (at equity) – –

DeveloGen Joint Venture (at equity) – –

Total long-term investments – 3,048

In 2003, Evotec AG transferred its shares in EVOTEC Neuro-
Sciences GmbH to ENS Holdings, Inc. (“ENS”) incorporated in 
Delaware/USA. Evotec sold 781 shares on 30 March 2004 
which decreased the investment from 84.7 % to 84.1 %. On 31 
March 2004, ENS issued to new investors 142,980 shares of 
preferred stock. Due to Evotec not participating in this capital 
increase, Evotec had a voting interest of 42.2 % by virtue of an 
84.1 % investment in common stock. With contract dated 
6 March 2005, ENS issued to the same investors as in 2004 
214,470 shares. This resulted in a further decrease of Evotec’s 
share to a voting interest of 24.15 % in ENS shares, not includ-
ing ENS share options, which were not transformed into shares 
prior to the acquisition by Evotec. Thereafter Evotec acquired 
all shares of ENS that were not already owned by Evotec in a 
share for share deal. The investment in ENS was accounted for 
under the equity method of accounting until 26 May 2005. 
The Company‘s share of the net loss of ENS amounted to 
T€ 448 and T€ 580 in 2005 and 2004, respectively.
Evotec acquired a 3.88 % investment in 2002 in the common 
stock of Prolysis Ltd. as part of a three year drug discovery 
agreement where Evotec earned the shares by performing serv-
ices for Prolysis. All shares have been acquired through non-
monetary payments. A financing round diluted Evotec‘s share 
in Prolysis to 2.38 %. The shares are held as a long-term invest-
ment at cost and are subject to a regular fair value impairment 
review, at least once a year. In December 2004 the value of the 
investment was fully impaired. As of 31 December 2005 and 
2004 the carrying amount of the investment is T€ 0. 
Evotec acquired a 5.0 % investment in the common stock of 
SiREEN AG in January 2002. Due to the participation of Evotec 
in a capital increase in 2002, the investment increased from 
5.0 % to 6.36 %. This investment was partly paid by services 
provided in a drug discovery agreement between Evotec and 
SiREEN AG (2005 and 2004: T€ 0). In the context of a merger 
of SiREEN AG and Nukleotide Analogue Design AG a new com-
pany Sirenade Pharmaceuticals AG (“Sirenade”) was formed, 
effective 14 May 2004. Evotec contributed all its shares in Si-
REEN AG as contribution in kind into Sirenade and originally 
held an investment of 2.23 % of the company’s shares. In June 
2005, a financing round diluted Evotec‘s share in Sirenade to 
1.36 %. In November 2005, all shareholders of Sirenade trans-
ferred their shares to KeyNeurotek AG (“KeyNeurotek”), 
Magdeburg in return against shares in this company. 
Following this, Evotec is holder of 98 shares in KeyNeurotek 
AG, Magdeburg, representing a shareholding in this company 
of 0.06 %. The investment is accounted for at cost. The impair-

ment review in 2005 concluded that the value of the invest-
ment is uncertain, and that the investment should be fully im-
paired, due to financial risks. As of 31 December 2005 the 
carrying amount of the investment is T€ 0.
Evotec acquired a 46.36 % investment in the common stock of 
Vmax Ltd. (“Vmax”) on 22 August 2002, which is accounted 
for under the equity method of accounting. Due to a capital 
increase in 2004 the investment of Evotec decreased from 
46.36 % to 30.6 %. Through 31 December 2005 and 2004, 
Vmax had not generated any revenue. The remaining carrying 
amount of T€ 8, recorded in long-term investments has al-
ready been written down to T€ 0 as of 31 December 2003. The 
Company‘s share of the net loss of Vmax therefore amounted 
to T€ 0 for 2005 and 2004.
Evotec has a 22.72 % voting interest by virtue of a 65.0 % in-
vestment in the common stock of DIREVO Biotech AG (“Di-
revo”), which is accounted for under the equity method of ac-
counting. Due to the redeemable feature of the preferred 
shares, the Company reduced the investment in Direvo to zero 
in 2001. The Company‘s share of the net loss of Direvo 
amounted to T€ 0 in 2005 and 2004. Our maximum exposure 
to loss as a result of our involvement with DIREVO Biotech AG 
is limited to the original investment in DIREVO AG in the 
amount of T€ 32.
The Company and DeveloGen AG formed a 50:50 Joint Ven-
ture in August 2003 to discover, develop and commercialise 
drug candidates in certain areas of metabolic diseases and to 
collaborate with pharmaceutical companies for defined 
projects in these areas. This Joint Venture is consolidated at 
equity in the financial statements. Evotec’s total investment in 
2005 amounted to T€ 0 (2004: T€ 0). Research and develop-
ment expenses of the Company related to the Joint Venture in 
the amount of T€ 1,780 (2004: T€ 2,872) are shown under net 
loss from equity investments. This Joint Venture had research 
and development expenses in the amount of T€ 4,839 in 2005 
(2004: T€ 7,983).
The long-term investments of Evotec continue to have losses 
and therefore do not have undistributed profits.
The Company has recorded revenues in the ordinary course of 
business with the investments Sirenade Pharmaceuticals AG 
and Prolysis Ltd. in the amount of T€ 9 and T€ 1,501 in 2005 
as well as T€ 0 and T€ 2,001 in 2004, respectively. No further 
material transactions with investments of the Company were 
recorded. Transactions with affiliates of investments were no-
tably performed with EVOTEC NeuroSciences GmbH before 
full consolidation.
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(8) Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following: 

T€ 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004

Buildings and leasehold improvements 27,663 26,884

Plant, machinery and equipment 57,164 53,198

Furniture and fixtures 11,937 10,947

Purchased software 1,355 1,264

Finance leases 5,753 3,900

Assets under construction 42 33

Fixed assets, at cost 103,914 96,226

Less accumulated depreciation  

without impairment and software 48,202 40,253

Plus accumulated adjustment 

of depreciation (1,271) (1,110)

Less accumulated impairment 17,619 18,253

Less accumulated depreciation 

of software 1,201 1,068

Total property, plant and equipment 38,163 37,762

The main additions in 2005 relate to the fitting out of new 
clean room facilities in Glasgow, UK, upgrades of our screen-
ing facility in Hamburg and analytical equipment. Upon com-
pletion of the assets under construction, costs are transferred 
into their respective fixed assets classification. In the acquisi-
tion of ENS Holdings, Inc. on 26 May 2005 the Company ac-
quired plant, machinery and equipment with a net book value 
of T€ 550, furniture and fittings of T€ 53 and software of 
T€ 24. Depreciation expense amounted to T€ 7,187 and 
T€ 9,203 in 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
As per 31 December 2005 the estimation of useful lifes of 
some individual identified assets resulted in an adjustment of 
the depreciation periods and relating depreciation expenses in 
the amount of T€ 161 (2004: T€ 366). Those changes were 
recorded in the revaluation reserve under equity. No further 
revaluation of property, plant and equipment was performed.
In the impairment review according to IAS 36 of 2004, the Pi-
lot Plant cash generating unit located in Abingdon, UK was 
tested for impairment due to underutilised capacities identi-
fied. Following the transition of the Company’s accounts from 
U.S. GAAP to IFRS the value of this impairment of the Pilot 
Plant operational assets has been recalculated. Under IAS 36, 
the impairment is calculated based on pre-tax discounted 
cash flows, compared to an assessment on non-discounted 
cash flows under U.S. GAAP on the first step. This has resulted 
in an increase of the asset impairment in 2004 by T€ 4,888 to 
T€ 14,561. 
The Pilot Plant cash generating unit was reassessed for im-
pairment during the 2005 impairment review in accordance 
with IAS 36, and the value in use found to have increased fol-
lowing improved utilisation during 2005 and revised expecta-
tions of future performance. This has resulted in a partial re-
versal in 2005 of the previous asset impairment of T€ 643.
An additional asset impairment was determined in 2004 in rela-
tion to laboratory premises in Abingdon, UK in the amount of 
T€ 3,962. As permitted under IAS 36, management estimated 
the asset impairment using a method based on the physical 
usage of the laboratory premises. The impairment of the labo-
ratory premises assets reflected recognition in 2004 of excess 

capacity and the likelihood of continuing under utilisation. 
These assets were reassessed for impairment in the 2005 im-
pairment review with the result that no further impairment, nor 
any reversal of impairment, is deemed necessary.
The net book values included in the fixed assets, which are 
held under finance leases, are plant and machinery as well as 
fixture and fittings of T€ 3,337 and T€ 62 as of 31 December 
2005 and T€ 2,519 and T€ 0 as of 31 December 2004, respec-
tively. The related depreciation amounts to T€ 882 and T€ 28 
in 2005 and T€ 1,362 and T€ 19 in 2004, respectively.

(9) Other Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible assets, excluding goodwill, consist of the following:

T€ 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004

Developed technologies 30,744 29,389

Customer list 28,758 19,775

Capitalised development expenditures 1,177 518

Patents and licenses 6,251 3,061

Intangible assets, at cost 66,930 52,743

Less accumulated amortisation 56,003 44,780

Total intangible assets excl. goodwill 10,927 7,963

The main additions in 2005 relate to customer list in connec-
tion with the acquisition of ENS Holdings, Inc. (ENS) in the 
amount of T€ 7,125 as well as to customer list and developed 
technologies from the acquisition of the uHTS business of Carl 
Zeiss Jena GmbH (T€ 1,291 and T€ 277, respectively). Amorti-
sation expense of intangible assets amounted to T€ 9,733 and 
T€ 10,074 in 2005 and 2004, respectively. The remaining 
years of amortisation for developed technologies and custom-
er list from the acquisition of Oxford Asymmetry International 
plc. in October 2000 is zero. The customer lists acquired 
through the acquisition of ENS have remaining years of amor-
tisation of approximately 1.6 and 2.2 years. 
In September 2005 the Company purchased the remaining 
18,000 shares of Evotec (Scotland) Limited (formerly Pro-
Pharma Limited). This acquisition resulted in additional good-
will in the amount of T€ 153. In May 2004 Evotec (UK) Limited 
(formerly Evotec OAI Limited) acquired a further 19,000 shares 
in Evotec (Scotland) Limited. This acquisition resulted in ad-
ditional goodwill in 2004 in the amount of T€ 117. The good-
will associated with Evotec (Scotland) Limited was assessed as 
part of the annual impairment review under IAS 36 and found 
not to be impaired.
In May 2005 the Company purchased the outstanding shares 
in ENS Holdings, Inc.. This acquisition resulted in goodwill in 
the amount of T€ 18,478 which was fully allocated to the Phar-
maceuticals Division. This goodwill was fully impaired due to 
the risks and uncertainties associated with early drug discov-
ery and development in the acquired business.
Goodwill with a carrying amount of T€ 54,994 at the balance 
sheet date of the Company has been allocated to the Services 
Division (formerly discovery and development services seg-
ment). The Company has tested its Services Division for im-
pairment on the annual designated test date of 31 October 
2005. The pre-tax discount rates considering the risks and re-
wards of the activities used in the impairment test were in the 
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range of 15.1 % to 16.1 %. As a result of that test, the Company 
concluded that no impairment was due for the goodwill car-
ried as of that date. Due to the IFRS transition and the use of 
different impairment models the amount of goodwill impair-
ment in 2004 decreased by T€ 10,496 to T€ 45,328. 
The total amount of foreign exchange differences from good-
wills denominated in a foreign currency amounted to T€ 1,494 
in 2005 and are recorded in equity.

(10) Long-Term Loans

In February 1998, the Company entered into a T€ 5,113 loan 
agreement with a bank of which T€ 639 is still outstanding. 
This loan carries a fixed interest rate of 5 % per annum and is 
repayable in semi-annual instalments of T€ 320 ending on 30 
September 2006. This loan is secured by certain patents, re-
ceivables and equipment. The net book values of those assets 
amounted to T€ 0 as per 31 December 2005. 
In July 2002, the Company entered into a T€ 5,000 loan agree-
ment with a bank of which T€ 3,722 is used and outstanding. 
This loan carries a fixed interest rate of 5.84 % per annum, 
which is fixed until 30 June 2007 and is to be repaid in month-
ly instalments of T€ 216 (interest and repayment), starting on 
31 August 2005. The repayment is included accordingly in the 
maturity table below. This loan is secured by certain fixed as-
sets. The net book values of those assets amounted to T€ 425 
as per 31 December 2005.
On 4 February 2003 the Company entered into a loan with 
another bank of T€ 2,937 secured by a charge on buildings 
and chattels in the UK of which T€ 1,782 is still outstanding. 
The loan carries an interest rate of 1.35 % over three months 
Euro LIBOR per annum and is repayable in equal instalments 
over a period of five years. A further loan facility of T€ 5,812 
was agreed on the same date. An amount of T€ 1,816 had 
been drawn down from this facility as of 31 December 2005. 
The security of this loan is provided by a fixed charge over the 
accounts receivable balance of the Company. This loan carries 
an interest rate of 1.65 % over UK Bank Base rate and is repay-
able in full by 28 February 2006 or in instalments before that 
date and is subject to a simple covenant of holding an equal 
amount in cash investment deposits with the bank. At the year 
end 2005 the loan covenants have been met. On 18 May 2005 
Evotec entered into an unsecured loan of T€ 569. The loan is 
repayable in equal instalments over a period of three years 
and carries an interest rate of 1.2 % over three months Euro 
LIBOR. At 31 December 2005 the total carrying amount of 
property, plant and equipment which is subject to a charge to 
secure bank loans amounted to T€ 2,890 (2004: T€ 1,750).
Evotec (Scotland) Limited (formerly ProPharma Limited), a 
subsidiary of the Evotec AG has debts of T€ 1,058. New loan 
arrangements have been concluded in order to finance the fit-
ting out of new clean room facilities in Glasgow, UK and bring 
the financing in line with the rest of Evotec. The loans are re-
payable in instalments through 2009. Current year maturities 
include a loan in Evotec (Scotland) Limited of T€ 341 (2004: 
T€ 0), this loan is secured by Evotec (UK) Limited as part of 
the group financing  facilities. 

The annual maturities of these debts are as follows:

T€ 

2006 6,042

2007 2,086

2008 1,199

2009 114

2010 –

Thereafter –

Total 9,441

The Company maintains lines of credit totalling T€ 4,124 to 
finance its short-term capital requirements, of which the entire 
balance is available as of 31 December 2005. These lines of 
credit provide for borrowings at various interest rates and have 
various expiration dates as well as no stated expiration dates.
The fair values of the long-term loans as of 31 December 2005 
amount to T€ 3,112. 

(11) Finance Lease Obligations

The Company is obligated under finance leases of T€ 3,832 
and T€ 2,841 as of 31 December 2005 and 2004, respectively 
that expire at various dates during the next five years. Proper-
ty, plant and equipment as well as inventories are held under 
those finance leases. The future minimum lease payments un-
der finance leases are as follows:

T€ 

2006 1,791

2007 1,072

2008 687

2009 344

2010 129

Less interest (191)

Total principal payable on finance leases 3,832

The fair values of the long-term finance lease obligation as of 
31 December 2005 amount to T€ 2,017.

(12) Provisions

The provisions consist of the following:

T€ 31 Dec 2005 31 Dec 2004

Bonus accruals 2,024 1,298

Contingent considerations 1,493 574

Lease incentives 1,470 1,039

Accrued vacation 793 891

Restructuring expenses 578 –

Other provisions 1,720 2,299

Total provisions 8,078 6,101

The change of provisions is primarily due to a management’s 
decision to raise the variable component of compensation 
again after a decrease in 2004. 
An amount of T€ 1,470 (2004: T€ 1,039) was included for rent 
primarily in relation to lease incentives received in the year on 
property occupied in Abingdon and Glasgow (UK). 
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The following table summarises the accrued liabilities record-
ed during 2005:

The provision for personnel costs may differ from the esti-
mated accrual due to the fact that the actual percentage of the 
variable portion of the remuneration may differ from the esti-
mated ones. The estimated accrual for the contingent consid-
eration may differ from the actual amounts payable due to the 
fact that the agreed performance targets are either not met or 
are exceeded. The consumption of the actual lease incentive 
may vary from the estimated if the lease period changes.
An amount of T€ 1,515 is expected to be paid after 1 year and 
therefore is shown under non-current liabilities. This amount 
mainly derives from lease incentives. The fair values of those non-
current liabilities as of 31 December 2005 amount to T€ 995.

(13) Income Taxes

Income taxes comprise the current taxes (paid or owed) on 
income in the individual countries as well as the deferred tax-
es. For the calculation of current taxes, tax rates are used 
which are applicable or announced at the balance sheet date. 
Loss before income taxes, minority interests and net loss from 
equity investments is attributable to the following geographic 
regions for the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004:

T€ 2005 2004

Germany (27,718) (9,118)

Foreign (7,619) (75,110)

Total (35,337) (84,228)

Income tax benefit (expense) for the years ended 31 Decem-
ber 2005 and 2004 is as follows:

T€ 2005 2004

Current taxes:

– Germany (209) (39)

– Foreign (26) 122

Total current taxes (235) 83

Deferred taxes:

– Germany 2,877 –

– Foreign 1,871 9,694

Total deferred taxes 4,748 9,694

Total income tax benefit 4,513 9,777

The tax rate in the UK for the years ended 31 December 2005 
and 2004 amounted to 30 %. For the years ended 31 Decem-
ber 2005 and 2004, the actual combined German federal cor-
poration income and trade tax rate amounted to 40.38 % 
(2004: 40.38 %). The income tax benefit differed from the ex-
pected income tax benefit determined using the combined tax 
rate of 40.38 % (2004: 40.38 %) as follows: 

T€ 2005 2004

Expected income tax benefit 13,082 39,661

Non-deductible goodwill impairment 

and amortisation (7,523) (22,542)

Other permanent differences 1,813 1,592

Foreign tax differential (378) (3,115)

Effect of tax rate change – –

Change in valuation allowance (2,516) (5,802)

Other 35 (17)

Actual income tax benefit 4,513 9,777

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities as of 31 December 
2005 and 2004 relate to the following:

T€ 2005 2004

Deferred tax assets:

– Loss carry forward 56,990 47,181

– Intangible assets 1,316 1,636

– Other 385 309

Total 58,691 49,126

Valuation allowances on deferred 

tax assets (47,099) (42,419)

Total deferred tax assets 11,592 6,707

Deferred tax liabilities:

– Property, plant and equipment 6,471 6,100

– Intangible assets 2,630 2,364

– Loans 2,302 –

– Undistributed subsidiaries earnings 94 54

– Other 95 16

Total deferred tax liabilities 11,592 8,534

Deferred tax liability, net – 1,827

Net deferred income tax assets and liabilities are presented in 
the accompanying balance sheets as of 31 December 2005 
and 2004 as follows:

T€ 2005 2004

Net deferred tax assets, current:

– Germany – –

– Foreign – 99

Net deferred tax liabilities, non-current:

– Germany – –

– Foreign – (1,926)

Total – (1,827)

For the years ended 31 December 2005 and 2004, Evotec re-
corded additional valuation allowances with respect to tax 
benefits of tax losses carried forward of T€ 9,126 and T€ 5,276, 
respectively. The valuation allowances on the Company’s de-
ferred tax assets are not recorded to the extent it is probable 

T€ 01 Jan 2005 Consumption Disposal Additions 31 Dec 2005

Personnel 2,189 1,249 226 2,103 2,817

Contingent considerations 574 – – 919 1,493

Lease incentives 1,039 – – 431 1,470

Other provisions 2,299 2,115 184 2,298 2,298

Total 6,101 3,364 410 5,751 8,078
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that such tax benefits would be realised in future years. These 
considerations include, but are not limited to, the ability under 
respective tax laws to carry forward incurred tax losses indefi-
nitely and thereby offset taxable income in future years, tax 
planning strategies and estimates of future taxable income. 
Evotec has not generated taxable income in Germany since 
the start of operations and does not expect to in the foresee-
able future. The rational behind the valuation allowances is 
based on the potentially unlikely prospect of generating tax-
able income and, to a significant extent, the questionable na-
ture, availability and benefit of the tax losses carried forward 
generated prior to material equity transactions in the past. Tax 
losses carried forward for Germany of T€ 119,898 and the UK 
of T€ 17,321 do not expire. Due to changes in the German tax 
law in 2003, the tax losses carried forward can only be offset 
against an amount of 60 % of future taxable income after ex-
ceeding a fully deductible amount of T€ 1,000 per year.
Deferred taxes are accounted for as tax expenses or income in 
the statements of operations unless they relate to items in-
cluded in equity in which case they are accounted for as part 
of equity.

(14) Stock-Based Compensation

The shareholders’ meeting on 7 June 1999 established a stock 
option plan (“Option Plan 1999”) and authorised the granting 
of stock options for up to 1,466,600 shares. The plan is subject 
to certain restrictions regarding the number of stock awards 
that may be granted in a year and the allocation of the grants 
to members of the Management Board, other key manage-
ment personnel and all other employees. The annual share-
holders’ meeting in 2000 and 2001 provided for the authori-
sation of additional 949,000 and 1,129,600 stock options, 
respectively. 
Under the terms of the plan, each option entitles the holder to 
purchase one share of the Company’s stock within ten years 
of the grant date at a set strike price. For all options granted in 
1999, the strike price was the price of the initial public offering 
of € 13.00 (€ 6.50 after stock split). Options granted in 2000 
and 2001 can be exercised at a strike price equal to the clos-
ing price of the shares or at a strike price equal to the closing 
price of the shares plus 5 % on the trading day before the op-
tion was granted. Options have a graded vesting: A maximum 
of one-third of which can be exercised at the earliest after two 
years, a maximum of further two-thirds after three years and 
all remaining awarded options after four years. Options can 
only be exercised within certain specified two week periods 
starting on the third day after one of the following events: 

(i) release of the quarterly results, (ii) annual press conference 
on the financial statements, or (iii) annual shareholders’ meet-
ing of the Company. The options can only be exercised if the 
stock price exceeds the strike price by at least 5 %. 
The terms of the stock option plan further provide: A grant of 
options is allowed if the average closing price of the Compa-
ny’s stock has increased by at least 30 % when comparing the 
last quarter of the last business year before the grant with the 
last quarter of the preceeding year. The Supervisory Board, 
however, has the authority to override this restriction and to 
authorise the granting of options to employees if such a deci-
sion is considered necessary for the interests of the Company. 
The shareholders’ meeting on 7 June 2005 established a new 
stock option plan (“Option Plan 2005”) and authorised the 
granting of stock options for up to 1,741,481 shares. The plan 
is subject to certain restrictions regarding the number of stock 
awards that may be granted in a year and the allocation of the 
grants to members of the Management Board, other key man-
agement personnel and all other employees. Within one calen-
dar year, no more than 40 % of these options shall be granted.
Each option entitles the holder to purchase one share of the 
Company‘s stock at a strike price equal to the price of one 
share at the time of the grant of the option. Options can be 
exercised after a vesting period of three years after the date of 
their grant but no later than six years after the respective 
grant. The Option Plan 2005 stipulates an exercise hurdle of a 
33 % price increase against the share price at the time of 
granting. The option holder may exercise his options only if 
this hurdle is achieved on the day three years after the respec-
tive date of granting. In case the hurdle is not achieved, the 
same increase after four or five years, respectively, would 
make the options exercisable.
Options under the Option Plan 2005 can only be exercised 
within the specific two weeks period relevant also to the other 
option programmes.
Through the acquisition of ENS Holdings, Inc. the Company 
acquired a stock option plan under which shares in the amount 
of 323,749 were granted on the date of consolidation 26 May 
2005. Under the terms of the plan, each share which has to be 
treated as an option entitles the holder to receive one share of 
the Evotec AG’s stock until April or November 2014 at a set 
strike price of zero. The corresponding new shares are being 
held in escrow and are released by an individually set amount 
every quarter as well as on achievement of individual mile-
stones.
A summary of the status of the plans as of 31 December 2005 
and 2004, and the changes during the years then ended is 
presented as follows:

pcs. and € per share Options

2005
Weighted average 

exercise price Options

2004
Weighted average 

exercise price

Outstanding at beginning of the year 2,579,558 8.34 2,474,176 9.30

Options granted 1,213,149 2.07 361,150 2.95

Options exercised (52,409) 0.66 – –

Options forfeited (129,082) 8.65 (107,925) 10.41

Options waived (re-issueable) (198,232) 8.43 (147,843) 9.72

Outstanding at end of the year 3,412,984 6.21 2,579,558 8.34

Thereof exercisable 1,500,141 10.59 1,232,740 12.71
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A summary of the stock options outstanding at 31 December 
2005 is as follows:

Evotec’s stock option plans result in compensation expense of 
T€ 1,622 and T€ 1,716 as of 31 December 2005 and 2004, 
respectively. These amounts were reflected in unearned com-
pensation, a component of stockholders’ equity. The Company 
recognised compensation expense in 2005 and 2004 for all 
options totalling T€ 749 and T€ 283, respectively, which was 
reflected as operating costs and expenses in the consolidated 
statements of operations.
The fair value of each option grant was estimated on the date 
of grant for the fiscal years ended 31 December 2005 and 
2004 using a Binomial model with the following assumptions:

The expected dividend yield is zero, the expected remaining 
life 6 years and the expected exercise price in percent of the 
option price is 200 % in all models.
Due to the transition to IFRS and the related first time adop-
tion of IFRS 2 only stock options which were granted after 7 
November 2002 and are not vested on 31 December 2005 are 
included in the fair value calculation. 

(15) Stockholders’ Equity

On 31 December 2005, there are 62,759,424 shares issued 
and outstanding including converted ENS options held in es-
crow. Furthermore authorised but unissued shares consist of a 
conditional capital (bedingtes Kapital) of 5,228,699 shares 
available with respect to the stock option plan and an ap-
proved capital (genehmigtes Kapital), of 26,143,506 shares. 
The annual shareholders’ meeting on 18 June 2001 had au-
thorised the Management Board of the Company to issue up 
to 17,700,000 shares for cash or contributions in kind. 
Effective 20 July 2004, the Company increased its stockhold-
ers’ equity by issuing 2,500,000 new shares against cash out 

of the approved capital (genehmigtes Kapital). The price per 
share amounted to € 3.00.
Effective 26 May 2005, the Company increased its stockhold-
ers’ equity by issuing 14,276,883 new shares against contribu-
tions in kind out of the approved capital (genehmigtes Kapital).
The annual shareholders’ meeting on 7 June 2005 decided 
to increase the Company’s stockholders’ equity by issuing 
10,457,402 new shares against cash. This increase was effec-
tive 24 June 2005. The price per share amounted to € 2.72. 
This annual shareholders’ meeting on 7 June 2005 also author-
ised the Management Board of the Company to issue up to 
26,143,506 shares for cash or contributions in kind. Under Ger-
man law, the shareholders of a stock corporation may empower 
the Management Board to issue shares in a specified aggregate 
nominal value not exceeding 50 % of the issued share capital at 
the time of the shareholder vote, in the form of approved capital 
(genehmigtes Kapital). The authorisation expires on 6 June 
2010. In addition conditional capital had been authorised which 
has not yet been registered in the trade register.

Outstanding
in pcs.

Exercisable
in pcs.

Weighted average 
remaining 

contractual life
in years

Weighted 
average 

exercise price
€ per share

Exercise price       0.00 € per share 286,349 – 8.44 0.00

Exercise price  1.66– 3.61 € per share 1,664,997 301,762 7.31 2.62

Exercise price  5.97– 6.80 € per share 1,014,530 751,271 6.17 6.54

Exercise price 10.15–12.48 € per share 51,100 51,100 5.93 12.39

Exercise price      15.29 € per share 4,500 4,500 5.23 15.29

Exercise price      24.30 € per share 391,508 391,508 4.90 24.30

25.11.2002 03.01.2003 27.01.2003 19.11.2003 06.01.2004 18.11.2004

Risk-free interest rate in% 4.14 3.59 3.59 4.03 3.81 3.30

Volatility in% 103.0 103.9 104.3 69.0 67.1 55.6

Fluctuation in% 15.0 10.0 10.0 10.0–15.0 10.0 10.0

Price range in Euro 2.20–2.31 1.93–2.03 1.66 5.99–6.29 5.97 2.52–2.65

04.03.2005 07.03.2005 11.07.2005 30.08.2005 16.12.2005

Risk-free interest rate in% 3.32 3.32 2.85 2.79 3.14

Volatility in% 58.4 58.4 56.4 49.1 34.8

Fluctuation in% 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0 10.0

Price range in Euro 0.00 3.61 2.82 2.71–2.80 2.59–2.73
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(16) Segment Information

Segmentation is performed on the basis of risks and opportu-
nities; recognition is based on the internal organisation and 
management structure as well as on internal management re-
porting. Therefore the Company‘s primary segments include 
three reportable operating segments which are: (i) Pharma-
ceuticals Division (formerly Discovery Programs Division), (ii) 
Services Division (formerly Discovery and Development Serv-
ices) and (iii) Tools and Technologies. Evotec changed the 
composition of its segments due to the implementation of its 
strategy of more rapidly growing internal drug discovery and 
development. Under the new composition of segments the 
Services Division comprises only business transactions relat-
ing to third party contract research (excluding ENS target 
identification and target validation projects), i. e. no work per-
formed for the Pharmaceuticals Division.

(i)  The Pharmaceuticals Division is specialised in finding new 
treatments for diseases of the Central Nervous System 
(CNS). It is engaged in selected research and development 
activities to develop compounds for out-licensing. The 
strategic objective of this division is to generate or aug-
ment proprietary intellectual property that can provide 
the Company with additional long-term upside through 
more significant milestones and royalties. 

(ii)  The Services Division provides integrated contract re-
search support in drug discovery and development to a 

large group of global customers. It provides innovative 
and integrated solutions including early stage assay de-
velopment and screening through to medicinal chemistry 
and drug manufacturing.

(iii)  The Tools and Technologies segment is a provider of con-
focal detection devices, cell handling devices and ultra-
High-Throughput Screening (uHTS) systems. The product 
portfolio is focused on high-end technologies for automat-
ed cell biology. Tools and Technologies provides sophisti-
cated automation skills, integrating hardware, software 
and bioware modules. 

Net sales and operating expenses in the segments include both 
sales to customers and inter-segment transfers, which are 
priced to recover cost plus an appropriate profit margin ac-
cording to the at arms length principle. Internal research and 
development projects are not part of the inter-segment trans-
fers but directly allocated to the Pharmaceuticals Division.
Revenues in the consolidated statements of operations are dif-
ferentiated by products and by services. This definition is close to 
the definition used in the segment reporting. Differences between 
the revenue splits are mainly due to product deliveries from our 
service unit, which are reported in the Services segment.
The accounting policies of the segments are equivalent to 
those described in the summary of significant accounting pol-
icies (see note 2). 
The following represents segment data of the Company’s 
 primary segments for the year ended 31 December 2005:

T€
Pharmaceuticals 

Division
Services 
Division

Tools and 
Technologies

Not 
allocated

Total 
2005

Revenues:

– Drug discovery products and Technologies – 275 17,003 (1,333) 15,945

– Drug discovery services 3,231 60,686 – (77) 63,840

Total revenues 3,231 60,961 17,003 (1,410) 79,785

Thereof intercompany – 77 1,333 (1,410) –

Costs of revenue:

– Drug discovery products and Technologies – 145 8,440 (598) 7,987

– Drug discovery services 1,032 41,850 – (49) 42,833

Total costs of revenue 1,032 41,995 8,440 (647) 50,820

Gross profit 2,199 18,966 8,563 (763) 28,965

Research and development expenses 5,957 3,864 5,175 (908) 14,088

Selling, general and administrative expenses 3,974 11,433 4,833 (338) 19,902

Amortisation of intangible assets 1,876 7,375 1,276 (794) 9,733

Impairment of goodwill 18,478 – – – 18,478

Impairment of tangible assets – (643) – – (643)

Restructuring expenses – – 917 – 917

Other operating expenses – 2,163 – – 2,163

Operating loss 28,086 5,226 3,638 (1,277) 35,673

Interest income – – 4 852 856

Interest expense – – 1,111 (382) 729

Net loss from equity investment 2,228 – – 324 2,552

Foreign currency exchange gain (loss), net – – (6) (725) (731)

Other non-operating income, net 479 485 506 (530) 940

Net loss before taxes and minorities 29,835 4,741 4,245 (932) 37,889

Total assets 6,798 105,575 21,553 52,185 186,111

Total liabilities 4,854 12,876 26,548 (6,836) 37,442

Capital expenditures 30,515 4,447 3,764 (57) 38,669
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Not allocated to the Pharmaceuticals and Services Division are 
mainly loans as well as cash. Depreciation included in the operat-
ing loss of Pharmaceuticals Division, Services Division and Tools 
and Technologies, amounts to T€ 328, T€ 6,383 and T€ 561, re-
spectively (2004: T€ 9,441, T€ 249 and T€ 843, respectively). 
Segmental capital expenditures in 2004 amount to T€ 146, 
T€ 2,283 and T€ 555, respectively. Total assets in 2004 in those 
segments amount to T€ 1,995, T€ 104,646 and T€ 20,728, re-
spectively. Total liabilities in 2004 in those segments amount to 
T€ 1,471, T€ 10,176 and T€ 21,394, respectively. 
The Company’s secondary segment split is based on geo-
graphical aspects. Revenues can be split, based on customers’ 
locations, in the following geographical regions:

T€ 2005 2004

Germany 8,939 7,567

United Kingdom 11,993 11,698

Rest of Europe 19,379 14,536

United States 29,529 30,171

Rest of the world 9,945 8,758

79,785 72,730

Total assets of T€ 113,299 and T€ 113,899 are located in for-
eign countries and the remaining amounts of T€ 72,812 and 
T€ 32,645 are in Germany as of 31 December 2005 and 2004, 
respectively. Capital expenditures in the amount of T€ 3,686 
and T€ 1,681 have been made in foreign countries and the 
remaining amounts of T€ 34,983 and T€ 1,125 are in Germa-
ny as of 31 December 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(17) Financial Instruments

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts re-
ceivable and trade accounts payable approximate their carrying 
values in the consolidated financial statements due to the short-
term nature. Financial assets are accounted for at the settlement 
date. The credit risk in connection with failures by counterpar-
ties to discharge their obligations, are assessed by the Company 
to be immaterial. The fair value of debt is determined using an 
appropriate discount rate. The fair values of long-term loans 
closely approximate their carrying values on 31 December 2005 
and 2004. The Company is exposed to interest rate risk through 
variable interest-bearing loans and finance lease liabilities. These 
interest rate risks are deemed to be not significant.
The Company periodically enters into derivatives including for-
eign currency forward contracts and options. The objective of 
these transactions is to reduce the risk of exchange rate fluctua-
tions of its foreign currency denominated cash flows. Evotec does 
not enter into derivatives for trading or speculative purposes. As 
of 31 December 2005, the Company held USD forward contracts 
with Euro equivalent notional amounts of approximately T€ 1,267 
and a fair value of T€ 1,267 (2004: T€ 1,503 and T€ 1,509, re-
spectively). Additionally, the Company held USD option contracts 
with Euro equivalent notional amounts of approximately T€ 7,177 
and T€ 3,666 as of 31 December 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
The fair value of the option contracts is T€ 7,010 at 31 December 
2005 (2004: T€ 3,932). Foreign currency contracts are carried at 
fair value which is determined using quoted market prices or 
discoun ted cash flows. The maturity for all foreign currency con-

tracts held by the Company is short term. The carrying amount 
of the foreign currency contracts is included in current liabilities 
as per 31 December 2005 and prepaid expense and other cur-
rent assets as per 31 December 2004. Gains and losses from the 
fair value accounting related to foreign currency derivatives are 
included in other non-operating income and expense and 
amounted to T€ (290) and T€ 267 for the years ended 31 De-
cember 2005 and 2004, respectively.

(18) Risks

The Company has credit risks primarily with respect to trade 
accounts receivables. Concentrations of credit risks with re-
spect to trade accounts receivables are limited by a number of 
geographically diverse customers and the Company’s moni-
toring procedures. 
We expect that our current cash funds, together with operating 
revenues will be sufficient to finance our operations for at least two 
to three years, depending on the various scenarios of the Compa-
ny’s investments and strategic development. Our future cash re-
quirements will depend on various factors, including our success 
in developing existing and new technologies and products, in-
creasing sales of both existing and new pro ducts and services, ex-
penses associated with sales growth as well as competition and 
the general economic situation. Expenditures on internal develop-
ment programmes or related acquisitions of technologies or intel-
lectual property rights are likely to reduce our short- to mid-term 
profitability and cash reserves. We intend to reduce part of this fi-
nancial exposure through early partnering agreements, to the de-
gree possible and advisable when trying to maximise returns. In 
addition, the option to improve the financing situation through 
capital increases either against cash or acquired assets, e.g. as 
part of an in-licensing agreement, is always being considered. The 
Company does not intend to engage in projects or project phases 
unless appropriate funding is allocated or secured.
The Company has important collaborations with pharmaceutical 
and biotechnology companies within all operating segments. Any 
termination of such collaborations or failure to achieve contracted 
milestones would probably have adverse impacts on the Compa-
ny’s financial position, results of operations and cash flows. 
The Company has further expanded its customer’s base. How-
ever the three largest customers of Evotec combined repre-
sent more than 20 % of the group revenues in 2005. A termi-
nation of these business relations could have adverse impacts 
on the Company‘s financial results.
With a high proportion of sales denominated in US Dollar cur-
rency exposure creates a risk to our profitability, in particular 
relative to the UK Sterling with the respect to the UK subsidiar-
ies. A weakening of the USD when accompanied by a relative 
strengthening of the GBP against the Euro will reduce reve-
nues and profitability and constitutes a significant risk to the 
Company’s financial situation. The hedging activities of the 
Company aim to mitigate the impact on the result before tax. 

(19) Pension Plan

The Company operates a defined contribution Group Personal 
Pension Plan (GPPP) and makes contributions to employees’ 
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own schemes.  The pension charge for the year represents 
contributions payable by the Company to the fund (and to 
employees’ own pension schemes) and amounted to T€ 831 
(2004: T€ 689).
Contributions amounting to T€ 100 (2004: T€ 105) were pay-
able to the fund at the year end and are included in creditors.
The Company‘s contribution rate is determined by the em-
ployees contribution and their age. There were no changes in 
the basis for such contributions during the year. 
The statutory retirement insurances are defined as contribu-
tion plan under IAS 19.

(20) Commitments and Contingencies

(a) Operating Lease Obligations
The Company leases office and laboratory space and other 
equipment under operating leases in accordance with IAS 17. 
The future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable 
operating leases are approximately as follows:

T€ 

2006 5,205

2007 4,688

2008 4,528

2009 4,694

2010 4,692

Thereafter 38,497

Total 62,304

The majority of operating leases is related to rent expenses for 
facilities. The rent expense for such leases amounted to 
T€ 4,133 and T€ 4,478 for the years ended 31 December 2005 
and 2004, respectively. 
The Company leases instruments to customers in the ordinary 
course of business. The rent related revenues amounted to 
T€ 466 and T€ 262 for the years 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
The future minimum rent related revenues under non-cancel-
lable contracts amount to T€ 90 in 2006.

(b) Other Commitments and Contingencies
The Company has entered into consultancy contracts. During 
2005 and 2004, payments under consultancy contracts totalled 
T€ 362 and T€ 434, respectively. The future minimum pay-
ments associated with long-term consultant and other miscel-
laneous long-term commitments total approximately T€ 444 
and T€ 761 at 31 December 2005 and 2004, respectively. 
As discussed in note 3, the Company has certain commit-
ments resulting from the amendments to our agreements with 
our technology funding partners.
The Company has given a guarantee with regard to all terms 
and conditions of a specific customer contract. No current li-
abilities from that guarantee exist at 31 December 2005.
Following the Company‘s Annual General Meeting, a sharehold-
er had instituted legal proceedings against the resolution em-
powering management to issue convertible bonds. The district 
court (Landgericht) Hamburg rejected this claim with a judge-
ment dated 14 December 2005. The Company is not aware of 
any further significant litigation as of 31 December 2005.

(21) Related Party Transactions

The following Supervisory Board members and Executive 
Committee members of the Company are also supervisory 
board members or management board members in compa-
nies Evotec works with in the ordinary course of business:
Prof Dr Heinz Riesenhuber is a member of the supervisory 
board of Altana Pharma AG, with whom the Company entered 
into service agreements as well as agreements with regard to 
instrument sales in the ordinary course of business. Revenue 
from those agreements in 2005 and 2004 amounted to 
T€ 1,103 and T€ 723, respectively. Related product warranties 
amounted to T€ 31 in 2005. Accounts receivable from Altana 
as of 31 December 2005 and 2004 amounted to T€ 813 and 
T€ 70, respectively. 
Peer Schatz is Chief Executive Officer of Qiagen N.V. From af-
filiates controlled by Qiagen N.V. the Company bought prod-
ucts in the amount of T€ 47 and T€ 229 in 2005 and 2004, 
respectively. The amount of payables to Qiagen on 31 Decem-
ber 2005 and 2004, including VAT amounts to T€ 6 and 
T€ 117, respectively. 
Dr Peter Fellner is Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of 
Directors of Astex Therapeutics Ltd, Cambridge, UK, with 
whom the Company entered into a service agreement in the 
ordinary course of business. Related revenues amounted to 
T€ 23 in the period starting with Dr Fellner’s membership in 
the Company’s Supervisory Board. The amount of accounts 
receivables as of 31 December 2005 amounted to T€ 27. 
Dr Karsten Henco is a chairman of the supervisory board of 
Garching Innovation GmbH from which the Company has ob-
tained licences in 2001. Licence expense amounted to T€ 74 
and T€ 288 in 2005 (until his departure from the Supervisory 
Board) and 2004, respectively. He is also a member of the su-
pervisory board of U3 Pharma AG with whom the Company 
entered into a service agreement in the ordinary course of 
business. Revenues amounted to T€ 344 in 2004 and the re-
lating accounts receivable as of 31 December 2004 amounted 
to T€ 70. The Company entered into a consultancy contract, in 
the ordinary course of business and with the approval of the 
Supervisory Board, with Dr Karsten Henco. The associated ex-
penses in 2005 until his departure from the Supervisory Board 
and in 2004 amounted to T€ 28 and T€ 99, respectively and 
the related payables to Dr Henco as of 31 December 2005 and 
2004 amounted to T€ 39 and T€ 22, respectively.
Dr Edwin Moses was a member of the supervisory board of 
Prolysis Ltd until June 2003 with whom the Company entered 
into a service agreement and acquired a 3.88 % equity inter-
est. He is also a Non-Executive Chairman of the board of Bio-
Image A/S with whom the Company entered into service 
agreements in the ordinary course of business. Revenues 
amounted to T€ 162 in 2005 until his departure from the Su-
pervisory Board and to T€ 935 in 2004, and the related ac-
counts receivable as of 31 December 2005 and 2004 amount-
ed to T€ 0 and T€ 105, respectively. Dr Moses is also 
Non-Executive Chairman of the board of Paradigm Therapeu-
tics Ltd. with whom the Company entered into a service agree-
ment. The related revenues amounted to T€ 0 and T€ 165 in 
2005 and 2004, respectively. There were no related accounts 
receivables as of 31 December 2005 and 2004. The Company 
entered into a consultancy contract (effective date April 2005), 
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in the ordinary course of business and with the approval of the 
Supervisory Board, with Dr Moses in order to exploit his sig-
nificant expertise in the business of the Company. There were 
no associated expenses during his membership in the Super-
visory Board.
Dr Mario Polywka, a member of the Executive Committee of 
the Company is Non-Executive Chairman of the board of Gly-
coform Limited who uses laboratory equipment at the site in 
Abingdon, UK. Revenues amounted to T€ 13 and T€ 5 in 2005 
and 2004, respectively and the related accounts receivable as 
of 31 December 2005 and 2004 amounted to T€ 2 and T€ 1, 
respectively. He is also Non-Executive Director of the board of 
Pharminox Limited with whom the Company entered into a 
service agreement in the ordinary course of business. Reve-
nues amounted to T€ 51 and T€ 59 in 2005 and 2004, respec-
tively. There were no related accounts receivables as of 31 De-
cember 2005 and 2004.
Dr John Kemp, a member of the Executive Committee of the 
Company has a loan outstanding (including accrued interest) 
and granted in 2003 as of 31 December 2005 in the amount 
of T€ 91.
Jesper Wiklund, a member of the Executive Committee of the 
Company received loans in 2005 to cover personal tax obliga-
tions relating to stock options granted. As of 31 December 
2005 these loans including accrued interest amount to T€ 22.
Dr Phil Boyd, an officer of the Company is a member of the 
board of Vmax Ltd. with whom the Company entered into a 
loan stock and investment agreement. See note 7.
The Evotec AG has recorded revenues with related parties in 
the amount of T€ 279, subsidiaries of Evotec AG recorded rev-
enues in the amount of T€ 1,073.
Hubert Birner, Peter Fellner and Mary Tanner consulted the 
Company in 2005 outside the scope of their Supervisory Board 
activities with the approval of the full Supervisory Board. The 
total relating expenses amounted to T€ 18.
Administrative services provided by the Company to Manage-
ment Board or Supervisory Board members for their private 
purposes, if any are reimbursed to the Company at cost.

(22) Other Disclosures

The following additional disclosures are required by German 
law in accordance with the European Directives on Accounting 
and the Corporate Governance Codex:

(a) Number of Employees
The average number of persons employed by the Company in 
2005 was 613 (2004: 639).

(b) Personnel Expenses and Cost of Material
The personnel expenses of the Company amounted to 
T€ 39,538 of which T€ 23,584 relates to personnel expenses 
in the UK (2004: T€ 37,553 and T€ 22,838, respectively). 
Thereof expenses for the statutory retirement insurance 
amounted to T€ 3,154 of which T€ 2,244 relates to expenses 
in the UK (2004: T€ 2,973 and T€ 2,069, respectively).
Cost of materials amounted to T€ 39,544, thereof T€ 7,895 
are cost of materials in the UK (2004: T€ 24,166 and T€ 7,289, 
respectively).

(c) Remuneration of the Auditor
In 2005, remunerations, shown as expenses, to KPMG Deut-
sche Treuhand-Gesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft and other KPMG 
companies totalled T€ 487 broken down into year end auditing 
(T€ 233), tax consultancy (T€ 81), other auditing and valuation 
services (T€ 32) as well as other services (T€ 141). 

(d) Corporate Governance Codex
A declaration according to Section 161 AktG was made by the 
Management Board and the Supervisory Board of the Com-
pany. This declaration regarding the Company’s compliance 
with the Corporate Governance Codex is accessible to the 
shareholders on Evotec’s website. 
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(e) Consolidated Subsidiaries and Equity Investees
Information below is as per the statutory financial statements 
as of 31 December 2005 prepared in accordance with the re-
spective local generally accepted accounting principles.

(f) Management Board
The members of the Management Board are listed at the end 
of this report.
The remuneration paid to the members of the Management 
Board in the financial year totalled T€ 744 (2004: T€ 1,725) of 
which T€ 0 (2004: T€ 212) was variable. The variable pay for 
the Management Board is based on a bonus scheme designed 
by the Remuneration committee of the Supervisory Board and 
is then approved by the Supervisory Board. In 2005 the varia-
ble portion of the remuneration related to the business year 
2004 was originally based on a performance related bonus 
split (40 % was based on the achievement of a revenue target, 
40 % on an EBITDA target and 20 % on the achievement of 
personal objectives). For the year 2004 those performance cri-
teria were only partly not met however the Management Board 
decided to waive their entitlement to any payment in light of 
the Company’s financial situation and therefore no variable 
remuneration was paid. The scheme for the variable portion of 
the remuneration in 2006, which is based on the business 
year 2005, is based on the following performance related bo-
nus split: 40 % is based on the achievement of milestones, 
40 % on the achievement of budget targets and 20 % on the 
achievement of personal objectives. Under the Company’s 
stock option plans, the members of the Management Board 

received in 2005 150,000 (2004: 124,500) options. One-third 
of the options granted in 2004 may be exercised after two 
years. The options granted in 2005 are subject to the stipula-
tion of the Option Plan 2005 and may be exercised after three 
years if the conditions of this plan are met.

2005
Fixed 

remuneration
in T€ 

2005
Variable 

remuneration
in T€ 

2005
Stock 

options
in pcs. 

Joern Aldag 339 – 90,000

Dr Dirk Ehlers 289 – 60,000

Prof Dr Ian Hunneyball 116 – –

Total 744 – 150,000

Joern Aldag is member of the Monopolkommission der Bun-
desrepublik Deutschland and was Non-Executive Member of 
the board of ENS Holdings, Inc., Wilmington/Delaware, USA 
(until May 2005).

Company’s 
voting interest

in%

2005 
Net income/(loss)

in T€ 

2005 
Equity

in T€ 

Subsidiaries (verbundene Unternehmen)

– Evotec (UK) Ltd. (formerly Evotec OAI Ltd.), Abingdon, UK 100.0 2,688 46,056

– ENS Holdings, Inc., Wilmington/Delaware, USA (unaudited) 100.0 (2,226) 29,859

– Evotec Technologies GmbH, Duesseldorf 86.1 (4,303) (5,919)

– EVOTEC NeuroSciences GmbH, Hamburg (unaudited) 100.0 (4,471) 6,239

– Evotec Neurosciences AG, Zurich, CH (unaudited) 100.0 43 130

– Evotec (Scotland) Ltd (formerly ProPharma Ltd), Glasgow, UK 100.0 (1,078) 2,194

– Evotec Technologies Inc., Wilmington/Delaware, USA (unaudited) 86.1 41 60

– Evotec Inc., Wilmington/Delaware, USA (unaudited) 100.0 18 147

– Oxford Diversity Ltd., Abingdon, UK (unaudited) 100.0 – –

– Oxford Asymmetry Employee Shares Trust Ltd., Abingdon, UK (unaudited) 100.0 – –

– ProPharma Ltd, Glasgow, UK, (shell company) 100.0 – –

Investment in associated Companies

– DIREVO Biotech AG, Cologne (unaudited) 22.7 (3,337) 7,210

– Vmax Ltd., Winnersh Triangle, UK (unaudited) 30.6 527 –

– DeveloGen Joint Venture 50.0 – –

Other Investments

– KeyNeurotek AG, Magdeburg (2004 figures) 0.1 (1,550) (2,516)

– Prolysis Ltd, Oxford, UK 2.4 (4,409) 313
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(g) Supervisory Board
The Supervisory Board and their additional memberships in 
supervisory boards and memberships in comparable govern-
ing bodies of enterprises according to Section 125 (1) third 
sentence of the AktG are listed at the end of this report:

T€ Remuneration
Equity based 

compensation Total

Prof Dr Riesenhuber 37.5 15.0 52.5

Peer Schatz 31.6 11.2 42.8

Dr Hubert Birner 11.0 4.3 15.3

Dr Peter Fellner 10.7 4.3 15.0

Dr Alfred Oberholz 10.4 4.3 14.7

Mary Tanner 16.4 7.1 23.5

Dr Pol Bamelis 8.1 3.2 11.3

Dr Karsten Henco 6.4 3.2 9.6

Dr Edwin Moses 5.2 2.1 7.3

Total 137.3 54.7 192.0

The remuneration for the chairman of the Supervisory Board 
is twice, for the vice chairman is one and a half the amount of 
the remuneration for the Supervisory Board members. The 
additional remuneration for a member of a Supervisory Board 
committee amounts to T€ 3.8, for the chairman of those com-
mittee’s to T€ 7.5. The total remuneration paid to Supervisory 
Board members in 2004 totalled T€ 137.8.

(h) Scientific Advisory Committee
Dr Karsten Henco, Duesseldorf, D; 
Prof Dr Roger Nitsch, Zurich, CH;
Ian Ragan, Ph. D., London, UK;
William Jenkins, MD, Basel, CH;
Ian Hunneyball, Ph. D., Abingdon, UK;
Prof Dr Christoph Hock, Zurich, CH;
Prof Dr Hanns Moehler, Zurich, CH.

The remuneration for the Scientific Advisory Board in 2005 
amounts to T€ 37 (2004: T€ 25).

(i) Summary of Significant Differences between IFRS and 
HGB Accounting Requirements

Introduction
Evotec AG, as a German company, is subject to the German 
Commercial Code (“Handelsgesetzbuch”, “HGB”), which prin-
cipally requires the Company to prepare consolidated finan-
cial statements in accordance with the HGB accounting princi-
ples and regulations (“German GAAP”). Pursuant to HGB 
Section 315a, the Company prepares consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with IFRS. The following is a de-
scription of the significant differences between German GAAP 
and IFRS.

Fundamental Differences
The emphasis of IFRS is to provide all relevant information to 
investors in order to facilitate future investment decisions. The 
primary difference between German GAAP and IFRS is that 
they are based on different concepts. German GAAP is orient-
ed towards the protection of creditors and emphasis on the 
prudence concept. Accordingly, IFRS prescribes strict separa-
tion of commercial and tax accounting, provisions for expens-
es are not permitted, recognition and valuation of options are 
more narrowly defined, and more extensive notes and expla-
nations are required.

Management report 
According to HGB companies have the obligation to disclose a 
management report. IFRS requires no management report. 

Revenue Recognition
Revenue recognition is generally the same under German 
GAAP and IFRS, whereby revenue is recognised when it is 
probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company. 
Differences in the timing of recognition can exist in transaction 
when the Company retains on-going financial, operational or 
performance commitments or the contractual amounts are 
not objectively verifiable.

Leased assets
Both IFRS and German GAAP stipulate that leased assets 
should be recognised on the basis of economic ownership. 
However, the definition of economic ownership varies. Under 
German GAAP a tax law approach is applicable.

Goodwill
Under IFRS, pursuant to IFRS 3, “Business Combinations”, 
goodwill arising from business combinations accounted for as 
a purchase is no longer amortised but is reviewed for impair-
ment once a year. German accounting standards continue to 
permit companies to amortize goodwill or offset it against re-
tained earnings.

Intangible assets
Under IFRS, internal costs associated with intangible assets 
are capitalised and amortised over their estimated useful lives. 
Under German GAAP, such non-current costs are expensed as 
incurred.

Financial Instruments
Under German GAAP, derivative financial instruments are not 
recorded on the balance sheet but detailed disclosures apply. 
Unrealised gains are not recognised and unrealised losses are 
accrued. Under IFRS, derivative financial instruments are 
 recorded on the balance sheet at their fair value. Changes in 
fair value are recorded in current earnings or in stockholders’ 
 equity, depending on whether the derivative financial instru-
ments are designated as part of a hedge transaction and de-
pending on the type of hedge transaction.
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Stock-Based Compensation
Under German GAAP, the Company recognises no stock-based 
compensation expenses. Under IFRS, the Company accounts 
for stock-based compensation pursuant to IFRS 2. 

Provisions
Under German GAAP, certain costs can be accrued for antici-
pated future events in certain circumstances. Under IFRS, rec-
ognition of an accrued liability represents an existing liability to 
third parties or must meet specific recognition criteria. Pension 
provisions are calculated using the projected unit credit meth-
od, taking into account future increases in remuneration and 
pensions. The German tax-based method is under IFRS not 
permitted.

Non-current liabilities 
IFRS requires that long-term liabilities be disclosed with the 
present value of the future payments using an interest rate 
commensurate with the risk involved. Under German GAAP, 
the long-term liabilities are disclosed with their repayment 
amounts.

Deferred taxes
Under German GAAP it is not permitted to capitalise deferred 
tax assets resulting from tax loss carryforwards. IFRS requires 
deferred taxes to be recognised for all temporary differences 
between the tax and accounting balance sheets. Deferred 
 taxes must also be recognised for tax loss carryforwards if it is 
sufficiently probable that these tax loss carryforwards can be 
utilised. 

Equity transaction costs
Under German GAAP, costs in connection with a capital in-
crease are expensed as incurred. Under IFRS, such costs are 
recorded as a reduction of additional paid-in capital. 

Foreign Currency Translation
Under German GAAP, foreign currency denominated assets 
and liabilities are recorded at spot rate on the transaction date 
with only unrealised losses reflected in income at the balance 
sheet date. Under IFRS, foreign currency denominated assets 
and liabilities are translated at the spot rate at the balance 
sheet date, with both unrealised gains and losses reflected in 
income.
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Report of the Supervisory Board

The key task of the Supervisory Board is to regularly advise 
and supervise the Management Board in the management of 
the enterprise.

During 2005, the Supervisory Board convened for five formal 
meetings and held five telephone conferences to discuss the 
operational and strategic development of Evotec AG. The Su-
pervisory Board approved two separate management decision 
proposals through written circulation. The Audit Committee 
met separately in one physical meeting and engaged in four 
additional telephone conferences; the Remuneration Commit-
tee convened twice. The Management Board continuously pro-
vided updates to the Supervisory Board through regular verbal 
and written reports that included in depth information on the 
status of operations. 

The information provided included written monthly manage-
ment reports covering in depth the company figures for the 
previous month as well as comments and explanations to this 
report. In addition to the information flow and discussion be-
tween the Supervisory Board and Management Board, the 
Chairman of the Supervisory Board and the Chief Executive Of-
ficer discussed ongoing and current topics on the telephone 
regularly, typically every two weeks, and whenever appropriate.

Further to business updates and other standard agenda items, 
the Supervisory Board discussed at its physical meetings the 
following specific subjects in detail: 
>  In March, the Board discussed the 2004 annual financial 

statements in presence of the auditors. 
>  In June, the Board focused on the implementation of the 

Company‘s strategy with a focus on Business Development 
for the Services Division and Finance and Pipeline Building 
in the Pharmaceuticals Division.

>  In a further meeting in June, following the Annual General 
Meeting, the Board discussed and appointed the members 
of its Audit Committee and its Remuneration Committee. 

>  In August, the Board discussed the Forecast Budget II as well 
as the strategy and its implementation, especially the status 
of various programmes in the Pharmaceuticals Division.

>  In November, the Board focused on the budget for the year 
2006 and in-licensing opportunities.

Prof Dr Heinz Riesenhuber
Chairman of the Supervisory Board
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The Supervisory Board was not aware of any conflict of inter-
est situation of any of its members during the year 2005, so 
every member was eligible to participate in all discussions and 
decisions of the Supervisory Board.

The financial statements and the management report of  Evotec 
AG for the year 2005, as well as the consolidated financial 
statements together with the consolidated management re-
port of the Evotec Group, were audited by KPMG Deutsche 
Treuhandgesellschaft Aktiengesellschaft Wirtschaftsprüfungs-
gesellschaft, Hamburg. The auditors issued an unqualified au-
dit opinion. 

The auditors discussed in depth their findings with the Audit 
Committee. In addition, the Audit Committee asked for, and 
received, a list of all important items which had been reviewed 
by the auditors. The Audit Committee discussed the organisa-
tion of the audit, audit findings and other topics with the audi-
tors and used this as a guideline for its own evaluation of the 
statements and reports. The auditors participated in the March 
meeting of the Supervisory Board and presented a compre-
hensive report on the audit and their observations at that 
meeting. The Supervisory Board examined both the financial 
statements and the consolidated financial statements pre-
pared by the Management Board based on its own judgement, 
taking into account the Audit Committee‘s input as well as in-
formation on key topics provided by the auditors. Following 
this, the Supervisory Board approved the financial statements 
and the consolidated financial statements.

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) changed significantly the 
composition of the Supervisory Board, following the acquisi-
tion of Evotec Neurosciences earlier in the year: Elected as 
new members were Dr Hubert Birner, Dr Peter Fellner, and Dr 
Alfred Oberholz. In addition, Mary Tanner was re-elected since 
her term of office expired with the AGM. The new members 
support Evotec in building a drug discovery and development 
company with a strong pipeline of CNS-related drug candi-
dates. Together with these new members, Prof Heinz Riesen-
huber and Peer Schatz, being re-elected by the 2004 Annual 
General Meeting for a five year term, continue to serve on the 
Company‘s Supervisory Board.

The Chairman of the Supervisory Board thanked Dr Pol  Bamelis, 
Dr Karsten Henco, and Dr Edwin Moses, who had left their 
 office as member of the Supervisory Board, for their highly 
valuable contribution to the Company’s development.

Following the expiration of his contract, Prof Dr Ian Hunneyball 
resigned from the Management Board effective 30 June 2005.  
He continues to serve the Company as Director, Corporate 
Projects.

The Supervisory Board thanks the Management Board and 
the Company‘s employees for their hard and successful work 
during the year and wishes them continued success for 2006.

Hamburg, 17 March 2006

The Supervisory Board
Prof Dr Heinz Riesenhuber



Supervisory Board and 
Management Board 

Supervisory Board

Prof Dr Heinz Riesenhuber Chairman of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board:
Frankfurt am Main|D Supervisory Board Kabel Deutschland GmbH, Unterfoehring|D 
Former Federal Minister of   Member of the Supervisory Board:
Research and Technology   Altana AG, Bad Homburg|D
  Frankfurter Allgemeine Zeitung GmbH, Frankfurt am Main|D
  Henkel KGaA, Duesseldorf|D
  VfW AG, Cologne|D
  Vodafone Deutschland GmbH, Duesseldorf|D 
  InSynCo AG, Hamburg|D (until June 2005)

  Member of the Verwaltungsrat:
  HBM BioVentures AG, Baar|CH

Peer Schatz Vice Chairman of the Member of the Supervisory Board:
Duesseldorf|D Supervisory Board Mulligan BioCapital AG, Hamburg|D
Chief Executive Officer   Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors:
Qiagen N.V.  GenoVision Inc, West Chester|USA 
  Qiagen AS, Oslo|N 
  Qiagen Canada Inc, Montreal|CAN (from August 2005)
  Qiagen Inc, Valencia|USA 
  Qiagen Ltd, Crawly West Sussex|UK 
  Qiagen North American Holdings, Inc, Valencia|USA 
  Qiagen Pty Ltd, Clifton Hill, Victoria|AUS 
  Qiagen S.A., Courtaboeuf Cedex|F
  Qiagen S.p.A., Milan|I 
  Qiagen Sciences, Inc, Germantown|USA 
  Qiagen Synthetic DNA, Inc, Alameda|USA 
  Xeragon, Inc, Germantown|USA 
  Qiagen Genomics, Inc, Bothell|USA (until July 2005)

  Non-Executive Member of the Board of Directors:
  Qiagen Inc, Mississauga|CAN
  Qiagen K.K., Tokyo|J

Dr Hubert Birner Member of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board:
Landsham|Pliening|D Supervisory Board Direvo Biotech AG, Cologne|D 
General Partner   (from 7 June 2005) Member of the Supervisory Board:
Techno Venture Management GmbH  Jerini AG, Berlin|D

  Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors:
  Argos Therapeutics Inc., Durham|North Carolina|USA

Dr Peter Fellner Member of the Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors:
Oxfordshire|UK Supervisory Board Astex Therapeutics Ltd, Cambridge|UK
Executive Chairman  (from 7 June 2005) Ionix Pharmaceuticals Ltd, Cambridge|UK (until July 2005)
Vernalis plc  Non-Executive Member of the Board of Directors:
  Bespak plc, Milton Keynes|UK (from November 2005)
  Isis Innovation Ltd, Oxford|UK
  QinetiQ Group plc, London|UK 
  UCB SA, Brussels|B (from June 2005)

Dr Alfred Oberholz Member of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board:
Marl|D Supervisory Board Infracor GmbH, Marl|D
Member of the Management Board  (from 7 June 2005) Non-Executive Member of the Board of Directors:
Degussa AG  Degussa (China) Co. Ltd., Shanghai|China
  Degussa Corporation, Parsippany|USA
  Degussa Japan Co. Ltd., Tokyo|Japan
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Mary Tanner Member of the  Non-Executive Member of the Board of Directors: 
New York, NY|USA Supervisory Board Ariad Pharmaceuticals, Inc, Cambridge|USA
Financial Advisor  HaptoGuard, Inc., Fort Lee|USA

Dr Pol Bamelis Member of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board: 
Knokke|B Supervisory Board Agfa-Gevaert AG, Leverkusen|D
Former Member of the  (until 7 June 2005) Member of the Supervisory Board:
Management Board   MediGene AG, Munich|D
Bayer AG

  Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors:
  Agfa-Gevaert N.V., Mortsel|B
  Crop Design N.V., Gent|B

  Non-Executive Member of the Board of Directors:
  Bekaert N.V., Kortrijk|B
  Innogenetics N.V., Gent|B
  Oleon N.V., Ertvelde|B 
  PolyTechnos (GP) II Ltd, St Peters Port, Guernsey|UK
  Recticel N.V., Brussels|B 
  Sioen NV, Ardooie|B
  Televic NV, Izegem|B  
  Leuven University, Leuven|B

  
Dr Karsten Henco Member of the Chairman of the Supervisory Board:
Duesseldorf|D Supervisory Board Garching Innovation GmbH, Munich|D 
Scientific and Business Consultant (until 7 June 2005) Member of the Supervisory Board:
  Direvo Biotech AG, Cologne|D
  NewLab BioQuality AG, Erkrath|D
  U3 Pharma AG, Martinsried|D

  
Dr Edwin Moses Member of the Non-Executive Chairman of the Board of Directors: 
Goring, Oxfordshire|UK Supervisory Board Ablynx N.V., Gent|B
Non-Executive Director (until 11 April 2005) Avantium Technologies, Amsterdam|NL
  BioImage A|S, Copenhagen|DK 
  Clinphone Group Ltd, Nottingham|UK 
  Inpharmatica Ltd, London|UK
  Paradigm Therapeutics Ltd, Cambridge|UK
  Pharmaceutical Profiles Group Ltd, Ruddington|UK (from January 2005)
  Phoqus Group Ltd, West Malling|UK 
  ProImmune Ltd, Oxford|UK

  Non-Executive Member of the Board of Directors: 
  Biofusion plc, Sheffield|UK (from January 2005)
  Ionix Pharmaceuticals Ltd, Cambridge|UK (until August 2005)

Management Board

Joern Aldag President &  Non-Executive Member of the Board of Directors: 
Hamburg|D Chief Executive Officer ENS Holdings, Inc., Wilmington, DE|USA 
Business Executive  Member of the Monopolkommission der Bundesrepublik Deutschland

Dr Dirk H Ehlers Chief Financial Officer 
Wohltorf|D
Physicist

Prof Dr Ian M Hunneyball* Chief Scientific Officer & 
Abingdon, Oxfordshire|UK President, Discovery Programs Division
Biochemist  (until 30 June 2005)
 
 

*Director, Corporate Projects (from 1 July 2005) 
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Allosteric modulator. Drug exerting 
its effect on the ➞ receptor protein at 
a site different from the binding site 
of the endogenous substance, thereby 
enhancing (positive modulator) or re-
ducing (negative modulator) the ef-
fect of the endogenous substance.
Antagonist. Drug that binds a cellular 
➞ receptor thereby inhibiting the 
natural function of the receptor.
API. Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient.
Assay. Any combination of ➞ targets 
and compounds which is exposed to 
a detection device to measure chemi-
cal or biological activity.
Bioavailability. The percent of dose of 
a drug entering the systemic circula-
tion after administration of a given 
dosage form. This is usually deter-
mined from the ratio of the amount of 
drug “absorbed” from an oral ➞ for-
mulation to the amount “absorbed” 
after administration of an aqueous 
solution of the drug given intrave-
nously.
Cell line. Cells with an unlimited rep-
lication capacity, which maintain spe-
cifi c and useful characteristics identi-
cal between the parent and the 
daughter cell.
Cellular assay. ➞ Assay performed 
using whole living cells.
Clinical development. Drug research 
studies that involve patients or healthy 
volunteers.
Compound library. Collection of a 
multitude of different molecules; 
used for ➞ screening.
Compound optimisation. The syn-
thetic modifi cation of a biologically 
active compound, to fulfi l all stereo-
electronic, physicochemical, ➞ phar-
macokinetic and toxicologic require-
ments for ➞ clinical usefulness.
Computational chemistry. Discipline 
of using computational methods to 
calculate properties of chemical com-
pounds and their interaction with bio-
logical ➞ targets (e.g. proteins).
Electrophysiology. Electrical phenom-
ena associated with a ➞ physiological 
process (as the function of a body or 
bodily part).
Enzyme. Protein that acts as a cata-
lyst, speeding up the rate at which a 
biochemical reaction proceeds.
Formulation. The formulation by 
which a drug is delivered ➞ in vivo can 
have a profound effect on its ➞ bio-
availability. Therefore it is necessary 
to develop the optimal formulation: 
this will involve the selection of the 
dosage form (e.g. soft gel capsule or 
tablet), choice of excipients and stud-
ies on the chemical stability of the 
formulated drug.
Fragment. Fragments are small or-
ganic molecules that are typically a 

Glossary

third of the size of drug molecules 
and because of their small size tend 
to interact only weakly with proteins. 
Nevertheless, they are very useful 
starting points for ➞ medicinal chem-
ists to optimise them into more active 
drug molecules. They provide the 
fl exibility to add extra chemical 
groups leaving chemists more room 
to manoeuvre which increases the 
likelihood of developing an innovative 
and successful compound.
High Content Assay|Screening|Ana-
lysis. Analysis of individual cells by 
looking at more than one cellular 
event at the time. Thus detailed infor-
mation about the mechanism|activity 
of a compound|➞ lead in a cell is 
generated, thereby speeding up the 
drug discovery process.
Hit (compound). A molecule which has 
a robust dose-response activity in a 
 primary ➞ screen of known confi rmed 
structure and preliminary structure 
 activity relationship (SAR) information.
in vivo. In the living cell or organism 
as opposed to in vitro.
Ion channel. ➞ Receptor which, when 
activated, allows the passage of ions 
across cell membranes that infl uence 
the ➞ physiology of a cell.
Kinetics. Time-dependence and char-
acteristics of chemical and biological 
reactions.
Lead (compound). A representative of 
a compound series with suffi cient po-
tential (as measured by potency, se-
lectivity, ➞ pharmacokinetics, physic-
ochemical properties, novelty and 
absence of toxicity) to progress to a 
full drug optimisation programme.
Medicinial chemistry. A chemistry-
based discipline, also involving know-
ledge and aspects of biological, me-
dicinal and pharmaceutical sciences. 
It is concerned with the invention, dis-
covery, design, identifi cation and 
preparation of biologically active 
compounds, the study of their ADMET 
properties, the interpretation of their 
mode of action at the molecular level 
and the construction of structure ac-
tivity relationships. Medicinal chemis-
try optimisation is “fi ne tuning” re-
quired to turn a validated ➞ lead into 
a ➞ pre-clinical candidate involving 
subtle structural changes to the lead 
using a “hand-crafted” approach.
Neurite formation. During the devel-
opment of the nervous system, neu-
rons extend numerous processes that 
differentiate into dendrites and axons. 
These processes, also termed neur-
ites, are critical for communication 
between neurons. They also play a 
central role in a variety of neuropatho-
logical disorders, and in neuronal 
injury|regeneration.

Parenteral. ➞ Formulation of a drug 
substance such that it is suitable for 
administration by injection.
Pathophysiology. Summarises proc-
esses within cells, tissues, organs or 
the whole body under conditions of 
illness as opposed to the healthy 
state. It is necessary to understand 
pathophysiology for purposes of ther-
apeutic intervention.
Pharmacokinetics. Time-dependent 
availability and compartmental distri-
bution.
Physiology. Science of living organ-
isms and their parts.
Pilot plant. A set of large fi xed vessel 
and ancillary devices for conducting 
organic synthesis on a large scale. A 
pilot plant is often used for synthesis 
of larger amounts of a candidate drug 
molecule required for ➞ clinical trials 
in man. It provides an intermediate 
scale between lab scale and full manu-
facturing scale.
Pre-clinical discovery. The phase of 
drug discovery extending from ➞ tar-
get identifi cation, the search for chem-
ical compounds with desired proper-
ties, through to the end of effi cacy 
studies in animal models and safety 
evaluation prior to ➞ clinical trials.
Primary cell. A cell or ➞ cell line taken 
directly from a living organism, which 
is not immortalised.
Proof-of-concept drug (POCD). Drug 
candidate which has completed 
Phase IIa ➞ clinical trials demonstrat-
ing that the molecule proves the con-
cept that pharmacological interven-
tion of the selected biological ➞ target 
will be therapeutically useful in the 
selected clinical indication.
Receptor. Protein in a cell or on its 
surface that selectively binds a spe-
cifi c substance (ligand). Upon binding 
its ligand, the receptor triggers a spe-
cifi c response in the cell.
Single Ascending Dose Component. 
Part of the ➞ clinical trials, where sin-
gle doses of a compound are admin-
istered and their effects are read out 
before ascending to a new higher sin-
gle dosage.
Scale up. The process by which a 
laboratory-based synthetic process is 
developed to allow safe and repro-
ducible production on a larger scale.
Screening. Mass testing of ➞ com-
pound libraries using an established 
➞ assay format.
Small molecule. A low molecular 
weight organic compound. These are 
preferred for drugs as they usually are 
orally available (unlike proteins that 
must be administered by injection). 
The size of small molecules is less 
than 1,000 Daltons, and is usually in 
the range from 250 to 700 Daltons.

Stem cell. A cell that can replicate in-
defi nitely and which can differentiate 
into all other cell types; stem cells 
serve as a continuous source of cells 
for analysis and ➞ screening.
Target. Specifi c biological molecule, 
such as an ➞ enzyme, ➞ receptor or 
➞ ion channel, assumed to be rele-
vant to a certain disease. Most drugs 
work by binding to a target, thereby 
affecting its biological function.
Target identifi cation. Identifying a 
molecule (often a protein) that is in-
strumental to a disease process 
(though not necessarily directly in-
volved), with the intention of fi nding a 
way to regulate that molecule’s activ-
ity for therapeutic purposes.
Target validation. Involves the verifi -
cation of the relevance of a ➞ target to 
the course of a specifi c illness.
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Key figures

Evotec AG

2002 2003 2004 2004 2005 Δ 05/04 in %

Results:  U.S. GAAP  U.S. GAAP  U.S. GAAP  IFRS  IFRS  IFRS

Revenue T€ 69,995 77,228 72,730 72,730 79,785 9.7

R&D expenses T€ 23,012 15,466 13,772 13,490 14,088 4.4

Operating loss T€ 135,512 15,777 91,248 85,622 35,673 (58.3)

Operating loss1) T€ 14,105 5,106 11,759 11,697 8,105 (30.7)

Net loss T€ 131,630 14,242 84,203 77,812 33,583 (56.8)

Net loss1) T€ 10,223 3,571 4,714 3,887 6,015 54.7

EBITDA T€ (2,221) 4,086 (3,246) (2,932) (1,699) 42.1

Cash flow T€ 5,313 (1,333) (3,624) (3,624) 37,141 –

Balance sheet data:

Subscribed capital2) T€ 35,510 35,510 38,010 38,010 62,759 65.1

Number of shares2) T 35,510 35,510 38,010 38,010 62,759 65.1

Stockholders’ equity T€ 195,407 172,101 102,010 110,508 148,669 34.5

Equity ratio % 81 78 74 75 80 –

Investments3) T€ 9,284 17,027 9,060 9,903 40,298 306.9

– Intangible assets T€ 28 1,689 274 1,117 32,050 –

– Tangible fixed assets T€ 8,634 13,613 2,532 2,532 6,466 155.4

– Financial assets T€ 622 1,725 6,254 6,254 1,782 (71.5)

Cash including 

marketable securities T€ 21,308 19,471 15,277 15,277 53,520 250.3

Balance sheet total T€ 241,042 220,919 138,534 146,544 186,111 27.0

Personnel data:

Employees as of 31 December 635 644 646 646 604 (6.5)

Total corporate personnel 

expenditures T€ 35,768 36,364 37,365 37,553 39,538 5.3

Revenue per employee T€ 110 120 113 113 132 16.8

Per share:

Result € (3.71) (0.40) (2.30) (2.12) (0.65) 69.3

Dividends € – – – – – –

ISIN DE0005664809

Security identification No. 566480

1)  Before amortisation and impairment
2)  Refers to 1 €
3)  Including additions from acquisitions of ENS and ProPharma
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